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Notes to the Financial Statements

1.  PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Nanyang Commercial Bank, Limited was incorporated in
Hong Kong (hereinafter as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries
were incorporated in Hong Kong or Shanghai (together with
the Bank hereinafter as the “Group”). The Bank is a licensed
bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance.

The principal activities of the Bank are the provision of
banking and related financial services. The principal activities
of the Bank'’s subsidiaries are shown in Note 26. The address
of the Bank’s registered office is 151 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a collective term which
includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) issued
by the HKICPA and the requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the
revaluation of available-for-sale securities, financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative financial
instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, investment
properties which are carried at fair value and premises which
are carried at fair value or revalued amount less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the Management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.
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2. IESTBREBE® 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
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(a) ER2013%F 151 HEHIEHE T FEEHITEERLZ (a)  Standards, amendments and interpretation
R - EFTRZFE already mandatorily effective for accounting
periods beginning on 1 January 2013
RAFER
BRBAZFE RSB
Applicable for Currently
%8| /28 AES financial years relevant to
Standard/Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group
BEGERFE 1% (KERT) HBEHRENOTIR 201267R18 &
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 July 2012 Yes
BAGERIE195:(2011) EERA 2013F1A18 =
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013 Yes
BREIERE275R2011) BUGBIRE 2013F1A18 =
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013 Yes
BREIERIE2857(2011) BENRRAALERE 2013F1A18 &
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures 1 January 2013 No
BEMBREERE1F (KET) BREMNERMBREED - BFER 2013F1A1H A
HKFRS 1 (Amendment) First Time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards 1 January 2013 No
- Government Loans
BBMBREENETR (KERT) TRIA: KE - oREERSRAB AN 2013118 =
HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and 1 January 2013 Yes
Financial Liabilities
BERBREERS1057 FalRz 20131 A1H =
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013 Yes
BBMBRELRE 1R RERH 2013F1A1H e
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013 No
BB RELRE 125 Hiy pEREEHORE 2013F1A1H B
HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013 No
BRMBHRSEERE10 1MRI125K BERH 2013F1A18 =
(@E37)
HKFRS 10, 11 and 12 (Amendment) Transition Guidance 1 January 2013 Yes
BEYBMELERF 1358 ATEHE 2013F1A18 =
HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013 Yes
BERMBREERZEF20% BRESI EERE B 2 R B 2013F1A1H e
HK(IFRIC) - Int 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 1 January 2013 No
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HKAS 1 (Revised), “Presentation of Financial
Statements”. The amendments to HKAS 1 (Revised)
require companies preparing financial statements in
accordance with HKFRSs to group together items
within other comprehensive income (OCI) that
may be reclassified to the income statement. The
amendments also reaffirm existing requirements that
items in OCI and profit or loss should be presented
as either a single statement or two consecutive
statements. The adoption of this revised standard
affects the presentation of the Group’s statement of
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2.

2.1
(a)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards, amendments and interpretation
already mandatorily effective for accounting
periods beginning on 1 January 2013 (Cont'd)

HKAS 19 (2011), “Employee Benefits”. The revised
standard mainly amends the part related to
accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations
and plan assets, and related presentation and
disclosure. The amendments do not have impact on
the Group’s financial statements.

HKAS 27 (2011), “Separate Financial Statements”.
Please refer to the below on HKFRS 10, “Consolidated
Financial Statements”.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”. The amendments require new
disclosures to include information that enable users
of an entity’s financial statements to evaluate the
effect or potential effect of netting arrangements,
including rights of set-off associated with the entity’s
recognised financial assets and recognised financial
liabilities, on the entity’s financial position. New
disclosure for the adoption of this amended standard
is presented in Note 43.

HKFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements”.
HKFRS 10 builds on existing principles by identifying
the concept of control as the determining factor when
considering whether an entity should be included
within the consolidated financial statements of the
parent company. The standard provides additional
guidance to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. It also replaces
all of the guidance on control and consolidation
stipulated in HKAS 27 (Revised), “Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements”, and HK(SIC)-
Int 12, “Consolidation — Special Purpose Entities”.
The remainder of HKAS 27 (Revised) is renamed as
HKAS 27 (2011), “Separate Financial Statements”
as a standard dealing solely with separate financial
statements without changing the existing guidance
for separate financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(a) Standards, amendments and interpretation
already mandatorily effective for accounting
periods beginning on 1 January 2013 (Cont'd)

The above HKFRS 10, HKFRS 11, HKFRS 12, HKAS 27 (2011)
and HKAS 28 (2011) issued in June 2011 are a group of five
new standards that supersede HKAS 27 (Revised), HKAS 28,
HKAS 31, HK(SIC)-Int 12 and HK(SIC)-Int 13. The adoption
of these standards does not have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements.

. HKFRS 10, 11 and 12 (Amendment), on transition
guidance. The amendments provide additional
transition relief to HKFRS 10, 11 and 12, limiting
the requirement to provide adjusted comparative
information to only the preceding comparative
period. The adoption of this amendment does
not affect the disclosure of the Group’s financial
statements.

° HKFRS 13, “Fair Value Measurement”. The new
standard which was issued in June 2011 replaces
the fair value measurement guidance contained in
individual HKFRSs by providing a revised definition
of fair value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements for use
across HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the
use of fair value accounting, but provide guidance
on how it should be applied when its use is already
required or permitted by other standards within
HKFRSs. It also requires extensive disclosures which
allow users of financial statements to assess the
methods and inputs used by the entities when
developing the fair value measurements. The new
disclosure is presented in Note 5.
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2.1
(b)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards, amendments and interpretation
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2013

The following standards, amendments and interpretation
have been issued and are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014:

RAFEER
BREAZEE AEEEE
Applicable for Currently
financial years relevant to

beginning on/after the Group

EBEERNE19%52011) (BEET) EERH : REBFE 2014F7A1H &

HKAS 19 (2011) (Amendment) Employee Benefits: Defined Benefit Plans 1 July 2014 No

BB LHERFE325 (BERT) SRIE :FIT - SREERERARBIHEH 20141418 =

HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and 1 January 2014 Yes
Financial Liabilities

BB LHERIE365 (FERT) BERE : FenEETNESERE 20141818 =

HKAS 36 (Amendment) Impairment of Assets: Recoverable Amount Disclosures for 1 January 2014 Yes
Non-Financial Assets

BB GHERIFEI95R (BERT) SRTE : BRENE - TETANER REHREHNLE 20141818 =

HKAS 39 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement - Novation of 1 January 2014 Yes
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting

BRMBREEETR (LEFT) SRIE : BE - BRMBREENFIRNAELH 20151818 =

HKFRS 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transition to HKFRS 9 1 January 2015 Yes

ABRBREERZEIH $RTA (59 I

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments To be determined Yes

BEUEREERNE10 12k REEE 201451818 &

BB EAE275: (KELT)
HKFRS 10, 12 and HKAS 27 Investment Entities 1 January 2014 No
(Amendments)
ERUBREEAREE2R HE 201451718 =
HK(IFRIC) - Int 21 Levies 1 January 2014 Yes
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HKAS 32 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments:
Presentation — Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities”. The amendment addresses
inconsistencies in current practice when applying
the offsetting criteria and clarifies the meaning of
“currently has a legally enforceable right of set-off”;
and the application of offsetting criteria to some
gross settlement systems (such as central clearing
house systems) that may be considered equivalent
to net settlement. The adoption of this amendment
does not have a material impact on the Group’'s
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

Standards, amendments and interpretation
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2013 (Cont’d)

HKAS 36 (Amendment), “Impairment of Assets:
Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial
Assets”. The amendment aligns the disclosure
requirements with its original intention which does
not intend to disclose at level of cash generating unit.
It also requires additional disclosure about the fair
value measurement when the recoverable amount
of impaired assets is based on fair value less costs
of disposal. The adoption of this amendment does
not affect the disclosure of the Group’s financial
statements.

HKAS 39 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement — Novation of
Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting”.
The amendment introduces a relief to allow hedge
accounting to continue in a situation where a
derivative, which has been designated as a hedging
instrument, is novated to effect clearing with a
central counterparty as a result of laws or regulation.
The adoption of this amendment does not have a
material impact on the Group's financial statements.

HKFRS 7 (Amendment), “Financial Instruments:
Disclosures — Transition to HKFRS 9”. The
amendments provide relief from the requirement to
restate comparative financial statements which was
originally available only to entities that chose to apply
HKFRS 9 prior to 2012. Instead, additional transition
disclosures will be required to help users to better
understand the effect of initial application of the
standard.



www.ncb.com.hk

2. TEEHHEERE &)

2.1 REEE (&)

(b) BB RBHIMELELRRE WA EER2013F
FRRTIRA 2R ~ (65T Rt FE ()

. ERBTHHELRFESR [SRTHE| - EBUBRE
R F IR AE — 305 21 20094F 11 B4 - WHEER
REBSTENFEIVFACHEEND B RTENR
FRED - MBEBSHAERKIEFERNEREEG -
ER2010F 11 A %M SR2013F 12 A B@ExER
REPPetaE s - HEEZARZOT ¢

() PHERHE
SHEERBRAWAN THA Y —BHEER - (WART
BEREH RRQUBBRAEREN R - SREENHIE
FEE BRI TR + 2 (4 BIE VI MRS HEE © 329 JREUA M
CEERSBTANEREE  URZTANAHBE R
o

AR A S — RS T EGEITRERTE - EXAR B
BRTE  REENFEBREZARFEZEEARELA L3R
ERABER  URZEENGHREAIANTLARENAR

SR BZ - FiA LM ER T AEAAT @S ABE
HE

AR EE TAFUATFEERETE - FHIEXSABZ
P s T A ARFERSET ABRTE - HRMAEM
R IERE - ATR VIR R E L DA HE A ERE - R
ERREERNAFERESEREANEBE2EKE - M
FRFERA - —CEEFERNEMEE WS - A FEREX
RN AT E S R A o

#17% 7% 441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

B R P AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretation
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2013 (Cont’d)

. HKFRS 9, “Financial Instruments”. The first part
of HKFRS 9 was issued in November 2009 and
will replace those parts of HKAS 39 relating to
the classification and measurement of financial
assets. In November 2010, a further pronouncement
was published to address financial liabilities and
derecognition. In December 2013, the part related to
hedge accounting was further added. Key features
are as follows:

(i) Classification and Measurement

Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the
following measurement categories: (1) those to be measured
subsequently at fair value or (2) those to be measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Classification is to be made
on transition, and subsequently on initial recognition. The
classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the instrument.

A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised
cost only if it is a debt instrument, and the objective of the
entity’s business model is to hold the asset to collect the
contractual cash flows, and the asset’s contractual cash
flows represent only unleveraged payments of principal and
interest. All other debt instruments are to be measured at
fair value through profit or loss.

All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at
fair value. Equity instruments that are held for trading will
be measured at fair value through profit or loss. For all other
equity investments, an irrevocable election can be made
at initial recognition to recognise unrealised and realised
fair value gains and losses through other comprehensive
income rather than the income statement. Once elected to
be recognised through other comprehensive income, there
will be no reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretation
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2013 (Cont’d)

(i) Financial Liabilities and Derecognition

Except for the two substantial changes described below, the
classification and measurement requirements of financial
liabilities have been basically carried forward with minimal
amendments from HKAS 39. For the derecognition principles,
they are consistent with that of HKAS 39.

The requirements related to the fair value option for financial
liabilities were changed to address own credit risk. It requires
the amount of change in fair value attributable to changes
in the credit risk of the financial liabilities be presented in
other comprehensive income. The remaining amount of the
total gain or loss is included in the income statement. If this
requirement creates or enlarges an accounting mismatch
in profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is
presented in the income statement. The determination of
whether there will be a mismatch will need to be made at
initial recognition of individual liabilities and will not be re-
assessed. Amounts presented in other comprehensive income
are not subsequently reclassified to the income statement
but may be transferred within equity.

The standard also eliminates the exception from fair value
measurement contained in HKAS 39 for derivative liabilities
that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of an
unquoted equity instrument.

(ifi) Hedge accounting

The requirements related to hedge accounting relaxes the
requirements for assessing hedge effectiveness which more
risk management strategies would be eligible for hedge
accounting. It also relaxes the rules on using purchased
options and non-derivative financial instruments as hedging
instruments and allows greater flexibility on the hedged
items. Corresponding disclosures about risk management
activity for applying hedge accounting are also introduced.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont'd)

(b) Standards, amendments and interpretation
issued that are not yet mandatorily effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
in 2013 (Cont’d)

It is expected that the final part on impairment of financial
assets will be pronounced in 2014. HKAS 39 will be replaced
by HKFRS 9 in its entirety. The previous mandatory effective
date of HKFRS 9 was removed and the new mandatory
effective date will be determined upon the entire completion
of HKFRS 9. Early adoption of HKFRS 9 is permitted but the
part of classification and measurement and hedge accounting
must be applied at the same time. The accounting for own
credit risk can be early adopted in isolation without applying
the other HKFRS 9 requirements at the same time. The Group
is considering the financial impact of the standard and the
timing of its application.

. HK(IFRIC) — Int 21, “Levies”. The interpretation
addresses how an entity should account for liabilities
to pay levies imposed by governments, other than
income taxes, in its financial statements. For a levy
that is triggered upon reaching a minimum threshold,
no liability should be anticipated before the specified
minimum threshold is reached. The adoption of this
amendment does not have a material impact on the
Group's financial statements.

(c) Improvements to HKFRSs

“Improvements to HKFRSs” contains numerous amendments
to HKFRSs which the HKICPA considers not urgent but
necessary. It comprises amendments that result in accounting
changes for presentation, recognition or measurement
purpose as well as terminology or editorial amendments
related to a variety of individual HKFRSs. The amendments
are either effective and adopted for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2013 or will be effective on or after
1 July 2014. The adoption of these improvements does not
have a material impact on the Group’s financial statements.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Bank and all of its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. The existence and effect of potential
voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible
are considered when assessing whether the Group controls
another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
de-consolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated;
unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of impairment of the assets transferred.
Where necessary, accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less allowance for impairment losses. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Bank on the
basis of dividends received and receivable. Dividend income
from subsidiaries is recognised in the income statement
when the right to receive payment is established.

2.3 Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
Management, which is the chief operating decision maker
of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses the
performance of operating segments. Income and expenses
directly associated with each segment are included in
determining operating segment performance.

2.4 Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is
the Bank’s functional and presentation currency.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd)

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or exchange rates at the end of
the reporting period for items that are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of foreign currency transactions using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions and monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting
period are recognised directly in the income statement, except
when deferred in other comprehensive income as qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair
value through profit or loss are reported as part of the fair
value gain or loss. Changes in the fair value of monetary
securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised cost of
the securities and other changes in the carrying amount of
the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement,
and other changes in the carrying amount are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as
equities held at fair value through profit or loss, are reported
as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences
on non-monetary financial assets such as equities classified as
available-for-sale are included in other comprehensive income.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
that have a functional currency different from Hong Kong
dollars are translated into Hong Kong dollars as follows:

o assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate
at the end of the reporting period;

o income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates; and

° all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
the currency translation reserve in equity through
other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign entities, and of
borrowings and other currency instruments designated as
hedges of such investments are taken to other comprehensive
income. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date
the derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value. Fair values are obtained from
qguoted market prices in active markets, including recent
market transactions, and through the use of valuation
techniques, including discounted cash flow models and
option pricing models, as appropriate. All derivatives are
carried as assets when fair value is positive and as liabilities
when fair value is negative.

Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments
are treated as separate derivatives when their economic
characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of
the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair
value through profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in the income statement.

Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes
in their fair value are recognised immediately in the income
statement unless they are designated as hedges and are
effective hedging instruments, then they are subject to
measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.

2.6 Hedge accounting

The Group documents at inception the relationship between
hedging instruments and hedged items, as well as its
risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
various hedge transactions. The Group also documents its
assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging
transactions are highly effective in offsetting changes in fair
values of hedged items. These criteria should be met before
a hedge can be qualified to be accounted for under hedge
accounting.

Net investment hedge

A gain or loss on the effective portion of the hedging
instrument is recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in equity; a gain or loss on the ineffective
portion is recognised immediately in the income statement.
Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to the income
statement upon disposal of the foreign operation as part of
the gain or loss on disposal.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.7 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

2.8 Interest income and expense and fee and
commission income and expense

Interest income and expense are recognised in the income
statement for all financial assets and financial liabilities using
the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability and
of allocating the interest income or interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument
or, when appropriate, a shorter period to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset or financial liability. When
calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the
financial instrument (e.g. prepayment options or incentives
relating to residential mortgage loans) but does not consider
future credit losses. The calculation includes fees, premiums
or discounts and basis points paid or received between
parties to the contract, and directly attributable origination
fees and costs which represent an integral part of the
effective yield.

Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets
has been written down as a result of an impairment loss,
interest income is recognised on the written down value
using the rate of interest used to discount the future
cash flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment
loss. Subsequent unwinding of the discount allowance is
recognised as interest income.

Fee and commission income and expenses that are not
an integral part of the effective yield are recognised
on an accrual basis ratably over the period when the
related service is provided, such as administrative fee,
asset management fee and custody services fee. Loan
syndication fees are recognised as revenue when the related
syndication arrangement has been completed and the Group
has retained no part of the loan package for itself or has
retained a part at the same effective interest rate as that of
other participants.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following
four categories: financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity securities
and available-for-sale financial assets. The Management
determines the classification of investments at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets are held. All financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value. Except for financial assets
carried at fair value through profit or loss, all transaction
costs of financial assets are included in their amortised costs.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held
for trading, and those designated at fair value through profit
or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred
principally for the purpose of selling in the short term or is
part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that
are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is classified
as held for trading. Derivatives are also classified as held
for trading.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be
designated as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss, if it meets one of the criteria set out below, and is
so designated by the Management:

o eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred
to as “an accounting mismatch”) that would
otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases; or

o applies to a group of financial assets, financial
liabilities or both that is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided
internally on that basis to the Management; or

o relates to financial assets containing one or more
embedded derivative that significantly modifies the
cash flow resulting from those financial assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(Cont'd)

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with
transaction costs taken directly to the income statement,
and are subsequently re-measured at fair value.

Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such
assets (excluding the interest component) are reported in
net trading gain/loss or net gain/loss on financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss. The interest
component is reported as part of interest income.

(2) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market, including placements with and advances
to banks and other financial institutions, investment debt
securities without an active market and loans and advances
to customers. They arise when the Group provides money,
goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of
trading the receivable. They are initially recorded at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs and are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowances for impairment losses.

(3) Held-to-maturity

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded
in active markets, with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturities that the Group’s Management has both
the positive intention and the ability to hold to maturity.
Where the Group sold held-to-maturity assets (i) other than
due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control, non-
recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated
by the Group, such as a significant deterioration in the
issuer’s creditworthiness, significant change in statutory or
regulatory requirement or (i) other than an insignificant
amount of held-to-maturity assets, the entire category would
be tainted and reclassified as available-for-sale. They are
initially recorded at fair value plus any directly attributable
transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method less
allowances for impairment losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont'd)
(4) Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that
are either designated as such or are not classified in any of
the other categories. They are intended to be held for an
indefinite period of time but may be sold in response to
needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates, exchange
rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair
value plus any directly attributable transaction costs, and are
subsequently measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investments
are recognised directly in other comprehensive income, until
the financial asset is derecognised or impaired at which
time the accumulated gain or loss previously recognised
in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation
of premium and discount is calculated using the effective
interest method and is recognised in the income statement.
Dividends on equity instruments classified as available-for-
sale are recognised in other operating income when the
Group's right to receive payment is established.

For a financial asset reclassified from the available-for-
sale category, the fair value carrying amount at the date
of reclassification becomes its new amortised cost and
any previous gain or loss on that asset that has been
recognised in other comprehensive income is amortised
to profit or loss over the remaining life of the investment
using the effective interest method. Any difference between
the new amortised cost and the maturity amount is also
amortised over the remaining life of the financial asset
using the effective interest method. If the financial asset
is subsequently determined to be impaired, the amount
recorded in other comprehensive income is reclassified to
profit or loss immediately.

The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale
securities is dealt with in Note 2.4.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following
categories: trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated
at fair value through profit or loss, deposits, and other
liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception
and recognised initially at fair value.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is
incurred principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the
short term. Derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as effective hedges. It is measured
at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through
profit or loss if it is so designated at inception. A financial
liability is so designated if it meets one of the following
criteria:

o eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement
or recognition inconsistency (sometimes referred to
as “an accounting mismatch”) that would otherwise
arise from measuring the financial liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different
bases; or

o applies to a group of financial assets, financial
liabilities or both that is managed and its performance
is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance
with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided
internally on that basis to the Management; or

o relates to financial liabilities containing one or more
embedded derivative that significantly modifies the
cash flow resulting from those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value and any gains and losses from
changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.

(3) Deposits and other liabilities

Deposits and other liabilities, other than those classified as
trading liabilities or designated at fair value through profit
or loss are carried at amortised cost. Any difference (if
available) between proceeds net of transaction costs and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement over
the period using the effective interest method.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.11 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the
issuer to make specified payments to reimburse the holder
for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payments when due, in accordance with the terms of a
contract between the holder and the debtor.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognised as
financial liabilities and reported under “Other accounts
and provisions” in the financial statements at fair value on
the date the guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial
recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such guarantees
are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined
in accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets” and (ii) the amount
initially recognised less, where appropriate, accumulated
amortisation recognised over the life of the guarantee on
a straight-line basis. Any changes in the liability relating
to financial guarantee contracts are taken to the income
statement.

2.12 Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments

Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, available-for-sale and held-to-maturity
securities are recognised on the trade date, the date on
which the Group purchases or sells the assets. Loans and
receivables (except investment securities without an active
market) are recognised when cash is advanced to the
borrowers. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have expired
or where the Group has transferred substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership. When the Group neither transfers nor
retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise
the transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing
involvement if control remains or derecognise it if there is
no retained control.

Trading liabilities and financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised on the trade
date. Deposits that are not trading liabilities are recognised
when money is received from customers, other liabilities are
recognised when such obligations arise. Financial liabilities
are derecognised from the balance sheet when and only
when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Securities and bills sold to a counterparty with an obligation
to repurchase at a pre-determined price on a specified future
date under a repurchase agreement are referred to as repos.
Securities and bills purchased from a counterparty with an
obligation to re-sell to the counterparty at a pre-determined
price on a specified future date under a resale agreement
are referred to as reverse repos.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Recognition and derecognition of
financial instruments (Cont'd)

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due
to banks, placements from banks and other financial
institutions, as appropriate, at the actual amount of cash
received from the counterparty. Financial assets given as
collateral for repurchase agreements are not derecognised
and are recorded as investment in securities or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or
securities borrowing are initially recorded in the balance
sheet as cash and due from banks or placements with banks
and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at the actual
amount of cash paid to the counterparty. Financial assets
received as collateral under reverse repurchase agreements
are not recognised on the balance sheet. The difference
between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest
income or interest expense over the life of the agreements
using the effective interest method.

2.13 Fair value measurement

The Group measures its premises and investment properties
and certain financial instruments at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. Fair value is the price that would
be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants in its
principal market or the most advantageous market accessible
by the Group at the measurement date.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act
in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

If the market for assets or liabilities is not active, the Group
uses valuation techniques, include the use of recent arm’s
length transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option
pricing models and other valuation techniques commonly
used by market participants, that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
after the initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and
that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets may be impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following probable loss events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(i) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in interest or principal payment;

(iii) the Group granting to the borrower, for economic
or legal reasons relating to the borrower’s financial
difficulty, a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market or
downgrading below investment grade level for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a
group of financial assets since the initial recognition
of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet be
identified with the individual financial assets in the
group, including:

o adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the group; or

. national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant. If the Group determines that no
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a group of
financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment together with all
other financial assets that are not individually significant or
for which impairment has not yet been identified. Assets
that are individually assessed for impairment and for which
an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
loans and receivables or held-to-maturity securities has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred), discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The
carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the income statement. If a loan or held-to-
maturity security has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on
the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable
market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of a collateralised financial asset reflects the
cash flows that may result from foreclosure less costs for
obtaining and selling the collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment,
financial assets are grouped on the basis of similar and
relevant credit risk characteristics. Those characteristics are
relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups
of such assets by being indicative of the debtors’ ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.14 Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (Cont’d)

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are
collectively evaluated for impairment are estimated on the
basis of the contractual cash flows of the assets in the
group and historical loss experience for assets with credit
risk characteristics similar to those in the group. Historical
loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current observable
data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience
is based and to remove the effects of conditions in the
historical period that do not exist currently.

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the
related allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are
written off after all the necessary procedures have been
completed and the amount of the loss has been determined.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
decrease the amount of impairment losses in the income
statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for
impairment losses decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised (such as an improvement in the debtor’s
credit rating), the previously recognised impairment loss
to the extent of its decrease is reversed by adjusting the
allowance account. The amount of the reversal is recognised
in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial
difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past
due but are treated as new loans.

(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale
financial assets, the accumulated losses, measured as the
difference between the acquisition cost or amortised cost
and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on
that financial asset previously recognised in the income
statement, is removed from equity and recognised in
the income statement. In the case of equity investments
classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged
decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is
considered in determining whether the assets are impaired.
If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt instrument
classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised in the income statement,
the impairment loss to the extent of its decrease is reversed
through the income statement. With respect to equity
instruments, further fair value changes are recognised in the
reserve for fair value change of available-for-sale securities
through other comprehensive income, impairment losses are
not reversed through the income statement.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries
and non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. Potential indications of impairment
may include significant adverse changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment in which the assets
operate or whether there has been a significant or prolonged
decline in value below their cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’'s fair
value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each
reporting date.

In the Bank's financial statements, impairment testing of the
investment in a subsidiary is also required upon receiving
dividend from that entity if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of that entity concerned in the
period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
that entity in the Bank’s balance sheet exceeds the carrying
amount of that entity’s net assets including goodwill in its
consolidated balance sheet.

2.16 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by
the companies in the Group, are classified as investment
properties. Properties leased out within Group companies are
classified as investment properties in individual companies’
financial statements and as premises in consolidated financial
statements. Land held under operating lease is classified and
accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease
is accounted for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost,
including related transaction costs. After initial recognition,
investment properties are measured at fair value.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.16 Investment properties (Cont'd)

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset’s carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and
the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is
stated at cost less impairment and is included in the carrying
amount of investment properties. Once the item begins to
generate economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value.
All other repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Any changes in fair value are recognised directly in the
income statement.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is
reclassified as premises, and its fair value at the date of
reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes. If
an item of premises becomes an investment property because
its use has changed, any difference resulting between the
carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date
of transfer is recognised in other comprehensive income as a
revaluation of premises under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and
Equipment”. However, if a fair value gain reverses a previous
revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is recognised in
the income statement up to the amount previously debited.

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment

Properties are mainly branches and office premises. Premises
are shown at fair value based on periodic, at least annual,
valuations by external independent valuers less subsequent
accumulated depreciation. Any accumulated depreciation
at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated
to the revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening
periods, the directors review the carrying amount of
premises, by reference to the open market value of similar
properties, and adjustments are made when there has been
a material change.

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the
acquisition and installation of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount
or are recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated
with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the
item can be measured reliably. The item is stated at cost
until it begins to generate economic benefits, then the item
is subsequently measured according to the measurement
basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
maintenance costs are charged to the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.17 Properties, plant and equipment (Cont'd)

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of
premises are credited to the premises revaluation reserve
through other comprehensive income. Decreases that
offset previous increases of the same individual asset are
charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in
the income statement. Any subsequent increases are credited
to the income statement up to the amount previously
debited, and then to the premises revaluation reserve. Upon
disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the premises
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is released and transferred from the premises revaluation
reserve to retained earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to
write down the cost or revalued amount of such assets over
their estimated useful lives as follows:

. Properties Over the life of government
land leases
3 Plant and equipment 2-15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, as at the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and
external sources of information are considered to determine
whether there is any indication that properties, plant and
equipment, are impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and where
relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the
asset to its recoverable amount. Such an impairment loss is
recognised in the income statement except where the asset
is carried at valuation and the impairment loss does not
exceed the revaluation surplus for that same asset, in which
case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to
sell and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through
the premises revaluation reserve or the income statement
as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses.
These are recognised in the income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.18 Leases
(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards
of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as
operating leases. The total payments made under operating
leases (net of any incentives received from the lessor) are
charged to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease
period has expired, any payment required to be made to
the lessor by way of penalty is recognised as an expense in
the period in which termination takes place. Rental income
from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance
leases. Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified
as finance leases as the present value of the minimum lease
payments (i.e. transaction price) of the land amounted to
substantially all of the fair value of the land as if it were
freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement
at the lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the
present value of the minimum lease payments. Each lease
payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges so as to achieve a constant rate on the finance
balance outstanding. The corresponding rental obligations,
net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities.
Investment properties acquired under finance leases are
carried at their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the
present value of the lease payments is recognised as a
receivable. Lease income is recognised over the term of the
lease using net investment method, which reflects a constant
periodic rate of return.

2.19 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with original
maturity less than three months from the date of acquisition,
including cash, balances with banks and other financial
institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.20 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events,
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation can
be made.

2.21 Employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF
schemes that are available to the Group’s employees.
Contributions to the schemes by the Group and employees
are calculated as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries
for the ORSO schemes and in accordance with the MPF
rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred
and represent contributions payable by the Group to the
schemes. Contributions made by the Group that are forfeited
by those employees who leave the ORSO scheme prior to the
full vesting of their entitlement to the contributions are used
by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions
or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the ORSO
schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-
administered funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A provision is
made for the estimated liability for unused annual leave and
the amount of sick leave expected to be paid as a result
of services rendered by employees up to the end of the
reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special
approved annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if
the current period’s entitlement is not used in full. Except for
unexpired annual leaves, they do not entitle employees to a
cash payment for unused entitlement on leaving the Group.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities
for bonus plans that are expected to be settled longer than
twelve months will be recognised using discounted cash flow
method if the amounts are significant.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.22 Current and deferred income taxes

Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the income statement, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised directly in
other comprehensive income. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable
tax law enacted or substantially enacted at the end of the
reporting period in each jurisdiction where the Bank and
the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income, is
recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in
which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance
sheet liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset
impairment provisions, depreciation of premises and
equipment, revaluation of certain assets including available-
for-sale securities and premises, and tax losses carried
forward. However, the deferred income tax is not recognised
if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in
a transaction other than a business combination that at
the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all
taxable temporary differences and deferred income tax assets
are recognised to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income
statement except for deferred income tax relating to fair
value re-measurement of available-for-sale securities and
revaluation of premises which are charged or credited
to other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other
comprehensive income and is subsequently recognised in
the income statement together with the realisation of the
deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from
investment property is determined based on the presumption
that the revaluation amount of such investment property will
be recovered through sale with the relevant tax rate applied.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.23 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of
their fair value less costs to sell and the amortised cost of
the related outstanding loans on the date of repossession,
and the related loans and advances together with the related
impairment allowances are derecognised from the balance
sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at the
lower of their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are
reported as “non-current assets held for sale” included in
“Other assets”.

2.24 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary
capacities, that result in its holding or managing assets on
behalf of individuals, trusts and other institutions. These
assets and any gains or losses arising thereon are excluded
from these financial statements, as they are not assets of
the Group.

2.25 Contingent liabilities and contingent
assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from
past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
future events not wholly within the control of the Group. It
can also be a present obligation arising from past events that
is not recognised because it is not probable that an outflow
of economic resources will be required or the amount of
obligation cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but
is disclosed in the notes to the financial statements. When
a change in the probability of an outflow occurs so that
outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past
events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain
events not wholly within the control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements when an inflow of
economic benefits is probable. When the inflow is virtually
certain, it will be recognised as an asset.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.26 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party
is considered to be related to the Group if (i) that party
controls, jointly controls or has significant influence over
the Group; (ii) is a member of the same financial reporting
group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries;
(iii) is an associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent
reporting group; (iv) is a key management personnel of
the Group or parents, (v) the party is subject to common
control with the Group; and (vi) and entity in which a person
identified in (iv) controls. Related parties may be individuals
or entities.

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year. Estimates and judgements are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and
other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.
Areas susceptible to changes in essential estimates and
judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either
the key assumptions or other estimation uncertainties will be
presented below if it is practicable to determine. It is possible
that actual results may require material adjustments to the
estimates referred to below.

3.1 Impairment allowances on loans and
advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment
at least on a quarterly basis. In determining whether
an impairment loss should be recorded in the income
statement, the Group makes judgements as to whether there
is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio
of loans and advances before the decrease can be identified
with an individual loan in that portfolio. This evidence may
include observable data indicating that there has been an
adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic
conditions that correlate with defaults on assets in the
group. The Management uses estimates based on historical
loss experience for assets with credit risk characteristics and
objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The
methodology and assumptions used for estimating both the
amount and timing of future cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December
2013 are shown in Note 23.
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3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.2 Impairment of held-to-maturity and
available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-
sale investment portfolios to assess impairment at least
on a quarterly basis. In determining whether any of these
investments is impaired, risk characteristics and performance
such as external credit rating, market price etc will be
assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default rate
and loss severity of each investment with reference to market
performance of the portfolios, current payment status of
the issuers or performance of the underlying assets, or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults on the
collateralised assets. The methodology and assumptions used
for impairment assessments are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of investment in securities as at 31
December 2013 are shown in Note 25.

3.3 Fair values of derivative financial
instruments

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are not
quoted in active markets are determined by using valuation
techniques. Valuation techniques used include discounted
cash flows analysis and models with built-in functions
available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk
management systems widely used by the industry such as
option pricing models. To the extent practical, the models
use observable data. In addition, valuation adjustments may
be adopted if factors such as credit risk are not considered in
the valuation models. Management judgement and estimates
are required for the selection of appropriate valuation
parameters, assumptions and modeling techniques. Further
details will be discussed in Note 5.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at
31 December 2013 are shown in Note 22.

71



72

#17% %% 445 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

B R AR Y AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

3. EREBUREZERG AR A&

(#)

3. BEZIHAES
AEERBEESSTERIZFEI5E 283 ' SEEEESET
NRERERENETITEESRMEES B AEAETHA
Bh o DT EREANE - RERAZHER  AEEZ
EZEREBBEZENNEFEEZEERDBPHZES - BEB
S ER|FE395R AT M EBERIN (ML E 2 B AE
K REAIPEEHE  RAEEBEE=EMHE) B4
SEREFEZSEREZEHE - IBREEANFHRET 2B
BAHEEES  MZEEBARFEZE M AeE AR
MAFE °

HE2013F12A31HNEZHEZRHEZLAEREZ YRR
Bff5E25 ©

4, <RRERER
AEEARSEZEEEMSAERER - TESEARETE

EERR  mERER (BFRINERREMNERER) KiREE
SRR - AN EMAAEBEERBAE  UREBR -

Bl EERMERRE BOREREFREREELRBRIN A

TREREERE

AEERBREEREEARBEEXHTERNDIMB/IE - RS
FEEBEETH S ERER R SEAREE MEG - AEH
BETENERERERE  TH E2HNEAREERER
B ANER 8 BERRESFEHRNSRRR -
REETEHER N EHEREEBRIEZRF - KEEa TS
REBRENEE - TREEMNRRAZEED AR EELR
BRI RERERET -

EEeARERRONE - TAKERRER N D RKE
B THEREEEZKEE EXSEEB TZE 80
BT BERIAEENAEEREERE - WHEANEE
BEREENHAREE RGAEENITA R -

www.ncb.com.hk

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
AND JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Cont'd)

3.4 Held-to-maturity securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying
certain non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturity as held-to-
maturity securities. This classification requires significant
management judgement to evaluate the Group's intention
and ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group
fails to hold these investments to maturity other than for
specific circumstances defined in HKAS 39, such as selling
an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity or due to
significant credit deterioration of such investments, it will be
required to reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets
as available-for-sale securities. The investments would then
be measured at fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of held-to-maturity securities as at 31
December 2013 are shown in Note 25.

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of
engaging in a variety of business activities. The principal
financial risks are credit risk, market risk (including currency
risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group's exposures to these risks, as well
as its objectives, risk management governance structure,
policies and processes for managing and the methods used
to measure these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure
is designed to cover all business processes and ensures
various risks are properly managed and controlled in the
course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure with a comprehensive
set of policies and procedures to identify, measure,
monitor and control various risks that may arise. These
risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and updated to reflect changes in markets and
business strategies. Various groups of risk takers assume
their respective responsibilities for risk management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of
shareholders, is the highest decision-making authority
of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for
risk management. The Board, with the assistance of
its committees, has the primary responsibility for the
formulation of risk management strategies and for ensuring
that the Group has an effective risk management system to
implement these strategies.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Financial risk management framework (Cont'd)

The Risk Management Committee, a standing committee
established by the Board of Directors, is responsible for
overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, approving
high-level risk-related policies and monitoring their
implementation, reviewing and approving significant or
high risk exposures or transactions. The Risk Management
Committee would refer any specific transaction to the Board
if it is deemed so significant that Board approval is desirable.
The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
overseeing the internal control system.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk
management responsibilities. Business units act as the first
line of defence while risk management units, which are
independent from the business units, are responsible for
the day-to-day management of different kinds of risks.
Risk management units have the primary responsibilities for
drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control
systems, including establishment of an organisation structure
that sets clear lines of authority and responsibility for
monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence
of the control functions from the business areas, as well as
adequate segregation of duties throughout the organisation
which helps promote an appropriate internal control
environment.

Pursuant to a risk-based approach, the Audit Department
conducts independent reviews on areas including principal
risks, regulatory compliance, adequacy and effectiveness of
risk policies and internal control systems.

Product development and risk monitoring

To ensure the effectiveness of risk assessment and
monitoring, the Group has a comprehensive product
development and risk monitoring system where roles and
responsibilities of all related units are clearly defined and
proper due diligence processes on product development
are in place.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the
Board and the Management, the respective product
management units are responsible for formulating business
and product development plans, and the division of strategic
development shall ensure the plans are aligned with the
Group's overall strategies. Divisions that are responsible for
risk management, legal, compliance and finance etc. are
accountable for risk assessment and review.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Product development and risk monitoring
(Cont'd)

Apart from product development, the respective product
management units shall work closely with relevant risk
evaluating divisions to identify and assess the risks of new
products. Risk evaluating divisions shall conduct independent
review on the risk assessment results and the corresponding
risk management measures. Products can only be launched
upon completion of the product due diligence process to the
satisfaction of all risk evaluating divisions.

A prudent approach is adopted in offering treasury products
to our clients. All treasury products, regardless brand new
or modified, require approval from the Management or the
special committee before launching.

4.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from a customer or
counterparty that will be unable to or unwilling to meet its
contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading book
and banking book, on- and off-balance sheet exposures of
a bank. It arises principally from the lending, trade finance
and treasury businesses, and covers inter-bank transactions,
foreign exchange and derivative transactions as well as
investments in bonds and securities.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit
risk management policies and procedures, and appropriate
credit risk limits to manage and control credit risk that may
arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk limits are
regularly reviewed and updated to cope with changes in
market conditions and business strategies.

The Group's organisation structure establishes a clear set of
authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with
policies, procedures and limits.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
Credit risk management framework (Cont’d)

The Credit and Loans Management Committee, a
management committee authorised by the Chief Executive,
is responsible for the implementation of the credit risk
management strategies as well as the approval of credit
policies. It also monitors various aspects of the Group’s
loan portfolio such as asset quality, risk concentration etc.
Various units of the Group have their respective credit
risk management responsibilities. Business units act as the
first line of defence. They are obliged to make thorough
assessment on every credit application and are fully
responsible for monitoring credit performance and punctual
repayments. The business activities conducted should also
comply with the credit policies and procedures. The risk
management units, which are independent from the business
units, are responsible for the day-to-day management
of credit risks and have the primary responsibilities for
providing an independent due diligence through identifying,
measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk, as well as
drafting, reviewing and updating credit risk management
policies and procedures. They report directly to the Credit
and Loans Management Committee, Chief Executive and Risk
Management Committee. NCB (China) sets up independent
risk monitoring teams to monitor credit risk, and submits
management information and reports to the Bank on a
regular basis.

The Board of Directors is the ultimate source of credit
authority. The Board of Directors delegates credit approval
authority to the Chief Executive. Based on management
needs, the Chief Executive can further delegate to the
subordinates within the limits authorised by the Board
of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval
authority according to business nature, internal rating, level
of transaction risk and extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group
has been continuously revisiting its credit strategies and
conducting rigorous reviews on the concerned portfolios.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)
Advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted
according to level of risk associated with the customer,
counterparty or transaction. All credit applications are
subject to thorough risk assessment and proper approval. In
general, most of the credit applications will be reviewed and
assessed by independent officer(s) of risk management unit(s)
before approval, with exceptions given to certain designated
products which satisfy certain conditions. These designated
advances will be (randomly) reviewed by designated unit(s)
which is(are) independent from the front line business units
after funding being drawn. Obligor ratings (in terms of
probability of default) and facility ratings (in terms of loss
given default) are assigned to credit applications for non-
retail exposures to support credit approval. Retail internal
rating systems are deployed in the risk assessment of retail
credit transactions, including small business retail exposures,
residential mortgage loans and personal loans. Loan grades,
obligor and facility ratings as well as loss estimates (if
applicable) are used to support credit approval.

The Group also uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss
estimates (if applicable) to support credit monitoring,
reporting and analysis of credit risk information. For non-
retail exposures, more frequent rating review and closer
monitoring are required for higher-risk customers. For
retail exposures, monthly updated internal ratings and loss
estimates are used for credit monitoring on a portfolio basis.
More comprehensive review is required for obligors being
identified under high-risk pools.

The Group employs a credit master scale for internal rating
purpose that can be mapped to Standard & Poor’s external
ratings. The credit master scale for internal rating is in
compliance with the Banking (Capital) Rules under the Hong
Kong Banking Ordinance on internal rating structure.

Regular credit management information reports and ad hoc
reports are provided to the Management, Risk Management
Committee and Board of Directors to facilitate their
continuous monitoring of credit risk.

In addition, the Group identifies credit concentration risk by
industry, geography, customer and counterparty. The Group
monitors changes to counterparties credit risk, quality of the
credit portfolio and risk concentrations, and reports regularly
to the Group’s management.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
Credit risk measurement and control (Cont’d)
Advances (Cont’d)

In the year of 2013, the Group continues to adopt loan
grading criteria which divide credit assets into 5 categories
with reference to HKMA's guidelines, as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in
meeting its repayment obligations and full repayment of
interest and principal is not in doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is
experiencing difficulties which may threaten the Group’s
position. Ultimate loss is not expected at this stage but could
occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays
a definable weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is
improbable and the Group expects to sustain a loss of
principal and/or interest, taking into account the net
realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible
after all collection options (such as the realisation of
collateral or the institution of legal proceedings) have been
exhausted.

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities and securitisation assets,
the obligor ratings or external credit ratings, assessment of
the underlying assets and credit limits setting on customer/
security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk
associated with the investment. For derivatives, the Group
sets customer limits to manage the credit risk involved and
follows the same approval and control processes as applied
for advances. On-going monitoring and stop-loss procedures
are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange
transactions with counterparties and also from derivatives in
any situation where a payment in cash, securities or equities
is made in the expectation of a corresponding receipt
in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are
established for each counterparty or customer to cover all
settlement risks arising from the Group’s market transactions
on any single day.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

Collateral held as security and other credit
enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been
documented in the credit risk management policies and
procedures which cover acceptance criteria, validity of
collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis,
though the frequency and the method used varies with the
type of collateral involved and the nature and the risk of the
underlying credit. The Group has established a mechanism
to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties, with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis.
Collateral is insured with the Group as the beneficiary.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group assesses
the guarantor’s financial condition, credit history and ability
to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, the Group did not hold
any collateral that it was permitted to sell or re-pledge in
the absence of default by the borrower.

(A) Credit exposures

The maximum exposure is the worst case scenario of
exposure to the Group without taking into account any
collateral held or other credit enhancements. For on-balance
sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals
their carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the
maximum exposure to credit risk is the maximum amount
that the Group could be required to pay if the guarantees
are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit
related liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the
full amount of the committed facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit
enhancements and their financial effect to the different
classes of the Group's financial assets are as follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial
institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due
to the nature of the counterparties. Collateral is generally
not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(A) Credit exposures (Cont'd)

Derivative financial instruments

The International Swaps and Derivatives Association Master
Agreement is the preferred agreement for documenting
derivatives activities of the Group. It provides the contractual
framework within which dealing activities across a full
range of OTC products are conducted, and contractually
bind both parties to apply close-out netting on outstanding
transactions covered by an agreement if either party defaults
or another pre-agreed termination event occurs.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and
commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 78.
Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and
commitments are collateralised to the extent considered
appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk
assessment of individual exposures. The collateral coverage
of advances to customers is analysed on pages 91 to 94.
The components and nature of contingent liabilities and
commitments are disclosed in Note 38. Regarding the
commitments that are unconditionally cancellable without
prior notice, the Group would assess the necessity to
withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality
of a borrower deteriorates. For contingent liabilities and
commitments, 14.94% (2012: 15.79%) is covered by
collateral as at 31 December 2013.

(B) Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before loan impairment
allowances are summarised by product type as follows:

AEE
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
XEER Advances to customers
& A Personal
— =15 - Mortgages 19,071,015 17,143,632
— =8+ — Credit cards 454,882 =
— HAh — Others 7,201,697 4,858,417
NG Corporate
—HEEEXK — Commercial loans 108,469,101 103,158,279
—EB5mE — Trade finance 8,345,348 5,992,781
143,542,043 131,153,109
B5ZE Trade bills 13,242,636 8,069,618
FEE Total 156,784,679 139,222,727
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4. cEERERE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
RERIT
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT I
HK$’000 HK$'000
EEEX Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— &5 - Mortgages 10,468,766 11,326,989
— HAth — Others 6,053,509 4,324,775
NC Corporate
—HEER — Commercial loans 66,166,653 64,479,702
—BZmE — Trade finance 6,902,201 4,931,864
89,591,129 85,063,330
B5EE Trade bills 9,458,019 5,504,118
185t Total 99,049,148 90,567,448

FRBIPRAZER  EEASHNSEBBRNREE
APIEBHER - BRI BEEZEFR  BEEP—ROH
BERCBARRMNAEER  RIFFEHEE - ARMEEZE
RECRERAREZEFERM - BERARZIERENR 3k
EX—HEBHERABRBAZSEERRE - TIERHR
# e

BERERBERREFHA -BARZEBRENS LB H
FREXEMHCVEEREMTENRERER - ZERE
HERERX -

MEEEREERRERE HRABRS  AHAXEEEE
SRS RABAREN L ZHHE - BRE B A
ANEBREHROENLDARBAL S AEEOENHALE
i -

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as
overdue when the principal or interest is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular instalments
are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past
due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are
classified as overdue either when a demand for repayment
has been served on the borrower but repayment has not
been made in accordance with the instruction or when the
advances have remained continuously outside the approved
limit that was advised to the borrower.

Advances are impaired and impairment losses are incurred
if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as
a result of one or more events that occurred and that loss
event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows
of the advances that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on
advances has been incurred, the amount of loss is measured
as the difference between the carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows generated by
the advances. Objective evidence that advances are impaired
includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the loss events.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is
objective evidence of an impairment loss include:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the
borrower;

- A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency
in principal payment or interest;

- For economic or legal reasons related to the
borrower’s financial difficulty, the Group has granted
to the borrower a concession that it would not
otherwise consider;

- Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or
undergo other financial reorganisation; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash
flows from such advances.

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are
analysed by internal credit grades as follows:

rEE
The Group
2013
FERE RXEIAT
=i Special Substandard st
Pass mention or below Total
BET T BET T BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
XEER Advances to customers
BA Personal
— %18 — Mortgages 18,699,997 23,672 1,958 18,725,627
—EAF — Credit cards 445,096 - - 445,096
— H — Others 7,111,627 3,798 1,697 7,117,122
NG Corporate
—HEEEXK — Commercial loans 104,860,954 2,953,206 12,863 107,827,023
—B5mE — Trade finance 8,193,494 87,262 = 8,280,756
139,311,168 3,067,938 16,518 142,395,624
B2 ER Trade bills 13,242,636 - - 13,242,636
a=t Total 152,553,804 3,067,938 16,518 155,638,260
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4. cHERER (5) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAMIRE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(a)  FERERBHEL (&) (a)  Advances neither overdue nor impaired (Cont’d)
NEEE
The Group
2012
FTE@EE ORFEAT
atg Special  Substandard 5t
Pass mention or below Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEE Advances to customers
& A Personal
— 1215 — Mortgages 16,895,662 23,523 2,066 16,921,251
— HAh — Others 4,792,158 8,453 1,607 4,802,218
yNG] Corporate
—AXEX — Commercial loans 100,427,042 2,145,488 72 102,572,602
—EFmE — Trade finance 5,686,815 240,980 - 5,927,795
127,801,677 2,418,444 3,745 130,223,866
B 5 ER Trade bills 8,069,618 - - 8,069,618
FE Total 135,871,295 2,418,444 3,745 138,293,484
ARERAT
The Bank
2013
FERE & ETYNN
e Special Substandard st
Pass mention or below Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
EFEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— 218 — Mortgages 10,345,633 4,093 1,285 10,351,011
— Hfh — Others 5,986,849 3,155 1,697 5,991,701
N Corporate
—EEER — Commercial loans 64,167,947 1,728,339 12,863 65,909,149
— B 5mE — Trade finance 6,810,267 54,863 - 6,865,130
87,310,696 1,790,450 15,845 89,116,991
BE5ZE Trade bills 9,458,019 - - 9,458,019
FEs Total 96,768,715 1,790,450 15,845 98,575,010
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired (Cont’d)

ARERTT
The Bank
2012
EERE O ORBEAT
atg Special  Substandard 5
Pass mention or below Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFER Advances to customers
& A Personal
— %18 — Mortgages 11,230,412 2,421 1,300 11,234,133
— Hfth — Others 4,282,075 8,453 1,607 4,292,135
NET! Corporate
—EEEX — Commercial loans 62,857,999 1,321,210 72 64,179,281
—EBo5mE — Trade finance 4,693,834 198,501 - 4,892,335
83,064,320 1,530,585 2,979 84,597,884
B52E Trade bills 5,504,118 - - 5,504,118
FES Total 88,568,438 1,530,585 2,979 90,102,002
EERZEHERER  BEREBRASHENRVERRE The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in
BR BREEFETR DRI SHAT - BXAREH - 71 impairment loss where the advances are fully collateralised.
EF%#/JEUEE KR ERATR o While such advances are of “substandard” or lower grades

and do not overdue, they are regarded as not being impaired
and have been included in the above tables.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

Credit Risk (Cont'd)
Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

Advances overdue but not impaired

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is

analysed as follows:

rEE
The Group
2013
AHRRE
3EAE BERA
FHEiB6{EA 6fE8 A {8
BHI3M@A Overdue for FBBIF
HET  six months Overdue g
Overdue for or less for one year HEB1F
three but over or less Overdue
months three but over for over gt
or less months  six months one year Total
BETT BETT BETR BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ZEEX Advances to customers
{EPN Personal
—1&18 - Mortgages 312,480 92 - 5,475 318,047
—EAR — Credit cards 9,243 543 - - 9,786
— HAth - Others 69,397 1,174 5,117 - 75,688
yNS] Corporate
—HEEN - Commercial loans 288,300 6,221 2,178 1,042 297,741
-BomE — Trade finance 9,882 - 477 - 10,359
=t Total 689,302 8,030 7,772 6,517 711,621
AEE
The Group
2012
BHIER
3@ AR BERB
TiEiE6fEA 6fE A
BEA3MEA  Overdue for  TEBBIFE
AT six months Overdue Pl
Overdue for or less  for one year i1 F
three but over or less Overdue
months three but over for over At
or less months  six months one year Total
BB BT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XEER Advances to customers
fAA Personal
— %45 - Mortgages 199,852 4,227 = 191 204,270
— Hit ~ Others 51,452 - - = 51,452
yNS] Corporate
EEER — Commercial loans 199,491 6,371 2 1 205,865
BOME — Trade finance 3,404 - - = 3,404
FE Total 454,199 10,598 2 192 464,991
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4. cHERER (5) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAMIRE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(b)  BERBEEL (&) (b)  Advances overdue but not impaired (Cont’d)
RRTT
The Bank
2013
BEEB
3f@A{E BHEB
FHiB6EA 6fE A
BH3EA Overdue for FBBIF
LT six months Overdue g
Overdue for or less for one year EB1F
three but over or less Overdue
months three but over for over @gt
or less months  six months one year Total
BT T BT T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
XEER Advances to customers
fAA Personal
— %15 - Mortgages 117,425 92 = 238 117,755
— Hit ~ Others 54,407 1,174 - - 55,581
yNS] Corporate
—HEER - Commercial loans 125,212 6,221 2,178 - 133,611
BOME — Trade finance 9,882 - 477 - 10,359
e Total 306,926 7,487 2,655 238 317,306
RRTT
The Bank
2012
HEE A
3fEAE HEE R
TiEiE6fEA 6fE A2
@WE3MEA  Overdue for  TERBIF
AT six months Overdue #E
Overdue for or less  for one year HBEF
three but over or less Overdue
months three but over for over st
or less months six months one year Total
BT BET T BT BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEHR Advances to customers
fEA Personal
— %45 - Mortgages 92,624 232 - = 92,856
—Hith - Others 31,863 - - - 31,863
NG Corporate
—HEER — Commercial loans 197,791 5,408 2 - 203,201
-~ BHRA - Trade finance 3,404 - = - 3,404
it Total 325,682 5,640 2 - 331,324
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4. EHERERE &)

www.ncb.com.hk

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

41 FERR (&)

(B) HEMREMKE (&)

(c)  BEEH

EERIBAIBEERIRER BRI OMAT :

(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances

Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed

by product type as follows:

AEE
The Group
2013 2012
EHmHE IR @ E
BEXR Market BER Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BT T BT T BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— &5 - Mortgages 27,341 30,941 18,111 19,217
— Hftg — Others 8,887 5,702 4,747 5,586
NC Corporate
—BEEX — Commercial loans 344,337 109,922 379,812 157,993
— B A — Trade finance 54,233 57,575 61,582 83,399
#Et Total 434,798 204,140 464,252 266,195
RBEBERIELE ZER Loan impairment allowances made
T B in respect of such advances 280,913 220,593
RERAT
The Bank
2013 2012
EHmTE EHRME
HWER Market BE R Market
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
BET T BET T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EFEX Advances to customers
& A Personal
— HAth — Others 6,227 3,412 777 -
N Corporate
—HEEEXK — Commercial loans 123,893 42,303 97,220 76,219
—BImE — Trade finance 26,712 8,177 36,125 17,017
st Total 156,832 53,892 134,122 93,236
MEBERIEEZER Loan impairment allowances made
T (B in respect of such advances 79,556 58,444

EFREEBEEEABER ZEMREHR -

The loan impairment allowances were made after taking
into account the value of collateral in respect of impaired

advances.
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4. EHERERE &)

41 FERR (&)
(B) HEFRAMIRE (&)
(c) JREE ()
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(c) Impaired advances (Cont’d)

BREREZESE As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no impaired

%5 o trade bills.
rEH
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT
HK$’'000 HK$'000
HELMBEFREBEENEFERZ Current market value of collateral held against
R (E the covered portion of such advances to customers 204,140 266,195
LB EAREECREPER Covered portion of such advances to customers 153,690 177,725
PR BB EECEFPER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 281,108 286,527
AR T
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
HELMBEFREBEENEFPERZ Current market value of collateral held against
AR (E the covered portion of such advances to customers 53,892 93,236
Lt ERERBECRFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 48,739 51,233
PR BB REECRFPER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 108,093 82,889

FEDRIREZZFERITAOT

Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed

as follows:

FEDRIREZ TS ERER

Gross classified or impaired advances to customers

BETEDBBREZEFENR
HEEPERLLEK

Gross classified or impaired advances to customers
as a percentage of gross advances to customers

shE B E SR IEE BT S 2 ESOR B2

Individually assessed loan impairment allowances
made in respect of such advances

EME

The Group
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
485,811 483,659
0.34% 0.37%
280,913 220,593
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4. SRIERER @) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.1 FERME (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMEE () (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
(c)  JREE (&) (©) Impaired advances (Cont'd)
AERT
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HEDHSREEFEREE Gross classified or impaired advances to customers 192,199 147,240
BEEESBEIREZEFER Gross classified or impaired advances to customers as
HRRFPERLE a percentage of gross advances to customers 0.21% 0.17%
MAERBEMEERF E 2 EFREXERE  Individually assessed loan impairment allowances
made in respect of such advances 79,556 58,444
BEIBEIRECRFEREREASEBRAEEDEN Classified or impaired advances to customers represent
R& ]~ TR 3 B8] B ER G RRERNER advances which are either classified as “substandard”,

“doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of loan
quality, or individually assessed to be impaired.

(d) BRI A3 A A 2 Bk (d) Advances overdue for more than three months
WHBEIEA A 2 ERABE AT ¢ The gross amount of advances overdue for more than three
months is analysed as follows:
AEE
The Group
2013 2012
HEFER HEFER
HWEEHDL BWEEDL
% of gross % of gross
&% advances to %%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
X EERLAEE Gross advances to customers
B8 : which have been overdue for:
— BiE3EAE — six months or less but over
TiEBB6fE A three months 197,953 0.14% 37,443 0.03%
— HiE6(E A E — one year or less but over
THBE1F six months 67,182 0.04% 101,388 0.08%
— BiE1F — over one year 126,102 0.09% 125,587 0.09%
B HA R B 31E A Advances overdue for over
ZER three months 391,237 0.27% 264,418 0.20%
o bz ERE Individually assessed loan
& B FEfh 2 B3R impairment allowances made

BB S in respect of such advances 266,765 121,444
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4. cEERERE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAMIRE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(d)  EEEEB3MEAZ B () (@) Advances overdue for more than three months (Cont'd)
RERAT
The Bank
2013 2012
HEFER HEFER
HWHEEHDL wWREHDL
% of gross % of gross
£%8 advances to £%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EEER®EE - Gross advances to customers
B8 : which have been overdue for:
— @BiE3E A 1B — six months or less but over
TiBiE6(E A three months 41,010 0.05% 23,086 0.03%
— HiR6(E A E — one year or less but over
A 1F six months 48,844 0.05% 9,707 0.01%
— fBiB1F — over one year 49,067 0.06% 25,591 0.03%
B HA R A 31 H Advances overdue for over
ZER three months 138,921 0.16% 58,384 0.07%
B _Eat 2 BRIE Individually assessed loan
BERIFE 2 ER impairment allowances made
TREZE in respect of such advances 68,315 21,359
AEE
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
HELMBEEFREBEENERPERZ Current market value of collateral held against
AR (E the covered portion of such advances to customers 201,240 611,086
LB EAREECEFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 145,200 150,371
Fa R R EECRPER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 246,037 114,047
ZRERAT
The Bank
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
LM BEEFREBEENERPENRZ Current market value of collateral held against
R (E the covered portion of such advances to customers 50,439 430,151
LB EAREECEFER Covered portion of such advances to customers 41,597 20,753

iR EEARBEZREFER Uncovered portion of such advances to customers 97,324 37,631
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4. EHERERE &)

4.1 FEERK (8)

(B) HEHREMEE (&)

(d) AL B3R B (&)
BHERSREERNERREEREARREFPETHGE
Qﬁéﬁu%%&&%@? EAREFETHEEREY

2013512318 &2012F12 A31H » AEE KR AKRITE
EafBE3EAZESEE -

www.ncb.com.hk

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(d) Advances overdue for more than three months (Cont’d)

Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is
principally represented by charges over business assets such
as commercial and residential premises for corporate loans
and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no trade
bills overdue for more than three months for the Group
and the Bank.

(e) AREAE (e) Rescheduled advances
AEE
The Group
2013 2012
EEEFER HRFER
HWEHDL wWEHDL
% of gross % of gross
£% advances to %%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T ST T
HK$'000 HK$'000
CEARFPERFHE Rescheduled advances to
(BIREER customers net of amounts
[@EfEEE3E A 2 included in “Advances overdue
B B5) for more than three months” 6,288 0.00% 11,039 0.01%
RERAT
The Bank
2013 2012
EEEERK HREEFER
HWEHDL WEHDL
% of gross % of gross
£%8 advances to €%  advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
KEHARFEHFHE Rescheduled advances to
(BEHREER customers net of amounts
[@EfERBE3E A < included in “Advances overdue
B B5) for more than three months” 6,288 0.01% 11,039 0.01%

MR2013F 12318 &2012F12A31H  RAKEHZR1T
REMSRMEEER

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no

rescheduled advances to banks and other financial
institutions.
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(B) HEFRAMERE ()

(e) AREBHEZ (&)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(e) Rescheduled advances (Cont’d)

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been
restructured or renegotiated because of deterioration in
the financial position of the borrower or of the inability
of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule.
Rescheduled advances, which have been overdue for more
than three months under the revised repayment terms,
are included in “Advances overdue for more than three

months”.
(") EFEARERE (f) Concentration of advances to customers
(i) ROIED BB ERBETE (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
LTERBEFPERBRE2IEDELN - HITEHETHSR The following analysis of the gross advances to customers
AHERRBAT & B RBE AR ?E/T\Ffﬁfﬁ% o by industry sector is based on the categories with reference
to the Completion Instructions for the HKMA return of loans
and advances.
A5H
The Group
201 {83514 A5
o =y =]
Lol 2R 2R
% Covered BERfE AEERE
7 BELE Individually ~ Collectively
BRAE  collateral HHE assessed  assessed
Gross orother  Classified B4 impairment impairment
advances security  or impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BT T T T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrRepE Industrial, commercial and financial
- NEER - Property development 2,216,959 49.42% - - - 9,953
- NERE - Property investment 12,296,487 86.23% 15,573 58,529 1,150 124,766
S - Financial concerns 2,819,772 13.24% - - - 8,427
- REEL - Stockbrokers 266,540 0.53% - - - 643
ﬁt?’f& Ex ~ Wholesale and retail trade 10,133,696 32.83% 67,961 109,124 19,731 79,617
— g% - Manufacturing 4,580,945 37.58% 39,580 43,157 24,498 43,219
- BHRERRE ~ Transport and transport equipment 3,944,329 13.50% 713 2,855 167 34,125
—KEED — Recreational activities 61,579 - - - - 159
— BRI ~ Information technology 2,051,533 1.76% 2,298 2,298 649 5,388
— Hip - Others 10,931,760 48.71% 19,871 26,902 8,016 70,296
EA Individuals
-BBEEBHENE . - Loans for the purchase of flats
WABE2RER in Home Ownership Scheme,
HEIREEEER Private Sector Participation Scheme
HEEFZER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 565,821 100.00% 3,178 14,067 - 302
- BEHMEENFE L - Loans for purchase of other
&% residential properties 9,902,944 99.91% 1,153 103,688 - 3,820
— Hfth - Others 4,807,678 47.61% 3,886 45,691 A 4,769
EEBFERZETEE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 64,580,043 55.38% 154,213 406,311 54,982 385,484
ZoRE Trade finance 8,345,348 26.31% 54,710 64,592 34,580 60,959
EBRIMER 2 ER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 70,616,652 41.43% 276,888 654,409 191,351 740,572
REETEE Gross advances to customers 143,542,043 46.83% 485,811 1,125,312 280,913 1,187,015
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4. cHERER (5) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 FERKE (&#) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont'd)
(f) EFEENERE (E) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) RITEN B RPERBRE (B) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
KEE
The Group
2012
BRAREE {ERFEE HAETE
ZAR ZER ZER
% Covered EEE EER
®F by HENE Individually  Collectively
B collateral SR E assessed assessed
Gross or other Classified @E  impairment  impairment
advances security  or impaired Overdue  allowances  allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBEAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEmE Industrial, commercial and financial
S ES I - Property development 1,779,675 43.52% - - - 7,646
- MERE - Property investment 12,173,523 83.05% 6,534 152,920 - 142,096
] ~ Financial concerns 1,626,879 62.05% - - - 19,981
-RELL - Stockbrokers 17,427 13.88% - - - 274
-WERTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 12,832,343 47.65% 43,097 60,639 19,815 103,771
—REX - Manufacturing 3,735,230 40.35% 20,906 41113 8,983 42,651
— ER LERRE - Transport and transport equipment 5,271,838 14.44% 1,027 312 217 59,638
— KEEE - Recreational activities 66,779 - - - - 690
— &R — Information technology 2,290,103 1.45% 2,164 2,164 599 6,225
—Hft - Others 8,408,000 50.38% 19,713 43,616 2,319 44,934
BA Individuals
- BEREAHREHE - - Loans for the purchase of flats
IWABELZRER in Home Ownership Scheme,
AEREEEAR Private Sector Participation Scheme
FTEIFCER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 703,350 100.00% 3,015 17,512 = 378
-BEEMEENEL ~ Loans for purchase of other
B3 residential properties 10,623,638 99.97% 1,725 75,344 - 4,263
—Hit - Others 3,006,246 70.51% 2,526 9,517 788 1,572
EEBER ERER Total loans for use in Hong Kong 62,535,031 60.75% 105,707 403,137 32,721 434,119
B5mE Trade finance 5,992,781 34.60% 61,582 62,454 42,165 54,299
ERBUIME R 2 ET Loans for use outside Hong Kong 62,625,297 35.95% 316,370 443,749 145,707 481,031
REE M Gross advances to customers 131,153,109 47.72% 483,659 909,340 220,593 969,449
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4. cHERER (5) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 FERME (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEHREMEE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(f) EFEMERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) RITEN B RPERBRE (B) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
ARAT
The Bank
2013
P Er T ﬁﬂﬂ??iﬁ .‘kﬁé?ﬂfﬁ
SEAH ZER ZER
% Covered RERRE RERRE
by ~HER Individually ~ Collectively
EXHE  ollateral HAE assessed  assessed
Gross or other Classified @Y impairment impairment
advances security or impaired Overdue allowances allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERERZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
BN Industrial, commercial and financial
- NEEE ~ Property development 2,216,959 49.42% - - - 9,953
—MERE - Property investment 12,296,487 86.23% 15,573 58,529 1,150 124,766
A - Financial concerns 2,819,772 13.24% - - - 8,427
- REEY - Stockbrokers 266,540 0.53% - - - 643
- RERTEX - Wholesale and retail trade 10,133,696 32.83% 67,961 109,124 19,731 79,617
—BUEX - Manufacturing 4,580,945 37.58% 39,580 43,157 24,498 43,219
- BHRERRE ~ Transport and transport equipment 3,910,573 13.49% 713 2,855 167 33,755
- KBES — Recreational activities 61,579 - - - - 159
— BB ~ Information technology 2,051,533 1.76% 2,298 2,298 649 5,388
— Hfty - Others 10,931,759 48.71% 19,871 26,902 8,016 70,296
(N Individuals
~BEEBEBHEE . - Loans for the purchase of flats
IARBELEEE in Home Ownership Scheme,
SEIRMEELRRE Private Sector Participation Scheme
SHEBTZER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 565821  100.00% 3,178 14,067 - 302
-BEHMEENF L ~ Loans for purchase of other
B residential properties 9,902,944 99.91% 1,153 103,688 - 3,820
- Hft - Others 4,807,678 47.61% 3,886 45,691 m 4,769
EEBFERCERBE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 64,546,286 55.40% 154,213 406,311 54,982 385,114
BHRE Trade finance 6,902,201 28.82% 27,189 37,071 16,296 45,249
EEBUIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 18,142,642 20.73% 10,797 11,168 8,278 165,612
EEET#E Gross advances to customers 89,591,129 46.33% 192,199 454,550 79,556 595,975
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4. cHERER (5) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAMIRE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(1) EFEENERE (E) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) RITEN B RPERBRE (B) (i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
KT
The Bank
2012
BRAREE AT AT
ZEM ZER ZEH
% Covered EEE EEE
®F by HENE Individually  Collectively
B collateral SR E assessed assessed
Gross or other Classified @E  impairment  impairment
advances security  or impaired Overdue  allowances  allowances
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBEAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THEmE Industrial, commercial and financial
- MEER — Property development 1,779,675 43.52% - - - 7,646
—MERE — Property investment 12,173,523 83.05% 6,534 152,920 - 142,096
- SR% - Financial concerns 1,626,879 62.05% - = = 19,981
-kREEL - Stockbrokers 17,427 13.88% - - - 274
-BERTESX — Wholesale and retail trade 12,832,343 47.65% 48,097 60,639 19,815 103,771
—EER - Manufacturing 3,735,230 40.35% 20,906 41113 8,983 42,651
- ERRERZE — Transport and transport equipment 5,233,212 14.55% 1,027 312 217 59,319
— KEES — Recreational activities 66,779 - - - - 690
— BB - Information technology 2,290,103 1.45% 2,164 2,164 599 6,225
—Hft - Others 8,408,000 50.38% 19,713 43,616 2,319 44,934
BA Individuals
- BEEBEHBLEE . - Loans for the purchase of flats
LABELRER in Home Ownership Scheme,
AEREEEAR Private Sector Participation Scheme
SERTZER and Tenants Purchase Scheme 703,350 100.00% 3,015 17,512 - 378
-BEEMEENEL — Loans for purchase of other
B residential properties 10,623,638 99.97% 1,725 75,344 - 4,263
—Hfty - Others 3,006,246 70.51% 2,526 9,517 788 1,572
EEBFRERBE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 62,496,405 60.79% 105,707 403,137 32,721 433,800
BORE Trade finance 4,931,864 35.22% 36,125 36,997 25,723 45,616
TEEBIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 17,635,061 17.38% 5,408 5,408 - 111,767
XEEHEE Gross advances to customers 85,063,330 50.31% 147,240 445,542 58,444 591,183
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

The amount of new impairment allowances charged to the

EE N income statement, and classified or impaired loans written
off during the year are shown below:
r£EH
The Group
2013 2012
M ELE WeHRE D
RREEX FREER
FiEREERE Classified  #IRRE%EE Classified
New or impaired New or impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BETT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EERERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
THemE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEEE — Property investment 1,954 738 29,103 99
—SRE - Financial concerns = = 11,267 -
- RELL ~ Stockbrokers 36 - 257 -
—HBRTEE - Wholesale and retail trade 11,310 7,449 22,910 4,337
—BUER - Manufacturing 7,211 2,841 11,775 1,766
— B LB RE — Transport and transport equipment 210 - 41,032 -
—KEEE - Recreational activities - - 485 -
— BB — Information technology 70 - 3,045 -
— Hith - Others 8,679 2,152 11,112 605
EA Individuals
— Hfd - Others 9,467 6,747 - -
EREBFERzEREE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 38,937 19,927 130,986 6,807
BIRE Trade finance 11,337 2,556 53,548 2,649
EERIMERZER Loans for use outside Hong Kong 383,201 137,691 231,122 378
REEHEE Gross advances to customers 433,475 160,174 415,656 9,834
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4. EHERERE &)

41 FERR (&)

(B) HEMREMKE (&)
(M EFENEFE (&)
(i) BROIES Bz RPERERE (B)

4.1
(B)
(f)

www.ncb.com.hk

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk (Cont'd)
Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

BT
The Bank
2013 2012
WeEBEDE MeHRE DL
HEEER SOREER
FEERBEERE Classified  FIEREERE Classified
New or impaired New or impaired
impairment loans impairment loans
allowances written off allowances written off
BETT BETT BETTT BETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBERAZER Loans for use in Hong Kong
TrEsmsE Industrial, commercial and financial
—MEHRE — Property investment 1,954 738 29,103 99
e ~ Financial concerns - = 11,267 =
—RRELRL — Stockbrokers 36 = 257 =
—-HERTEX — Wholesale and retail trade 11,310 7,449 22,910 4,337
— BlEx - Manufacturing 7,211 2,841 11,775 1,766
- BHREGRE — Transport and transport equipment 77 - 40,950 -
— KEVEE - Recreational activities = = 485 -
— AR — Information technology 70 = 3,045 =
— Hf — Others 8,679 2,152 11,112 605
EA Individuals
— Hf - Others 9,467 6,747 - -
EERERAZEFEE Total loans for use in Hong Kong 38,804 19,927 130,904 6,807
HH5RE Trade finance 5,688 2,556 35,630 2,649
RS AIME A 2 B3R Loans for use outside Hong Kong 10,243 - 58,653 =
XEEHESE Gross advances to customers 54,735 22,483 225,187 9,456
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4. EHERERE &)

41 FERR (&)

(B) HEFRAMIRE (&)

(1) EEEHEPE (&)

(ii) BB RIN DBz B ERAREE
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

() Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers

The following geographical analysis of advances to customers

is based on the location of the counterparties, after taking

into account the transfer of risk. For an advance to customer

guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from

the customer, the risk will be transferred to the country of
the guarantor.

EFEEREE Gross advances to customers
AEE
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 71,198,417 67,584,057
R A Mainland of China 66,923,361 58,393,561
EH At Others 5,420,265 5,175,491
143,542,043 131,153,109
ARER1T
The Bank
2013 2012
BET T BT TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 66,697,103 63,543,928
R B A Mainland of China 18,605,455 17,048,232
Hih Others 4,288,571 4,471,170

89,591,129 85,063,330
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4. EHERERE &)

4.1 =ERR (&)

(B) HEHRAMIEE ()

(7) EFEMERE (&)

(ii) BB EESE s RFERERE (8)

EFERBE (B)
REFERABFESTEZERREER

www.ncb.com.hk

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

() Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

Gross advances to customers (Cont'd)

Collectively assessed loan impairment allowances in
respect of the gross advances to customers

AEME
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 463,692 480,016
R B Mainland of China 633,469 430,812
HAh Others 89,854 58,621
1,187,015 969,449
RERIT
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 406,112 429,488
R B b Mainland of China 155,014 130,398
HAb Others 34,849 31,297
595,975 591,183




www.ncb.com.hk

#17% 7% 441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

B R P AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

4. cEERERE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) HEFRAMIRE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
(1) EFEENERE (E) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) ZiE RSB BFERRRE (&) (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BHER Overdue advances
AEE
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 422,834 472,042
R B A3 Mainland of China 659,877 433,690
HAfth Others 42,601 3,608
1,125,312 909,340
RERIT
The Bank
2013 2012
BET T BT TT
HK$’000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 399,093 405,112
A [ A 3t Mainland of China 43,917 40,430
H At Others 11,540 _
454,550 445,542
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4. EHERERE &)

4.1 =ERR (&)

(B) HEHRAMIEE ()

(7) EFEMERE (&)

(ii) BB EESE s RFERERE (8)

BMER (E)
A & RAMEE B R 2 ERREER

www.ncb.com.hk

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

Overdue advances (Cont'd)

Individually assessed loan impairment allowances in
respect of the overdue advances

REE
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 50,989 93,005
rh B 9 3 Mainland of China 217,507 123,297
HAith Others 4,377 =
272,873 216,302
ARIRAT
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 46,567 35,992
FhR B A 3, Mainland of China 21,953 18,161
HAith Others 4,257 =

72,777 54,153
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4. EHERERE &)

4.1 =ERR (&)

(B) HEHRAMIEE ()

(7) EFEMERE (&)

(ii) BB EESE s RFERERE (8)

BMER (E)
RAREREASTEZERREER
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4,

4.1
(B)
(f)
(ii)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Credit Risk (Cont'd)
Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)
Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

Overdue advances (Cont'd)

Collectively assessed loan impairment allowances in
respect of the overdue advances

AEME
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 8,155 3,916
Fh B A 4B Mainland of China 3,632 1,690
HAth Others 238 1
12,025 5,617
RERAT
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 8,016 3,713
FhR B A 3, Mainland of China 35 496
HAith Others 57 =

8,108 4,209
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. EHERERE &)

41 FERR (&)
(B) HEFRAMIRE (&)

www.ncb.com.hk

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) EFEMERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(i) ZiE RSB BFERRRE (&) (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)
BESERRBEEM Classified or impaired advances
TEH
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 154,186 180,495
FR B A Mainland of China 324,675 303,164
Hih Others 6,950 -
485,811 483,659
R 1T
The Bank
2013 2012
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 148,681 120,531
AR Mainland of China 36,707 26,709
B Others 6,811 -

192,199 147,240
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4.1
(B)
(M
(ii)

cHERER (5)

FERRE (&)

REFRAMEKRE (&)
EFENEFE (&)

BB RSO BB ERERE (F)

BESEIREER (F)
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)
(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

Classified or impaired advances (Cont'd)

Individually assessed loan impairment allowances in
respect of the classified or impaired advances

REE
The Group
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 57,768 95,512
rh B 9 3 Mainland of China 218,768 125,081
HAith Others 4,377 =
280,913 220,593
ARIRAT
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 53,345 38,498
FhR B A 3, Mainland of China 21,954 19,946
HAith Others 4,257 =

79,556 58,444
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. cHERER (5) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 EERB (8 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)

(B) HEFRAMIRE (&) (B)  Gross advances and other accounts (Cont’d)

(f) EFEMERE (&) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (Cont’d)

(i) ZiE RSB BFERRRE (&) (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers
(Cont'd)

BESEIREER (F)

Classified or impaired advances (Cont'd)

REEIESREEREEES T E2ERREERE Collectively assessed loan impairment allowances in

respect of the classified or impaired advances

rEE
The Group
2013 2012
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 2,298 193
PR Ay 3, Mainland of China 39 392
2,337 585
ARIRAT
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
B Hong Kong 2,297 108
2,297 108
Q) WEIEE (C)  Repossessed assets

RERA - ANEE R AN ER1T 8038 £ 8 0 17 (7 Uk 5] & 2= i BY During the year, the Group and the Bank obtained assets by
BWRI2ANBRENEE - HEERREERMNT taking possession of collateral held as security. The nature

and carrying value of such assets held as at 31 December
are summarised as follows:

FEE AIRAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BET T BT
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
TEYE Industrial properties 2,790 4,644 2,790 4,644
FEME Residential properties 19,494 12,198 15,300 12,198

22,284 16,842 18,090 16,842
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(C) Repossessed assets (Cont’d)

The estimated market value of repossessed assets held
by the Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2013
amounted to HK$38,822,000 (2012: HK$24,229,000) and
HK$34,250,000 (2012: HK$21,581,000) respectively. They
comprise properties in respect of which the Group and
the Bank has acquired access or control (e.g. through
court proceedings or voluntary actions by the proprietors
concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of
the borrowers.

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into
cash, the Group may consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices
- selling the loans together with the assets
- arranging loan restructuring

(D) Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions

The following tables present an analysis of balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions that
are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
rating agency designation.

AEE
The Group
2013
A3LLTR

AaaZA3 Lower LR et
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT T BT T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
HR R ERTT Central banks 17,068,323 - - 17,068,323
RIT R E A B E Banks and other financial institutions ~ 15,178,049 20,416,998 12,536,250 48,131,297
32,246,372 20,416,998 12,536,250 65,199,620

REE

The Group
2012
A3

AaaZA3 Lower AR @t
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HRRERTT Central banks 13,139,030 - - 13,139,030
WITRE M S EEE Banks and other financial institutions 24,276,860 12,304,614 7,725,531 44,307,005
37,415,890 12,304,614 7,725,531 57,446,035
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www.ncb.com.hk

4. cHERER (5) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
41 EERE (8) 4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(D) TEIRITRAMZEEERAGR 75 (48) (D)  Balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions (Cont’d)
RIRAT
The Bank
2013
A3LLT
AaaZA3 Lower TR #at
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
HRRERTT Central banks 853,838 - - 853,838
BT REM S REKE Banks and other financial institutions 6,302,846 8,051,195 4,899,332 19,253,373
7,156,684 8,051,195 4,899,332 20,107,211
ARIRIT
The Bank
2012
A3LAT
AaaZEA3 Lower A P
Aaa to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i gRT Central banks 35,306 - - 35,306
BITREM S EEE Banks and other financial institutions 16,135,722 5,524,320 1,259,564 22,919,606
16,171,028 5,524,320 1,259,564 22,954,912

MR2013F12H31H %2012F12A31H » RARES#E 2

RITREMERBBERITR -

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no overdue
or impaired balances and placements with banks and other
financial institutions.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit

TRANBITHRS T ZEBRS RIFHEREE - £ER The following tables present an analysis of the carrying value
TRRBIERT - AERETANTRRSE - of debt securities and certificates of deposit by issue rating.
In the absence of such issue ratings, the ratings designated
for the issuers are reported.
AEE
The Group
2013
A3LLR
Aa1ZAa3 AZA3 Lower BIR st
Aaa Aaf to Aa3 A1 to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BT T BET T BT BT BETT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
A ERS Available-for-sale securities 895,932 18,002,312 15,328,029 445,839 5,266,560 39,938,672
HEEIMAZS Held-to-maturity securities - 585,144 - 298 - 585,442
ER R Loans and receivables - - 1,008,897 - 675,167 1,684,064
AEEELEA Financial assets at fair value
B eREE through profit or loss 624 3,665,412 498,657 - - 4,164,693
st Total 896,556 22,252,868 16,835,583 446,137 5,941,727 46,372,871
K&E
The Group
2012
AT
AalEAa3 A1ZA3 Lower EAR st
Aaa  Aalto Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BETT BT BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A EES Available-for-sale securities 649,815 20,427,584 12,120,299 205,282 4,901,735 38,304,715
BREIHAES Held-to-maturity securities - 884,701 585,679 896 250 1,471,526
BRI Loans and receivables = = 199,891 = 957,371 1,157,262
AEEELEA Financial assets at fair value
BnceREE through profit or loss 621 4,271,737 581,712 271,090 - 525,160
5 Total 650,436 25,584,022 13,487,581 477,268 5,859,356 46,058,663
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4. EHERERE &)

41 FERR (&)
(E) EREZRZRE (B)

www.ncb.com.hk

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.1 Credit Risk (Cont'd)
(E) Debt securities and certificates of deposit

(Cont’d)
ARRAT
The Bank
2013
AL T
Aa1ZAa3 A1ZA3 Lower EE @t
Aaa Aafl to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BET T BT T BT T BT T BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
AL EES Available-for-sale securities 895,932 14,633,726 14,733,437 445,839 3,944,717 34,653,651
HEZHHRES Held-to-maturity securities - - - 298 - 298
SRR EWT Loans and receivables = - 1,008,897 - 675,167 1,684,064
NFEEZEETA Financial assets at fair value

Ba eREE through profit or loss 624 3,665,412 498,657 - - 4,164,693
oy Total 896,556 18,299,138 16,240,991 446,137 4,619,884 40,502,706

ART

The Bank
2012
A3LAT
Aa1ZEAa3 A1ZEA3 Lower mTR et
Aaa  Aal to Aa3 Al to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT BETT BT BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A EES Available-for-sale securities 649,815 15,972,027 12,120,299 205,282 3,151,827 32,099,250
FAEZIHBEES Held-to-maturity securities - - 585,679 896 250 586,825
BRI Loans and receivables - - 199,891 = 957,371 1,157,262
AFEEEEA Financial assets at fair value

BaZeREE through profit or loss 621 4,271,737 581,712 271,090 - 5,125,160
amat Total 650,436 20,243,764 13,487,581 477,268 4,109,448 38,968,497

2013512318 &2012F12A31H @ RARES B 2

EEE S RIFHE °

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no impaired
or overdue debt securities and certificates of deposit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of loss arising from movements
in the value of foreign exchange, commodity, interest rate
and equity positions held by the Group due to the volatility
of financial market price (debt security price/interest rate,
foreign exchange rate, equity price, commodity price). The
Group adopts a moderate market risk appetite to achieve a
balance between risk and return.

The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure
healthy growth of the treasury business, by effective
management of potential market risk in the Group’s business,
according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy
of treasury business on the basis of a well established risk
management regime and related management measures.

In accordance with the Group’s corporate governance
principles in respect of risk management, the Board and Risk
Management Committee, the Management and functional
units perform their duties and responsibilities to manage
the Group’s market risk. The risk management units are
responsible for assisting the Management to monitor the
market risk profile and compliance of management policies
and limits of the Group to ensure that aggregate and
individual market risks are within the acceptable level.
Independent units are assigned to monitor the risk exposure
against risk limits on a daily basis, together with profit and
loss reports submitted to the Management on a regular
basis, while limit excesses should be reported at once when
they occur. NCB (China) sets up independent risk monitoring
teams to monitor daily market risk and limit compliance, and
submit management information and reports to the Bank on
a regular basis.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to
identify, measure, monitor and control market risk. Major
risk indicators and limits established include but are not
limited to VAR, Stop Loss, Open Position, Stress Testing
and Sensitivity Analysis (Basis Point Value), etc. To meet
management requirements, major risk indicators and limits
are classified into four levels, and are approved by Risk
Management Committee, Asset and Liability Management
Committee or the Management respectively. Treasury
business units are required to conduct their business within
approved market risk indicators and limits.
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4. EHERERE &)

4.2 TWHEER (&)

(A) EEE
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www.ncb.com.hk

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(A) VAR

The Group uses the VAR to measure and report general
market risk to Risk Management Committee and the
Management on a periodic basis. The Group adopts a
uniformed VAR calculation model, using historical simulation
approach and 2-year historical data, to calculate the VAR of
the Group over 1-day holding period with 99% confidence
level, and sets up the VAR limit of the Group.

The following table sets out the VAR for all general market
risk exposure! of the Group.

F145 M2A318 255BHE 25558E 25V9%E
At Minimum for Maximum for  Average for
Year 31 December the year the year the year
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2HMIHER 2 ERE VAR for all market risk 2013 1,294 1,294 2,982 2,196
2012 2,095 1,188 2,814 2,232
& X @b 2 AR E VAR for foreign exchange risk 2013 1,191 1,191 3,047 2,196
2012 2,007 1,150 2,774 2,171
=@ 2 Bk E VAR for interest risk 2013 502 117 635 268
2012 256 148 534 251

TR Notes:
1 NEEINEAB RO K RBRE - —RTIZERER2013F K HB 1 Structural FX positions have been excluded. In 2013, all general

FELLH BT UEBERRR

market risk exposure are presented on the Group basis, comparative

amounts are presented on the same basis accordingly.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(A) VAR (Cont’d)

Although VAR is a valuable guide to risk, it should always be
viewed in the context of its limitations. For example:

- the use of historical data as a proxy for estimating
future events may not encompass all potential events,
particularly those which are extreme in nature;

- the use of a one-day holding period assumes that
all positions can be liquidated or hedged in one day.
This may not fully reflect the market risk especially
at times of severe illiquidity, when a one-day holding
period may be insufficient to liquidate or hedge all
positions fully;

- the use of a 99% confidence level, by definition, does
not take into account losses that might occur beyond
this level of confidence; and

- VAR is calculated on the basis of exposures
outstanding at the close of business and therefore
does not necessarily reflect intra-day exposures.

The Group recognises these limitations by formulating stress
test indicators and limits to assess and manage the market
risk uncovered by VAR. The stress testing programme of
the market risk includes sensitivity testing on changes in
risk factors with various degrees of severity, as well as
scenario analysis on historical events including the 1997
Asian Financial Crisis and 2008 Financial Tsunami, etc.

(B) Currency risk

The Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in major
currencies, particularly the HK dollar, the US dollar and
Renminbi. To ensure the currency risk exposure of the Group
is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position and
VAR limit) are used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover,
the Group seeks to minimise the gap between assets and
liabilities in the same currency. Foreign exchange contracts
(e.g. FX swaps) are usually used to manage FX risk associated
with foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Currency risk (Cont’d)

The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank’s
exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk as at
31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and
liabilities at carrying amounts in HK dollars equivalent,
categorised by the original currency.

558
The Group
2013
AE i3
N n B BE  Japanese Pound A @it
Renminbi ~ US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
AeTn  AMTn  A¥TR  B¥Tn  AMTn AETn AMTn B¥TR
HK$'000  HKS'000 HKS'000  HKS$'000 HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
ERRERERBTR Cash and balances with banks and
e paRa L other financial institutions 37,895965 3,302,233 3031355 287,59 76,650 4335 102,166 44,739,319
ERTRAM SRR Placements with banks and other financial
—ETZEARE institutions maturing between one and
EHEN twelve months 20,497,328 846,672 - - - - - 21,344,000
NFEE G NER Y Financial assets at fair value through
SRHAE profit or loss - 498657 3,666,036 = = - - 4,164,693
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments 95,469 15,990 396,994 - - - - 508,453
ENRAMER Advances and other accounts 46,507,717 43,888,535 64,276,248 391,263 34,633 11410 206,945 155,316,751
FERE Investment in securities
— A EES - Available-for-sale securities 14,477,805 6,151,826 11,191,446 780,426 - - 1,401,134 40,002,637
- HERIERES ~ Held-to-maturity securities 585,144 - 298 - o - - 58544
-t ~ Loans and receivables 833,378 850,686 - - - - - 1,684,064
RENE Investment properties 48,428 - 1,126,510 - - - - 1174938
VERETINE Properties, plant and equipment 777,270 3467 6,188,500 - - - - 6,969,237
EWEE (AEERRAEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 309,581 49,808 3,532,919 399 1 6 1,706 3,894,426
EEfE Total assets 122,028,085 55,607,874 93,410,306 1,459,682 111,290 54,772 7,711,951 280,383,960
& Liabilities
RORA SRR, Deposits and balances from banks and
k&R other financial institutions 17,115,023 9,846,139 1,340,154 72,617 4,195 3290 464,611 28,846,029
NEERGIARRY Financial liabilites at fair value through
LRARE profit or loss - - 4433736 - - - - 4433736
THEERIA Derivative financial instruments 92,363 59,342 191,451 - - - - 343,156
ZERH Deposits from customers 82,735,748 30,587,345 75,681,802 2,254,533 211,583 922,912 5,766,494 198,160,417
EfEEREE (B Other accounts and provisions (including
ERTBERELHAAR) current and deferred tax liabilites) 10,488,966 1,026,354 4,607,189 57,944 32,756 1,391 86,033 16,300,633
SRS Total liabilities 110,432,100 41,519,180 86,254,332 2,385,094 248,534 927593 6,317,138 248,083,971
BEBERETAE Net on-balance sheet position 11,595,985 14,088,694 7155974  (925412)  (137,44)  (872.821) 1,394,813 32,299,989
FIMEEBRETEE Off-balance sheet net notional position* (4,137,873) (12,082,047) 15842217 929725 138070 873,190  (1,347921) 215361
B ERAE Contingent liabilities and commitments 58,871,709 30,613,919 20,015,614 566,451 54,213 8,978 15,232 110,146,116
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4. cHERER (5) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.2 THiEEK (&) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) SMNEREE: (4B) (B)  Currency risk (Cont’d)
pis— |
The Group
2012
AE it
ARE ey AL BIE  Japanese Pound =) @it
Renminbi ~ USDollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
AT AETr  ABTR  AETr B Tr BETrn #ETn T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
gE Assets
EEREREHBIR Cash and balances with banks and
EheBlmRnER other financial institutions 30,049,216 1,858532 6814663 428490 106430 613309 917,680 40,788,320
ARTREM S R Placements with banks and other financial
—ET-fAREZ institutions maturing between one and
EHEH twelve months 14226915 2272850 809,179 - - - - 17,308944
ATER(LTABRZ Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss - T8 4272358 - - - 79981 5,125,160
ik Derivative financial instruments 113918 3910 646,749 - - - - 764577
B REMER Advances and other accounts 41,84919 31387484 64596843 377,712 84,599 12113 289,015 138,032,685
BHERE Investment in securities
- ML ERS - Available-for-sale securities 9199442  7,715820 12651215 785618 1468167 15128 6525471 38,360,861
-RREIHHER - Held-to-maturity securities 884,701 464,743 1,146 - = - 12093 1,471,526
- B REW - Loans and receivables 1,157,262 - - - - - - 1,157,262
Ranz Investment properties 47,413 - 979670 - - - - 1,027,083
% BHRxE Properties, plant and equipment 763,834 4276 5456385 - - - - 6,224,995
EMEE (EETHEEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 238635 223,760 1,024,881 6 2,554 4 2,185 1,492,025
EEfE Total assets 97,966,255 44,0419 97,253,589 1591826 1661750 640,554 7,935,268 251,753,438
ff& Liabilities
kA e REES Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRis other financial institutions 1218559 7,171,977 785,576 21,639 15,116 7,868 74303 20,262,071
INTELL PN v Financial liabilties at fair value through
SRAR profit or loss - - 4975073 - - - - 4975073
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 82226 115,283 262,098 - - = - 459,607
EASI i Deposits from customers 66,697,901 31214436 77,772,653 2,083,241 153,534 741624 6,870,328 185,533,717
HRERER (24 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERHERETHEAR) current and deferred tax labilities) 7314706 892457 2,511,139 48,414 84,561 1723 56,749 10,909,749
BEEE Total liahilities 86,280425 39394153 86306539 2153294 253211 751215 7,001,380 222,140,217
BEBRRETARE Net on-balance sheet position 11685830 5310,043 10,947,050  (561468) 1408539  (110667) 933,888 29,613,221
FIEEREETHE Off-balance sheet net notional position* (4489,727) (3248,672) 9701784 567903 (1,406,739 114453 (846,095 392,907
JRBERRE Contingent liabilities and commitments 36,717,979 25800962 24,774,429 645,012 120,838 = 9,875 88,069,095
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4. cEERERE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
42 TWHERR (8) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) SMNEREE: (4B) (B)  Currency risk (Cont’d)
T
The Bank
2013
AE it
AR EY BT BE  Japanese Pound Ay @it
Renminbi ~ US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
BMTn  AETn  AMTn BMTn AT AETn AETn A¥Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
gE Assets
EFRERERSEIR Cash and balances with banks and
Hf iR other financial institutions 13761499 2,100,851 2504300 235431 47,250 17,118 83,585 18,840,334
EFTREMERER Placements with banks and other financial
—ET-[EAREIEL institutions maturing between one and
THEN twelve months - 1,858,262 - - - - - 1,858,262
NEERARRY Financial assets at fair value through
SRAE profit or loss - 498657 3,666,036 = = - - 4,164,693
fESRMIA Derivative financial instruments - 13,440 396,994 - - - - Mo43s
ERREMER Advances and other accounts 2,395,627 33,962,136 61,418,574 344,292 34,633 11,410 206,945 98,373,617
FHRE Investment in securities
- R ERS - Available-for-sale securities 9,192,784 6,151,826 11,191,446 780,426 - - 1,401,134 34,717,616
-REZIHEES - Held-to-maturity securities - - 298 - - - - 298
- B R - Loans and receivables 833,378 850,686 - - - - - 1,684,064
RENBLA Investment in subsidiaries 3,030,038 - 5,141,009 - = - - 8,171,067
RENE Investment properties - - 1,126,510 - - - - 1,126,510
VESETNE Properties, plant and equipment - 3,467 6,188,500 - - - - 6,191,97
EfAE Other assets 550 2,859 3,526,912 399 7 6 1706 3,532,439
BEAT Total assets 29213876 45,442,184 95250509 1,360,548 81,890 28,834 7,693,370 179,071,301
8f Liabilities
RTREMEBEEL Deposits and balances from banks and
FRER other financial institutions 2140690 3358178 1399295 100,521 7,539 7822 474246 7,488,291
NEEREHAERZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
LRAE profit or loss - - 4433736 - - - - 4,433,736
fTESRTA Derivative financial instruments - 56,863 191,451 - - - - 28,314
RERT Deposits from customers 25,779,819 24,834,671 72,183,662 2,101,770 181,948 893,395 5,749,321 131,724,586
HthBBRER (25 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERHERELHEAR) current and deferred tax liabiltes) 108830 457,151 4,555,742 8,24 29,666 1,301 81,237 5,242,169
SEaE Total liabilities 28,029,339 28,706,803 82,763,886 2,210,533 219,153 902,518 6,304,804 149,137,096
BEBERETFE Net on-balance sheet position 1,184,537 16,735,321 12,486,713 (849,985)  (137,263)  (873,684) 1,388,566 29,934,205
FIEEARATFE Off-balance sheet net notional position* 1655076 (14,852193) 12889029 854243 138070 873,190 (1342,053) 215362
FREERARE Contingent liabilities and commitments 259,936 10,495,869 19,684,741 183,512 24,311 1,015 699 30,650,143
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4. SRIERER @) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
42 TWHERR (8) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(B) SMNEREE: (4B) (B)  Currency risk (Cont’d)
iS5}
The Bank
2012
RE i
N ey BT BIE  Japanese Pound =) @it
Renminbi  US Dollars  HK Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
AETT  BETn  AETn ABTr  AETn BB #ETn B%Tn
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&E Assets
EEREREHBIR Cash and balances with banks and
EheBgEnE other financial institutions 12525861 975691 6337008 359911 64572 586813 908852 21,758,708
ERTREM S RkE Placements with banks and other financial
—E+-AANEE, institutions maturing between one and
EHER twelve months - T0243 809,179 - - - - 157942
ATHER A ABRL Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss - 772801 4272358 - - - 79981 5,125,160
fEERIE Derivative financial instruments - 2,954 646,749 - - - - 649,703
EHREMERE Advances and other accounts 3219607 23,639,146 62,322,872 354,192 80,856 12113 289,015 89,917,821
EHRE Investment in securities
- A HERS - Available-for-sale securities 2993977 7,715820 12,651,215 785,618 1,468,167 15128 6,525,471 32,155,396
-HERHERES ~ Held-to-maturity securities - 478 1,146 - - - 120936 586,825
-GV E - Loans and receivables 1,157,262 - - - - - - 1,157,260
RENBAR Investment in subsidiaries 3,030,038 - 5,141,029 - = - - 8,171,067
RENE Investment properties - - 979,670 - - - - 979,670
nE  EHREE Properties, plant and equipment - 4276 5,456,885 - - - - 5461161
EWEE (AEETRAEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 48219 844 1,017,063 6 9 4 2,185 1,068,330
EEfE Total assets 22974984 34346538 99635174 1499727 1,613,604 614,058 7,926,440 168,610,525
B Liabilities
SOREMSREL Deposits and balances from banks and
EaRER other financial institutions 439,855 2,859,023 742,677 14,040 15,109 12,757 90,370 4,173,831
NEERGARRY Financial liabilities at fair value through
SRR profit or loss - - 4975073 - - - - 4975073
i Derivative financial instruments - 114327 262,098 - - - - 376405
RERT Deposits from customers 17594501 26,480,371 74,571,116 1,919,414 138,846 709,223 6,765,029 128,178,500
EMEERER (BF Other accounts and provisions (including
ERHEREEREARE) current and deferred tax liabilities) 29806 465418 2471178 24,283 23,802 1723 55510 3,071,720
afE8E Total liabilities 18,064,162 29,919,139 83,022,142 1,957,737 177,757 723,703 6,910,909 140,775,549
BERRRATIE Net on-balance sheet position 4910822 4427399 16613032 (458010) 1435847  (109,645) 1015531 27,834,976
RNREARR AR Off-balance sheet net notional position* (1,852,324) (2480964) 6508735 464424 (1434003) 114453 (7414) 392907
ABERAE Contingent liabilities and commitments 57113 7,033803 24414935 145028 37,858 - 9,875 31,698,612
* OB EBBETHEEIINEITE SR T AN ZE A NEEFE - 4 * Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the net notional

EEEMTATERRREARBEARTZETEGHER -

amounts of foreign currency derivative financial instruments, which

are principally used to reduce the Group’s and the Bank’s exposure

to currency movements.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and
economic value arising from adverse movements in interest
rate and term structures of the bank’s asset and liability
positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures are
mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from
structural positions are:

- Repricing risk: mismatches in the maturity or repricing
periods of assets and liabilities that may affect net
interest income;

- Basis risk: different pricing basis for different
transactions resulting that the yield on assets and
cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
within the same repricing period;

- Yield curve risk: non-parallel shifts in the yield curve
that may have an adverse impact on net interest
income or economic value;

- Option risk: exercise of the options embedded in
assets, liabilities or off-balance sheet items that
can cause a change in the cash flows of assets and
liabilities.

The Group’s risk management framework also applies
to interest rate risk management. Asset and Liability
Management Committee exercises its oversight of interest
rate risk in accordance with “Banking Book Interest Rate
Risk Management Policy” approved by Risk Management
Committee. Financial Management Division is responsible for
interest rate risk management. With the cooperation of the
Treasury Division, Financial Management Division assists the
Asset and Liability Management Committee to perform day-
to-day interest rate risk management. Its roles include, but
are not limited to, the formulation of management policies,
selection of methodologies, setting of risk indicators and
limits, assessment of target balance sheet, monitoring of
the compliance with policies and limits, and submission of
interest rate risk management reports to the Management
and Risk Management Committee, etc.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group sets out interest rate risk indicators and limits
to identify, measure, monitor and control interest rate risk.
The indicators and limits include, but are not limited to,
repricing gap limits, basis risk, duration, price value of a
basis point (PVBP), net interest income sensitivity ratio (NII),
economic value sensitivity ratio (EV), etc. The indicators and
limits are classified into three levels, which are approved
by the Risk Management Committee, Asset and Liability
Management Committee and Deputy General Manager of
Middle-office respectively. Risk-taking business units are
required to conduct their business within the boundary of
the interest rate risk limits. Before launching a new product
or business in the banking book, the relevant departments
are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying interest rate risk and
consideration of the adequacy of current risk monitoring
mechanism. Any material impact on interest rate risk noted
during the risk assessment process will be submitted to Risk
Management Committee for approval.

NIl and EV assess the impact of interest rate movement on
the Group's net interest income and capital base. They are
the Group’'s key interest rate risk indicators. The former
assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net interest
income as a percentage to the projected net interest income
for the year. The latter assesses the impact of interest rate
movement on economic value (i.e. the net present value of
cash flows of assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet items
discounted using market interest rate) as a percentage to the
latest capital base. Limits are set by the Risk Management
Committee on these two indicators to monitor and control
the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analyses and stress tests to assess
the banking book interest rate risk that the Group would face
under adverse circumstances. Scenario analyses and stress
tests are also devised to assess the impact on net interest
income and economic value arising from the optionality
of demand and savings deposits and the prepayment of
mortgage loans.
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Impact on net interest income over the
next twelve months at 31 December
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

The Group is principally exposed to HKD, USD and RMB in
terms of interest rate risk. As at 31 December 2013, if HKD,
USD and RMB market interest rates had been 100 basis
points higher with other variables held constant, the impacts
on net interest income over the next twelve months and on
reserves for the Group and the Bank would have been as
follows:

RI2A3MRHREENTE
Impact on reserves
at 31 December

58 KR 58 KRBT
The Group The Bank The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
BT BT BETr ABTr BETr ABTr B¥Tr A%
HEER Scenarios HKS$'000  HK$'000 ~HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000
BLZEMETTEH100EE  Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
HKD yield curves 232271 210914 198,455 177,966  (53,388) (55,265) (53,388)  (55,265)
FLEEHGTTLEH1005E  Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
USD yield curves (30,024) (23,706)  (35,681) (22,928) (100,832) (170,405) (100,832) (170,405)
ARBZEHETTEH100E2  Up 100 basis points parallel shift in
RMB yield curves (12,059) (225)  (74,957) (25,985) (263,101) (238,843) (154,352) (76,116)

A EEHEE RSN SWA LR EER2012F8M £
e FEANBTNEPREETRROER - BEXHOBET
IREBRETLRARBNEHAETSROEREMEE - [
B AIHEEEFREASRERRBER TREXHATE
EB100EEE - Bt gHREETRSAKEREERLD
EERERDEE T RENETRMAELEERRER
BAHMERE

AEBEINBENES @ HATEREENHERER  TERRE
ERNETI8E - HEEBSOMERIEEL  ER2ARR
ZERREBEATHERRBFZIMARLERE—HEART
KEFRI BB o 8 5IE M0 ER R R R < E ma R R
BISEMN - FREBUEMRKRAEE B RR A R -

The overall positive impact on Group’s net interest income of
the above currencies has slightly increased when compared
with 2012 and is mainly because of the widened short term
positive gaps in HKD but most of the impacts on HKD is
offset by the widened of short term negative gaps in USD
and RMB. Reserves would have been reduced because of the
expected reduction in valuation of available-for-sale portfolio
due to a parallel shift up of 100 basis point in the yield curve
(simulated scenario). The reduction of reserves is decreased
compared with 2012 because the duration of USD available-
for-sale portfolio is shortened.

The Group uses more severe assumptions when conducting
stress test, including a change in the correlation between
interest rates of relevant currencies, parallel movement of
interest rates, and that in the absence of actions that would
be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rates shock, all
positions are assumed to run to maturity and reprice or
mature simultaneously within a given time band. As the risk
is complicated by having optionality embedded in certain
products, behavioural assumptions are made to reflect more
accurately the interest rate risk exposures.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Market Risk (Cont'd)
Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

4.2
(9]
The tables below summarise the Group’s and the Bank’s
exposure to interest rate risk as at 31 December. Included in

the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity

dates.

REE
The Group
2013
-fiAR  -Z=fBA =Zt+=fiR -Z1f FitE
Upto 1 1t03 3to 12 1to5  EENE Non-interest a3t
month months months years Over 5 years bearing Total
BETT BETR BETT BETT BETR BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
ERRE RGERETR Cash and balances with banks and
HitSRBENES other financial institutions 43,239,550 - - - - 1,499,769 44,739,319
ERTREMSREE Placements with banks and other financial
—E+-EAREIEHZ institutions maturing between one and
EHEH twelve months - 10,324,490 11,019,510 - - - 21,344,000
NEERGABRLZ Financial assets at fair value through
EHEE profit or loss 296,487 704,859 2,901,993 261,354 - - 4,164,693
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 508,453 508,453
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts 95905202 24,502,236 29,683,287 5,037,156 183,445 5,425 155,316,751
BERE Investment in securities
- AHHERS - Available-for-sale securities 4,121,084  7,615224 10,198,263 16,543,097 1,461,004 63,965 40,002,637
- HBEIBRES ~ Held-to-maturity securities 298 - 585,144 - - - 585,442
- CGE ~ Loans and receivables 105,185 661,988 916,891 - - - 1,684,064
4L Investment properties - - - - - 1174938 1174938
mE - EREE Properties, plant and equipment - - = - - 6969237 6,969,237
EWEE (DEEERIEARE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 770 = = = - 3,893,656 3,804,426
EELE Total assets 143,668,576 43,808,797 55,305,088 21,841,607 1,644,449 14,115,443 280,383,960
U Liabilities
BIREAMERERZ Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRER other financial institutions 15,176,539 3,306,414 8,778,771 - - 1,584,299 28,846,029
NTEREABRL Financial liabilities at fair value through
cRER profit or loss 701,490 1,727,292 2,004,954 - - - 4433736
ESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 343,156 343,156
RFERH Deposits from customers 111,858,553 29,530,001 38,410,496 9,873,053 39,057 8,449,257 198,160,417
HitRERER (A5 Other accounts and provisions (including
ERRELEEHERE) current and deferred tax liabilities) 2,966,037 2,588,722 4,105,753 397,216 - 6,242,905 16,300,633
afEaE Total liabilities 130,702,619 37,152,429 53,299,980 10,270,269 39,057 16,619,617 248,083,971
FEgEERD Interest sensitity gap 12965957 6656368 2005108 11571338  1,605392  (2504,174) 32,299,989
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4. SRIERER @) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.2 TERAMR (&8) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(C)  FIEREE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)
A5E
The Group
2012
—fAR -2=ff =Et+-f@A —3HE T8
Uptol 1103 3012 1t05  AFME  Non-interest @it
month months months years  Over 5 years bearing Total
BB BETTL BETTL BB BETTL BETTL BETTL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
BERE REREAR Cash and balances with banks and
Hit S pkEntes other financial institutions 39,612,508 - = = - 1175812 40,788,320
ERTREMSREE Placements with banks and other financial
—2+-fARREIE institutions maturing between one and
EHEN twelve months - 7994913 9,314,031 - = - 17,308,944
DTEEARELZ Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 299,495 1,853,803 2,460,306 511,556 - - 5125160
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 764,577 764,577
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts 86,735,570 22,603,759 26,508,400 2,169,049 15,907 - 138,032,685
BHERE Investment in securities
- fHERS - Available-for-sale securities 3710026 9,752,899 9738231 12,168,070 2,935,489 56,146 38,360,861
- RAEZIMAZS - Held-to-maturity securities 593,661 312,381 - 565484 - - 1471526
-5 R Bl — Loans and receivables - 292,075 865,187 - - - 1,157,262
REME Investment properties = = = - - 1,027,083 1,027,083
EREEINE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 6224995 6,224,995
HWEE (RIEETREZE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) - - - - - 1,492,025 1,492,025
EESE Total assets 130,951,260 42,809,830 48,886,155 15,414,159 2,951,396 10,740,638 251,753,438
U Liabilities
BOREMERER L Deposits and balances from banks and
FRR&sH other financial institutions 6,943,862 4,961,018 7,014,546 = - 1,342,645 20,262,071
NEERABRL Financial liabilities at fair value through
cHER profit or loss 1419971 2,092,893 1,462,209 - - - 4,975,073
TEERIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 459,607 459,607
REER Deposits from customers 106,761,023 30,258,216 34,853,172 5,637,173 37,894 7,986,239 185,533,717
HBEREE (B Other accounts and provisions (including
ERRERELHARR)  curentand deferred tax liabilties) 1913225 1710360 3,349,599 24,653 13911911 10,909,749
aESE Total liabilities 117,038,081 39,022,487 46,679,526 5,661,826 37,895 13,700,402 222,140,217
MEGEERD Interest sensitivity gap 13913179 3,787,343 2,206,629 9,752,333 2,913,501  (2,959,764) 29,613,221
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
42 TWHERR (8) 4.2 Market Risk (Cont'd)
(C)  FIEREE (&) (C) Interest rate risk (Cont'd)
REAT
The Bank
2013
-AR -Z=fF =Z+=fA -Z5f T8
Upto1 1to3 3to0 12 1to5  EFMUE Non-interest &t
month months months years Over 5 years bearing Total
BETT BRI BRI BETT BBTR BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
BEREREHETR Cash and balances with banks and
Hit S R R A Ees other financial institutions 17,632,879 - - - - 1,207,455 18,840,334
ERIREbERE Placements with banks and other financial
—2+-fARREIE institutions maturing between one and
EHER twelve months - 1,527,931 330,331 - - - 1,858,262
AHEE(EABRL Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 296,487 704,859 2,901,993 261,354 - - 4,164,693
THEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 410,434 410,434
ERREMER Advances and other accounts 75,387,024 13,990,291 7,150,346 1,834,237 6,284 5435 98,373,617
BHERE Investment in securities
- AL EES - Available-for-sale securities 4121084 7,562,793 9,824,754 11,684,016 1,461,004 63,965 34,717,616
- RAZIEEES - Held-to-maturity securites 298 - - - = - 298
-5 REN - Loans and receivables 105,185 661,988 916,891 - - - 1,684,064
RERBAR Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - 8,171,067 8,171,067
N EVIES Investment properties - - - - - 1,126510 1,126,510
EREIETH Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 6191967 6,191,967
HEgE Other assets - - - - - 3532439 3,532,439
BEAE Total assets 97,542,957 24,447,862 21,124,315 13,779,607 1,467,288 20,709,272 179,071,301
8 Liabilities
FITREMSREE Deposits and balances of banks and
BRRER other financial institutions 4,198,955 561,061 1,096,468 - - 1,631,807 7,488,291
AEEZ{ G ABRY Financial liabilities at fair value through
SHER profit or loss 701,490 1,727,292 2,004,954 - - - 4,433,736
TESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 248,314 248,314
REEH Deposits from customers 86,849,459 18,627,211 16,800,148 993,900 - 8,453,868 131,724,586
AREREE (1 Other accounts and provisions (including
ENRERELRER & current and deferred tax liabilities) 438,109 - - - - 4,804,060  5242,169
BfEAE Total liabilities 92,188,013 20,915,564 19,901,570 993,900 - 15,138,049 149,137,096
HEgRERD Interest sensitvity gap 5354944 3532298 1222745 12785707 1,467,288 5571223 29,934,205
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.2

Market Risk (Cont'd)

(C) Interest rate risk (Cont’d)

R
The Bank
2012
—fAR -2=ff =Et+-f@A —3HE T8
Uptol 1103 3012 1t05  AFME  Non-nterest @it
month months months years  Over 5 years bearing Total
BB BETTL BETTL Vit R BETTL BETTL BETTL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
BERERENEIR Cash and balances with banks and
Hit S pkEntes other financial institutions 20,850,907 - = = = 907,801 21,758,708
ERTREMSREE Placements with banks and other financial
—=+-fARREIE institutions maturing between one and
EHER twelve months - 1,407,081 172,341 - = - 1579422
AHEE(EABRL Financial assets at fair value through
SREAE profit or loss 299,495 1,853,803 2,460,306 511,556 - - 5125160
fESRIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 649,703 649,703
ERREMER Advances and other accounts 70,446,666 12,860,187 5,093,960 1,517,008 - - 89,917,821
EHRE Investment in securities
- IftHEES - Available-for-sale securities 3,710,026 9,559,545 8,953,155  7597,728  2,278,7% 56,146 32,155,396
- RAZIMAZS - Held-to-maturity securities 465,389 120,936 - - - - 586,825
-5 Rl — Loans and receivables - 292,075 865,187 - - - 1,157,262
RAMERR Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - 8,171,067 8,171,067
RENE Investment properties - - - - - 979,670 979,670
NE - EMRRE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - 5461161  5461,161
it AE (REEEHRBEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) - - - - - 1,068330 1,068,330
BEAR Total assets 95,772,983 26,093,627 17,544,949 9626292  2278,7% 17,293,878 168,610,525
8% Liabilities
FIREMEREEL Deposits and balances of banks and
20 other financial institutions 1,699,668 142,039 955,453 - - 1376671 4,173,831
AHEE( T ABRZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SRER profit or loss 1419971 2,092,893 1,462,209 - - - 4975073
ITEERMIA Derivative financial instruments - - - - - 376,425 376,425
REE Deposits from customers 83,903,734 20,027,417 16,189,231 67,327 - 7,990,791 128,178,500
ARERER (R Other accounts and provisions (including
ERFERETHARRE) current and deferred tax liabilities) 463,446 - = = - 2608274 3,071,720
B8R Total liabilities 87,486,819 22,262,349 18,606,893 67,327 - 12,352,161 140,775,549
MEGRERD Interest sensitivity gap 8286,164 3831278  (1,061944) 9558965 227879 4941717 27834976
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient
funds to grow assets or pay due obligations, and need to
bear an unacceptable loss. The Group follows sound liquidity
risk appetite, to provide stable, reliable and adequate
sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and to survive with net
positive cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without
requesting HKMA to act as the lender of last resort.

The Group’s liquidity risk management objective is to
effectively manage the liquidity of on- and off-balance
sheet items with reasonable cost based on the liquidity
risk appetite to achieve sound operation and sustainable
profitability. Customer deposits are the Group’s primary
source of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of
funds are in place, the Group actively attracts new deposits,
keeps the core deposit and obtains supplementary funding
from the interbank market. According to different term
maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from
stressed scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure
(including loans, bonds investment, interbank placement,
etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets which provides
adequate funds in support of normal business needs and
ensure its ability to raise funds at a reasonable cost to
serve external claims in case of emergency. The Group is
committed to diversify the source of funds and the use
of funds to avoid excessive concentration of assets and
liabilities and prevent triggering liquidity risk due to the
break of funding strand when problem occurred in one
concentrated funding source. The Group has established
intragroup liquidity risk management guideline to manage
the liquidity funding among different entities within the
Group, and to restrict their reliance of funding on each
other. The Group also pays attention to manage liquidity
risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan
commitments and derivatives. The Group has overall liquidity
risk management strategy to cover the liquidity management
of foreign currency assets and liabilities, collaterals, intra-
day liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising
from other risks, etc., and has formulated corresponding
contingency plan.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
Risk Management Committee is the decision-making
authority of liquidity risk management, and assumes the
ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As
authorised by Risk Management Committee, Asset and
Liability Management Committee exercises its oversight of
liquidity risk and ensures the daily operations of the Group
are in accordance with risk appetite and policies as set
by Risk Management Committee. Financial Management
Division is responsible for overseeing the Group’s liquidity
risk. It cooperates with the Treasury Division to assist the
Asset and Liability Management Committee to perform
liquidity management functions according to their specific
responsibilities.

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators
and limits to identify, measure, monitor and control liquidity
risk on daily basis. Such indicators and limits include, but are
not limited to liquidity ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio, Maximum
Cumulative Cash Outflow (“MCO") and liquidity buffer asset
portfolio. The Group applies cash flow analysis to assess
the Group’s liquidity condition under normal conditions
and also performs liquidity stress test (including institution
specific crisis, general market crisis and combined crisis) at
least on monthly basis to assess the Group’s capability to
withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, Assets and
Liabilities Management System is developed to provide data
and generate regular management reports facilitating the
liquidity risk management duties.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

In accordance with the requirements of Supervisory Policy
Manual LM-2 “Sound Systems and Controls for Liquidity
Risk Management” issued by the HKMA in 2011, the
Group has embarked on refining the behaviour model and
assumptions of existing cash flow analysis and stress test to
enhance the Group’'s cash flow analysis under both normal
and stressed conditions which are implemented in 2013. In
cash flow analysis under normal circumstances, refinements
have been made to assumptions relating to on-balance sheet
items (such as customer deposits) and off-balance sheet
items (such as loan commitments). According to various
characteristics of the assets, liabilities and off-balance sheet
items, the Group forecasts the future cash flow based on
contractual maturity date and the assumptions of customer
behaviour and balance sheet changes. The Group establishes
MCO indicator which predicts the future 30 days maximum
cumulative net cash outflow in normal situations based
on the above assumptions, to assess if the Group has
sufficient financing capacity to meet the cash flow gap
in order to achieve the objective of continuing operation.
As at 31 December 2013, before taking the cash inflow
through the sale of outstanding marketable securities into
consideration, the Bank’s 30 day cumulative cash flow was
a net cash inflow, amounting to HK$4,658 million, and was
in compliant with the internal limit requirements.

In liquidity stress test, a new combined scenario which is a
combination of institution specific and general market crisis
has been set up to assess the Group's capability to withstand
a more severe liquidity crisis, with a more stringent set of
assumptions being adopted. Stress test assumptions include
the run-off rate of retail, wholesale and interbank deposits;
drawdown rate of loan commitments and trade-related
contingent liabilities; delinquency ratio and rollover rate
of customer loan; and haircut of interbank placement and
marketable securities. As at 31 December 2013, the Group
was able to maintain a positive cash flow under the three
stressed scenarios, indicating the Group has the ability to
meet financing needs under stressed conditions. In addition,
the Group has a policy in place to maintain an asset buffer
portfolio which includes high quality marketable securities
to ensure funding needs even under stressed scenarios. The
contingency funding plan is established which set out the
conditions to trigger the plan based on stress test results
and early warning indicators, the action plans and relevant
procedures and responsibility of various departments.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

In certain derivative contracts, counterparties have the right

to request the Group for additional collateral if they have
credit concerns on the Group's creditworthiness.

The Group's liquidity risk management also covers new
product or business development. Before launching a new
product or business, the relevant departments are required
to go through a risk assessment process, which includes the
assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of
the adequacy of the current risk management mechanism.
Any material impact on liquidity risk noted during the risk
assessment process will be reported to Risk Management
Committee for approval.

The Group has established a set of uniform liquidity risk
management policies. The principal banking subsidiary
develops its own liquidity management policies according
to its own characteristics, assumes its own liquidity
risk management responsibility, executes its daily risk
management processes independently, and reports to the
Group’s Management on a regular basis.

(A) Liquidity ratio

2013 2012
FHRENE & & Average liquidity ratio 47.80% 44.46%

FHRBDECHLERUARNRITFEAET A FORBDEDS LR
BEFHEFE -

=3

MBE S LR RARE CRITERH) PRI R IABFEE (A
REREENER) T8 -

The average liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average
of each calendar month’s average liquidity ratio of the Bank
for the year.

The liquidity ratio is computed on the solo basis (the Hong
Kong offices only) and is in accordance with the Fourth
Schedule to the Banking Ordinance.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(B) Maturity analysis

Tables below analyse assets and liabilities of the Group and

the Bank as at 31 December into relevant maturity groupings

based on the remaining period at balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date.

158
The Group
2013
08 -BAR -2=fR =Eft-fif -EEfF  EEHL
on  Uptot 1t03 3to 12 1105 Over5 7FEEAH szt
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
AeTr  AMTn  A¥TR  B¥Tn  B8Tn  AMTn AMTn B¥TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
ERRERERETR Cash and balances with banks and
g e other financial institutions 19,625,303 12,929,170 - - - - 12,184,806 44,739,319
ERRAMEREE Placements with banks and other financial
—E+ZfARZEZ institutions maturing between one and
EHEm twelve months - - 10,324,490 11,019,510 - - - 21,344,000
NHER( AR Financial assets at fair value through
SREE profit or loss
-R5t - held for trading
- S - debt securities - 296,487 704,859 2,664,066 624 - - 3,666,036
- REANATER - esignated at fair value through
HABR profit or loss
- EBEs - debt securities - - - 240,097 258,560 - - 498,657
fiEemIa Derivative financial instruments 345,025 55,479 16,455 90,390 1,104 - - 508453
ERRAMER Advances and other accounts
-BFEH - advances to customers 5317,238 8,893,638 12,414,991 39,468,912 46,982,868 28,731,200 265,268 142,074,115
-855% - trade bills 1078 2,482,327 4,693,586 6,065,645 - - - 13,242,636
BERE Investment in securities
~THHE - available-for-sale
-RE - certificates of deposit - 6,064 899,663 6044492 726,666 - - 7,676,885
- RS - debt securities - 2482919 2,569,203 5167277 20,598,317 1,444,071 - 32,261,787
-HEZHHA - held-to-maturity
- ERES - debt securities - - - 585,144 298 - - 585,442
- R RN - loans and receivables
- ERES - debt securities - 105185 661988 916,891 - - - 1,684,064
- RipES ~ equity securities - - - - = = 63,965 63,965
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 1174938 1,174,938
nE  EMREE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 6969237 6,969,237
EMEE (AARTREEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 152,748 3,519,657 13437 90,958 76,003 380 41,243 3,894,426
EEfE Total assets 25441392 30,770,926 32,298,672 72,353,382 68,644,440 30,175,651 20,699,497 280,383,960
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4. <cEERERE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 RBELRAR (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) EHIHZH (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
LS 3]
The Group
2013
0%  -fAR -Z=@A ZEt-@A  -ERf BFNL
On  Uptot 1t03 3t 12 1to5 Over5 TFEERH &t
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
A%t BETn  ABTRn  BMfr  BBTn ENTn BMTn AW
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fE Liabilities
RITREMEREES Deposits and balances from banks and
FHRER other financial institutions 2,303,726 14457112 3,306,414 8,778,717 - - - 28,846,029
ATER A ABRL Financial liabilities at fair value through
SRA%E profit or loss - 701490 1,727,292 2,004,954 - - - 4433736
fTEERTA Derivative financial instruments 94,553 85,890 34,974 70,803 56,936 - - 343,156
EERR Deposits from customers 72,261,365 45965432 29,462,615 38,560,815 11,871,133 39,057 - 198,160,417
HRERER (24 Other accounts and provisions (including
EAHERELHBAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 2,755,008 4962292 2901823 4361272 1,309,372 10,866 - 16,300,633
A48 Total liabilities TIA4652 66172216 37433118 53776621 13237441 49,923 - 248,083,9M
TEELHO Net liquidity gap (51,973,260) (35,401,290) (5,134,446) 18,576,761 55,406,999 30,125,728 20,699,497 32,299,989
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4. <cEERERE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 RBELRAR (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) EHIHZH (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
(E51)
(Restated)
A%E
The Group
2012
8 @AM —2=ff =E+=fiA —EnE  RENE
On Upto 1 103 31012 105 Over5  EEERH &t
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total

BT EMTn E%Tn  ERTn A¥Tr BBt A% T BET
HK$'000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

&E Assets
EEREREHBRTR Cash and balances with banks and
A eBEENER other financial institutions 17,089,375 13,734,264 - - - - 9964681 40,788,320
ERTRA SRR Placements with banks and other financial
—E+ZfARZEZ institutions maturing between one and
TEEN twelve months - - 7994913 9314031 - - - 17,308,944
INTEL LGN v Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss
-R5M - held for trading
- RHES - debt securities - 299495 1773822 2,198,420 621 - - 4272358
- REANATER - esignated at fair value through
HAER profit or loss
— BEH - debt securities - - - 341,867 510,935 - - 852,802
fIESRTA Derivative financial instruments 501,902 103,271 56,300 100,792 2312 - - 764,577
ERREMEE Advances and other accounts
-EFER - advances to customers 6,188,032 5665625 11,888,615 35699386 45325555 24,916,629 279,225 129,963,067
-8528 - trade bill 4749 1925544 4576361 1,562,964 - - - 8069618
BERE Investment in securities
- WiHhE - available-for-sale
- FEE - certificates of deposit - 400,657 40564 400359 1,125,146 - - 5569963
- RS - debt securities - 1595169 5577764 7310513 15315817 2,935,489 - 32,734,752
-HERIHA - held-to-maturity
-BiE - certificates of deposit - 46483 - - - - - 464743
- EBES - debt securities - 12173 312,631 - 566,379 - - 1,006,783
- B REW - loans and receivables
- BBES - debt securities - - 29075 865,187 - - - 1,157,002
- khEH - equity securities - - - - - - 56,146 56,146
RENE Investment properties - - - - - - 1,027,083 1,027,083
¥ BHRRE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 62499 6,224,995
EWEE (AAETERBEEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 362,059 1,043,080 10,792 25,907 29,765 - 20422 1,492,025

BESE Total assets 24,146,117 25359621 32523837 61,422,663 62,876,530 27,852,118 17,572,552 251,753,438
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4. EHERERE &)

43 REBESERE (8)
(B) EHIHZH (&)

www.ncb.com.hk

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)
4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

(&j)
(Restated)
A5H
The Group
2012
08 @AM -Z=f@A ZET-@A -ERf UL
On Upto 1 103 31012 105 Over5  AEEERH Bt
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
Agtn  AbTr BT BBTn  RbTr BT BETn BETx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
BRI SRR, Deposits and balances from banks and
ks other financial institutions 1801973 6484534 4,961,018 7,014,546 - - - 20262071
NFHER( AR Financial liabilities at fair value through
LRAR profit or loss - 149971 2,092,893 1,462,209 - - - 4975073
fTEeaIA Derivative financial instruments 205,008 12,057 33,99 100,712 107,834 - - 459,607
EEER Deposits from customers 67,183,813 45339114 30,153,082  35241,829 7,577,978 37,901 - 185,533,717
HRERER (21 Other accounts and provisions (including
EHEREEREAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 2,703,673 1903000 15890679 3,594,797 811,449 6,151 - 10,909,749
SREE Total liabilities 71,894,467 55,158,676 39,131,608 47,414,093 8,497,261 44,052 - 222,140,217
REELHD Net liquidity gap (47,748,350) (29,799,055)  (6,607,831) 14,008570 54,379,269 27,808,066 17,572,552 29,613,221

EFUBRUERENHE - FAREL FIR o

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to

conform with the current year’s presentation.
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4. <cEERERE @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 RBELRAR (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) EHIHZH (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
AR
The Bank
2013
P8 AR -Z=f8A ZET-ER -ERf  EENL
On  Uptot 1t03 3to 12 1to5 Over5 FEERH &3t
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total

B¥Tn  ERTn MR EMTx BRTx BRTn AWt EWER
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

BE Assets
EFRERERBTR Cash and balances with banks and
EheREN L other financial institutions 15,427,036 3,413,298 - - - - - 18,840,334
ERREMERIEE Placements with banks and other financial
—ET-EAREIE institutions maturing between one and
THER twelve months - - 1,527,931 330,331 - - - 1,858,262
INSE LGN Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss
-R5k - held for trading
— BEEH - debt securities - 296,487 704,859 2,664,066 624 - - 3,666,036
-REBNATERL - designated at fair value through
HAER profit or loss
- EBES - debt securities - - - 240097 258,560 - - 498657
fTASRIE Derivative financial instruments 345,025 4,713 2,112 20,638 346 - - 410,434
ENRAMES Advances and other accounts
-BFEX - advances to customers 4,796,737 7448303 7460242 15953432 37,099,624 16,047,873 109,387 88,915,598
-8525 - trade bills 1078 1,544,684 3,152,502 4,759,755 - - - 9,458,019
EHRE Investment in securities
— e - available-for-sale
-GaE - certificates of deposit - 6,064 899,663 6,044,492 726,666 - - 1,676,885
— BES - debt securities - 2482919 2516773 4,793,767 15739236 1,444,071 - 26,976,766
- FEE3HE  held-to-maturity
- EfEs - debt securities - - - - 29 - - 298
- B REW ~ loans and receivables
- RS - debt securities - 105,185 661,988 916,891 - - - 1,684,064
- k&S - equity securities = = o - - - 63,965 63,965
REAWBAR Investment in subsidiaries = = = = = - 871,067 8,171,067
RENx Investment properties - - - - - - 1126510 1,126,510
VESETNE Properties, plant and equipment = = = - - - 6191967 6,191,967
AthAE Other assets 17,129 3,482,064 845 2,305 360 - 29736 3532439

BE4E Total assets 20,587,005 18,820,717 16,927,515 35725774 53,825,714 17,491,944 15,692,632 179,071,301
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www.ncb.com.hk

4. SERIERER @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 RBELRAR (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) EHIHZH (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont’d)
x5
The Bank
2013
8  -EAR -E=fR ZET-fR -E1fF  ERNL
On  Uptot 1t03 3t 12 1to5 Over5 FEERH &t
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
E8Tn  RMTn  BMTR  EBTn BMTr  E¥Tn EMTn BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
RITREMEREES Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRis other financial institutions 2,421,609 3,409,153 561,061 1,096,468 - - - 17,8829
ATER A ABRL Financial liabilities at fair value through
SRA%E profit or loss - 701490 1,727,292 2,004,954 - - - 4433736
fTEERTA Derivative financial instruments 94,553 68,659 11,159 17,512 56,431 - - 28,314
LYyeE | Deposits from customers 57,481,019 37,739,386 18,559,824 16,950,467 993,890 - - 131,724,586
HERRERER (24 Other accounts and provisions (including
EfFBERELNRRE) current and deferred tax liabiltes) 1,146,948 2,996,225 89274 120325 889,397 - - 5,202,169
BEAR Total liabilities 61144129 44914913 20948610 20,189,726 1,939,718 - - 149,137,09%
i e la Net liguidity gap (40557,120) (26,094196) (4021095) 15536,048 51885096 17491944 15692632 29,934,205
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. SRIERER @) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 RBELRAR (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) FEHZH (&) (B)  Maturity analysis (Cont'd)
(231)
(Restated)
i}
The Bank
2012
08 -EAR —2=fEA =Zt=fA —ZRf  EENE
On Upto ! 103 31012 15 Over5  AEEERH Bt
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
S 5 -5 R o R o D N . R .
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&E Assets
ERRERERBIR Cash and balances with banks and
HfdpaREa AL other financial institutions 13445491 8313217 - - - - - 21,758,708
ERRAMEREE Placements with banks and other financial
—ETZEAREL institutions maturing between one and
TN twelve months - - 1,407,081 172,341 - - - 157942
NHEE( ARG Financial assets at fair value through
SHEE profit or loss
-R5t ~ held for trading
- RS - debt securities - 299495 1773822 2,198,420 621 - - 4272358
- REANATER - esignated at fair value through
HABR profit or loss
- EBEs ~ debt securities - - - 341,867 510,935 - - 852,802
T SRIE Derivative financial instruments 501,902 82,359 39,413 26,029 - - - 649,703
ENRAMER Advances and other accounts
-BFEH - advances to customers 6,141,226 4,193,107 7413310 13,744,696 35790554 17,026,644 104,166 84,413,703
-2524 - trade bills 577 121455 3421008 867781 - - - 5,504,118
EARA Investment in securities
—THHHE - available-for-sale
-G - certificates of deposit - 400,657 40564 400359 1,125,146 - - 5569963
- EHES - debt securities - 1595169 5384410 6505438 10745474 2,278,7% - 2652987
-HRZ3EA - held-to-maturity
- A& - certificates of deposit - 464,743 - - - - - 464,743
- Bl - debt securities - - 121,186 - 896 - - 122,082
- B REWS ~ loans and receivables
- RS - debt securities = - 292075 865,187 = - - 1,157,262
- RipEs - equity securities - - - - - - 56,146 56,146
U Investment in subsidiaries - - - - - - 8171067 8,171,067
VIS Investment properties - - - - = = 979,670 979,670
VIEREE Properties, plant and equipment - - - - - - 5461161 5,461,161
EEE (BIEETHEEE)  Other assets (including deferred tax assets) 22,051 1,026,350 2 1538 995 - 17375 1,068,330
EElE Total assets 20111247 17589,649 19,893,090 28,746,893 48,174,621 19,305,440 14,789,585 168,610,525
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4. EHERERE &)

43 REBESERE (8)
(B) EHIHZH (&)

www.ncb.com.hk

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(B) Maturity analysis (Cont’d)

(&5)
(Restated)
A5
The Bank
2012
k] —fAR  —Z=fA ZET=fA —Z0E RENE
On Upto1 103 31012 105 Over5 THERH B
demand month months months years years  Indefinite Total
AeTT  AEfr  AETn BBt ABTr BT BEfr BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
&% Liabilities
BRI SRR, Deposits and balances from banks and
FRRis other financial institutions 1865120 1,211,219 142,039 955,453 - - - 4173831
NFER( AR Financial liabilities at fair value through
LREE profit or loss - 1419971 2,092,893 1,462,209 - - - 4975073
fTEdaIA Derivative financial instruments 205,008 5,812 23,158 36,924 105,523 - - 376,425
PR Deposits from customers 56,526,767 35,084,235 19922283 16,577,888 67,327 - - 128,178,500
HRERER (21 Other accounts and provisions (including
EHEREEREAR) current and deferred tax liabilities) 1,536,694 573,405 73,848 118,513 769,260 - - 3,071,720
AfE8E Total liahilities 60,133,589 38,294,642 22,254,221 19,150,987 942,110 - - 140,775,549
REELHD Net liquidity gap (40,022,342) (20,704,993)  (2,361,131) 9,595,906 47,232,511 19,305,440 14,789,585 27,834,976

ETHBBFEEHROH  UFERFZIITRER

FABIEI B BT RRCIRITE (RE) RAD 2 BB HGX
MwEE - AEEHEHTEREAZEE  fIMERKE
BESFINAAHMEE - HRETARERXOBEEZE
E - RAZEETERBHZABORGFERD o HiREH
ZERMD DB RIBERGHROE - BERELSXEEZEER
hERRE  AEZERRIA [ TEERS] - LilsIRZE
ECHIRREAREEE (E) -

RS AHEBER 2 O RER (RITE (WE) R
A) 2 HBGEXMEED - AERBEIRESEESHHE
EEHIA -

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to
conform with the current year’s presentation.

The above maturity classifications have been prepared in
accordance with relevant provisions under the Banking
(Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets such as
advances and debt securities which have been overdue
for not more than one month as “On demand”. In the
case of an asset that is repayable by different payments or
instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually
overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that
is not due is reported according to the residual maturity
unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in which case
the amount is reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are
stated after deduction of provisions, if any.

The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to
maturity is disclosed in order to comply with relevant
provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to
maturity.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

The tables below summarise the cash flows of the Group

and the Bank as at 31 December for non-derivative financial
liabilities by remaining contractual maturities.

]
The Group
2013
—Z S
—fAR =f8A T=f@A -Z5f REHLE
Upto1 1to3 3to 12 1to5 Over 5 @zt
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BETR BETT BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial liabilities
RITREMEBEE L Deposits and balances from banks and
TR other financial institutions 16,778,992 3,341,129 8,942,010 - - 29,062,131
ATEE(AESZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 701,500 1,721,500 2,006,500 - - 4,435,500
REREH Deposits from customers 118,257,428 29,568,037 39,248,181 13,029,817 51,735 200,155,198
Hipemas Other financial liabilities 7,599,320 2,657,072 4,241,374 411,167 10,867 14,919,800
SREELEE Total financial liabilities 143,337,240 37,293,738 54,438,065 13,440,984 62,602 248,572,629
K&E
The Group
2012
-3 ==
—fEAA ={@A +=fEA —EhF RENE
Upto 1 1103 3t0 12 1105 Over 5 @it
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tREE Financial liabilities
RITREMERKEL Deposits and balances from banks and
Rk other financial institutions 8,294,893 4,992,085 7,086,541 = - 20,373,519
NEEELFABEZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
cRERE profit or loss 1,420,000 2,093,000 1,462,500 - - 4,975,500
REEH Deposits from customers 112,549,463 30,259,278 35,805,901 8,603,246 52,637 187,270,525
Enemas Other financial liabilities 4,517,866 1,809,154 3,377,424 33,300 6,150 9,743,894
SREBELE Total financial liabilities 126,782,222 39,153,517 47,732,366 8,636,546 58,787 222,363,438
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4. SRIERER @) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 RBELRAR (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(C) BEXNIEBHHZATEEL R (&) (C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)
(a) HrTETAZH 27 () (a) Non-derivative cash flows (Cont’d)
ARAT
The Bank
2013
-z ==
—fBAR =f8R +={8A —-Zhf BENE
Upto1 1t03 3t0 12 1to 5 Over 5 @t
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
tREE Financial liabilities
RITREMEREEL Deposits and balances from banks and
BFakE#H other financial institutions 5,831,713 563,102 1,097,739 - - 7,492,554
NEEEFABEZ Financial liabilities at fair value through
SRER profit or loss 701,500 1,727,500 2,006,500 - - 4,435,500
BEER Deposits from customers 95,238,323 18,603,469 17,118,139 1,044,047 - 132,003,978
Etepas Other financial liabilities 4,141,243 2,006 427 - - 4,143,676
SREEAE Total financial liabilities 105,912,779 20,896,077 20,222,805 1,044,047 - 148,075,708
ARERTT
The Bank
2012
== =%
—fEAA =f8A +={8A —ZHF BEUE
Upto 1103 31012 1105 Over 5 et
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial liabilities
RIREMEBEEL Deposits and balances from banks and
Rk other financial institutions 3,076,929 142,692 958,674 - - 4,178,295
ATER( GBS Financial liabilities at fair value through
SREE profit or loss 1,420,000 2,093,000 1,462,500 - - 4,975,500
BREH Deposits from customers 91,624,727 19,968,167 16,743,656 69,304 - 128,405,854
Hivema s Other financial liabilities 2,109,594 = - - - 2,109,5%
SHEBaE Total financial liabilities 98,231,250 22,203,859 19,164,830 69,304 - 139,669,243
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4,

4.3
(9]

(b)
(i)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)
Derivative cash flows

Derivatives settled on a net basis

The Group's derivatives that will be settled on a net basis
include:

Exchange rate contracts: FX margin;
Interest rate contracts: interest rate swaps;

Commodity contracts: bullion margin contracts,
commodity swaps; and

Equity contracts: exchange traded equity options.

The tables below summarise the cashflows of Group and
the Bank as at 31 December for derivative financial liabilities

that will be settled on a net basis by remaining contractual

maturities.
rEE
The Group
2013
=% ==
—fEBAR =)z +=f8A ik RENL

Upto1 1t03 3to 12 1to 5 Over 5 @t
month months months years years Total
BETT BETT BETR BETR BETR BETR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEAH Exchange rate contracts (93,034) - - - - (93,034)
HMEEH Interest rate contracts (4,523) (15,139) (67,761) (30,561) - (117,984)
Amatl Commodity contracts (1,311) (37) - - - (1,348)
(98,868) (15,176) (67,761) (30,561) - (212,366)
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4. cEERERE &) 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 RBELRAR (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(C) BEXNIEBHHZATEEL R (&) (C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)
(b) PTETAZET T () (b)  Derivative cash flows (Cont’d)
(i) BRPFREELE 2 TET A (&) (i) Derivatives settled on a net basis (Cont'd)
AEE
The Group
2012
% =3
—fEAA ={@A +=1&A =S il BEMNE
Upto 1 1103 3t0 12 1105 Over 5 @it
month months months years years Total

ABTT  AETR  REETR  EETR  EETR  ERTR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

EXEH) Exchange rate contracts (204,766) (24,626) 9,359 - - (220,033)
MEEH Interest rate contracts (3,057) (22,098) (91,009) (68,833) - (184,997)
Hmai Commodity contracts (350) = = = = (350)
RinEREL Equity contracts - - (454) - - (454)
(208,173) (46,724) (82,104) (68,833) - (405,834)
KEAT
The Bank
2013
-2 =z
—fEAR =f@R +=f8A bt BENE
Upto 1 1t03 3to 12 1t05 Over 5 i
month months months years years Total

BETr  BERTx  BETx  BRTx  BETx  BEETrR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000

EELH) Exchange rate contracts (93,034) - - - - (93,034)
MEEH Interest rate contracts (246) (5,900) (26,400) (30,037) - (62,583)
HRAL Commodity contracts (1,311) - = - = (1,311)
(94,591) (5,900) (26,400) (30,037) - (156,928)
RERAT
The Bank
2012
-z =z
—fEAA =f8A +=f@A —E1f AFNE
Upto 1t03 31012 1105 Over 5 b
month months months years years Total

ABTT  RAETR  REETR  REETR  EBTR  EETR
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

EEALH) Exchange rate contracts (204,766) (24,626) 9,359 - = (220,033)
FEEH) Interest rate contracts (313) (10,936) (52,284) (66,408) - (129,941)
Amak Commodity contracts (257) - - - - (257)

(205,336) (35,562) (42,925) (66,408) - (350,231)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)

(b) Derivative cash flows (Cont’d)
(i) Derivatives settled on a gross basis

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis
include OTC currency options, currency forwards, cross
currency interest rate swaps, bullion swaps and OTC equity

options.

The tables below summarise the cashflows of the Group
and the Bank as at 31 December for all derivative financial
instruments that will be settled on a gross basis by remaining

contractual maturities.

i 3|
The Group
2013
—-F =z
—EA R =fEA +=@A —Z5F
Up to 1 1to03 3to 12 1to5 st
month months months years Total
BT T BRI BT BT T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREL : Exchange rate contracts:
— R - Outflow (23,897,683) (4,397,226) (9,657,460) (179,071) (38,131,440)
—mA — Inflow 23,866,437 4,369,915 9,679,171 180,102 38,095,625
bt Total outflow (23,897,683) (4,397,226) (9,657,460) (179,071) (38,131,440)
i Total inflow 23,866,437 4,369,915 9,679,171 180,102 38,095,625
rEE
The Group
2012
—% =2
—MEARA =1{EA T=EA —ZhF
Up to 1 1t03 3t0 12 Tt05 et
month months months years Total
AT BT BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[EXREH : Exchange rate contracts:
— i - Outflow (13,329,984)  (4,144,315) (11,094,464) - (28,568,763)
—mA — Inflow 13,418,460 4,167,232 11,099,574 - 28,685,266
BERE L Equity contracts:
— i — Outflow (97) = = = (97)
mA — Inflow 97 - - - 97
A Total outflow (13,330,081)  (4,144,315) (11,094,464) - (28,568,860)
IR A Total inflow 13,418,557 4,167,232 11,099,574 - 28,685,363
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4. SERIERER @ 4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
43 RBELRAR (&) 4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)
(C) BEXNIEBHHZATEEL R (&) (C)  Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)
(b) PTETAZHE 27T (8B) (b) Derivative cash flows (Cont'd)
(ii) RREBEARLE Y THET A () (ii) Derivatives settled on a gross basis (Cont’d)
AERAT
The Bank
2013
=3 S=
— @A R = +=EA —ZhE
Up to 1 1to3 3to 12 1to5 st
month months months years Total
BT T BB T T BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEEH : Exchange rate contracts:
— R - Outflow (20,456,849) (625,212) (2,253,894) (42,785) (23,378,740)
—mA — Inflow 20,430,976 616,475 2,265,259 43,549 23,356,259
457 Total outflow (20,456,849) (625,212) (2,253,894) (42,785) (23,378,740)
HBRA Total inflow 20,430,976 616,475 2,265,259 43,549 23,356,259
ARERT
The Bank
2012
=23 =2
—EAR ={&@A +=@A —ZRF
Upto 1 1to 3 3t0 12 1105 et
month months months years Total
BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERAHL : Exchange rate contracts:
— R - Outflow (9,709,942)  (3,245,098) (2,912,372) - (15,867,412)
—mA — Inflow 9,786,503 3,266,395 2,905,657 - 15,958,555
BintEma L Equity contracts:
— T — Outflow (97) - - = (97)
- mA — Inflow 97 _ _ _ 97
457 Total outflow (9,710,039)  (3,245,098) (2,912,372) - (15,867,509)
NN Total inflow 9,786,600 3,266,395 2,905,657 - 15,958,652
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Notes to the Financial Statements

4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (Cont'd)

(C) Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by
contractual maturities (Cont’d)

(c) Off-balance sheet items
Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s and the Bank’s
off-balance sheet financial instruments as at 31 December
2013 that the Group and the Bank commit to extend
credit to customers and other facilities amounted
to HK$76,884,033,000 (2012: HK$64,207,586,000)
and HK$26,338,710,000 (2012: HK$27,481,060,000)
respectively. Those loan commitments can be drawn within
one year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the
Group and the Bank as at 31 December 2013 amounting
to HK$33,262,083,000 (2012: HK$23,861,509,000) and
HK$4,311,433,000 (2012: HK$4,217,552,000) respectively
are maturing no later than one year.

4.4 Capital Management

The major objective of the Group's capital management is
to maximise total shareholders’ return while maintaining a
capital adequacy position in relation to the Group’s overall
risk profile. The Asset and Liability Management Committee
periodically reviews the Group’s capital structure and adjusts
the capital mix where appropriate to maintain an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

The Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules 2012 and the
Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules 2013 came into
operation on 1 January 2013 and 30 June 2013 respectively.
The rules mainly addressed the revision to both the minimum
capital ratio requirement (in terms of expanding the existing
capital adequacy ratio into three ratios, namely, a Common
Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, a Tier 1 capital ratio and a
Total capital ratio) and the definition of regulatory capital.
In addition, the rules included the enhancements to the
counterparty credit risk framework and amendments on the
capital treatment for certain trade financing activities and
securities financing transactions. The Group has followed
the rules to calculate capital adequacy ratio.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)

The Group has developed and maintained a sound framework
of policies and controls on capital management to support
the development of the Group’s business and to meet the
statutory capital adequacy ratio. The Asset and Liability
Management Committee monitors the Group’s capital
adequacy. The Group has complied with all the statutory
capital standards of the HKMA for the reported periods in
respect of banking operation as further elaborated below.

The Group has adopted the foundation internal ratings-
based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate the credit risk capital
charge for the majority of its non-securitisation exposures.
A small residual credit exposures was remained under
standardised (credit risk) (“STC") approach. The Group
has adopted standardised Credit Valuation Adjustment
(CVA) method to calculate the counterparty CVA capital
charges for OTC derivative contracts and securities financing
transactions under both banking book and trading book.

The Group continues to adopt the internal models (“IMM")
approach to calculate general market risk capital charge for
foreign exchange and interest rate exposures and, with the
approvals of HKMA, exclude its structural FX positions arising
from overseas branches and NCB (China) in the calculation of
the market risk capital charge. The Group continues to adopt
the standardised (market risk) (“STM") approach to calculate
the market risk capital charge for remaining exposures.

The Group continues to adopt standardised (operational
risk) (“STO") approach to calculate the capital charge for
operational risk.

The Group has continued to adopt an internal capital
adequacy assessment process (“ICAAP”) to comply with
the HKMA's requirements in the Supervisory Policy Manual
“Supervisory Review Process” in 2013. Based on the HKMA's
guidelines on Pillar Il, ICAAP has been initiated to assess the
extra capital needed to cover the material risks not captured
or not adequately captured under Pillar I, and therefore
minimum Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio, minimum
Tier 1 capital ratio and the minimum Total capital ratio are
determined. The Group considers this ICAAP process as an
on-going process for capital management and periodically
reviews and adjusts its capital structure where appropriate
in relation to the overall risk profile.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)

In addition, the capital plan of the Group is drawn up
annually and then submitted to the Board for approval
after endorsement of the Asset and Liability Management
Committee. The plan is built up by assessing the implications
of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the business
strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as
well as regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital
requirement is determined and capital sources are identified
also. The plan is to ensure the Group maintains adequate
capital and appropriate capital structure which align with our
business development needs thereby achieving an optimal
balance among risk, return and capital adequacy.

As a result of the adoption of Banking (Capital) (Amendment)
Rules 2012 and Banking (Capital) (Amendment) Rules 2013
since 1 January 2013 and 30 June 2013 respectively, the
capital disclosures for 2013 are not directly comparable to
those of 2012.

(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation

The consolidation basis for regulatory purposes comprises
the positions of the Bank and certain subsidiaries specified
by the HKMA in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
Rules. For accounting purposes, subsidiaries are consolidated
in accordance with the accounting standards issued by
the HKICPA pursuant to section 18A of the Professional
Accountants Ordinance.

Subsidiaries which are included within the accounting scope
of consolidation but not included within the regulatory scope
of consolidation are set out below:

2013

EERH BB

Total assets Total equity

BETT BETT

AR BB Name of company HK$°000 HK$°000
B F P FIRITIErE AR AT Nanyang Commercial Bank Trustee Limited 16,869 16,510
EFEREEEARAA Kwong Li Nam Investment Agency Limited 4,168 4,029
MAFEERT (REA) BRAH Nanyang Commercial Bank (Nominees) Limited 1,483 1,483
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)

4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)
(A) Basis of regulatory consolidation (Cont’d)

There are no subsidiaries which are included within the
regulatory scope of consolidation but not included within the
accounting scope of consolidation as at 31 December 2013.

There are also no subsidiaries which are included within both
the accounting scope of consolidation and the regulatory
scope of consolidation but the methods of consolidation
differ as at 31 December 2013.

The principal activities of the above subsidiaries are set out
in “Note 26 — Investment in subsidiaries” on page 192.

(B) EEHE (B) Capital ratio

2013
BBl - REARL X CET1 capital ratio 13.53%
—REARE = Tier 1 capital ratio 13.53%
EE A& Total capital ratio 15.80%

2012
ZOE AR = Capital adequacy ratio 15.89%
BEARTE R E Core capital ratio 15.08%
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(Cont'd)

4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)

(C) Components of capital base after deductions

The consolidated capital base after deductions used in the

calculation of the above capital ratios as at 31 December and

reported to the HKMA is analysed as follows:

2013
BET T
HK$’000
TRBE—RERN  ZBRENEE CET1 capital: instruments and reserves
HEERTHEERSBRE Directly issued qualifying CET1 capital
— BB ARZE T B R AR 10 5 B instruments plus any related share premium 3,144,517
1REB V4 A Retained earnings 20,879,091
BEFRENREE Disclosed reserves 8,260,460
EEMR AT EERE—RER CET1 capital before regulatory deductions 32,284,068
TRRE—RER | EEHIR CET1 capital: regulatory deductions
EHREEHBEGENEERBEE Deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities (152,418)
RAFEBEGENEBERRN S Gains and losses due to changes in
EARREBFEERERE own credit risk on fair valued liabilities (677)
At REEY (BRREERRE) Cumulative fair value gains arising
EITEEEAMEER from the revaluation of land and buildings
ZEAFEBERE (own-use and investment properties) (6,422,662)
—RRIRIT R F AR BB R Regulatory reserve for general banking risks (1,944,980)
HEBRE—RERNNEE R AL Total regulatory deductions to CET1 capital (8,520,737)
ERRE—RER CET1 capital 23,763,331
—MREXR Tier 1 capital 23,763,331
ZHRER  ZEBREREES Tier 2 capital: instruments and provisions
EEBFAZRERT Collective impairment allowances and

SERREREER regulatory reserve for general banking

—MRBITEGEEE & risks eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 1,099,587
ECE IR Z BT — AR & AN Tier 2 capital before regulatory deductions 1,099,587
ZHRER  BEEHR Tier 2 capital: regulatory deductions

hnEEERFFAZRERE Add back of cumulative fair value gains arising

R L MiEEY (BRRKERR) from the revaluation of land and buildings

ETEBEEHMEER (own-use and investment properties)

ZREAFEBERE eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 capital 2,890,198
-G E AR EEHIRAARE Total regulatory deductions to Tier 2 capital 2,890,198
—RENR Tier 2 capital 3,989,785
BwER Total capital 27,753,116
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4. SRIERER @) 4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Cont'd)
4.4 EXEE (&) 4.4 Capital Management (Cont'd)
(C) HIRBEHEXEFHASHK G (&) (C) Components of capital base after deductions
(Cont’d)
2012
BT
HK$’000
ZOEA Core capital:
725 R R A B AR PR AR Paid up ordinary share capital 700,000
e Reserves 19,217,120
Bz iR Profit and loss account 2,140,665
22,057,785
ZOB A Z Deductions from core capital (29,786)
BB Core capital 22,027,999
Fn& s Supplementary capital:
B HEBEESF AT ERE Fair value gains arising from
holdings of available-for-sale securities 193,952
EMATRANAFEE LG ABRZ Fair value gains arising from holdings of securities
FH AT ERE designated at fair value through profit or loss 20,569
RBEFTE 2 BERREEE Collective loan impairment allowances 78,719
EEHE Regulatory reserve 124,468
B Surplus provisions 796,494
1,214,202
B N & A8 2 300 Deductions from supplementary capital (29,787)
Bt N & A Supplementary capital 1,184,415
R E RN EARNEE A% Total capital base after deductions 23,212,414

RS (R1TE (BE) A8 - REFTHEwww.ncb.com.hk To comply with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules, a section

=A [EERE] —HUHREARRITATEEER “Regulatory Disclosures” is available on the Bank’s website
at www.ncb.com.hk and includes the following consolidated
information of the Bank:

- FALERERZEERARBAAEMREEMA -

FS -

— RASERERCRERARBEEEREREEARE -
B2 HER -

— ERTEARRENE RS R 2 EIERR RGN - -

A detailed breakdown of the capital base and
regulatory deductions, using the standard template
as specified by the HKMA.

A reconciliation of capital components to the balance
sheet, using the standard template as specified by the
HKMA.

A description of the main features and the full terms
and conditions of the issued capital instruments.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or
disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within
the fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, “Fair value
measurement”. The categorisation are determined with
reference to the observability and significance of the inputs
used in the valuation methods and based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole:

- Level 1: based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities. This
category includes debt instruments issued by certain
governments and certain exchange-traded derivative
contracts. As properties are unigue in nature and not
identical with another, they are not categorised in
this level.

- Level 2: based on valuation techniques for which
the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is observable, either directly or
indirectly. This category includes majority of the OTC
derivative contracts, debt securities and certificate of
deposits with quote from pricing services providers.
It also includes residential properties and shops with
insignificant adjustments made to observable market
inputs.

- Level 3: based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable. This category includes
equity investment and certificate of deposits with
significant unobservable components. It also includes
offices and shops with significant adjustments made
to observable market inputs.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value

The Group has an established governance structure and
controls framework to ensure that fair values are either
determined or validated by control units independent of
the front offices. Control units have overall responsibility
for independent verification of valuation from front line
businesses and all other significant fair value measurements.
Significant valuation issues are reported to the Management.

The Group uses valuation techniques or broker/dealer
guotations to determine the fair value of financial instruments
when unable to obtain the open market quotation in active
markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for
financial instruments held by the Group include bond prices,
interest rates, foreign exchange rates, equity and stock
prices, volatilities, counterparty credit spreads and others,
which are mostly observable and obtainable from open
market.

The technique used to calculate the fair value of the
following financial instruments is as below:

Debt securities and certificates of deposit

The fair value of these instruments is determined by obtaining
quoted market prices from dealer or independent pricing
service vendors, or using discounted cash flow technique.
Discounted cash flow model is a valuation technique that
measures present value using estimated expected future
cash flows from the instruments and then discounts these
flows using a discount rate or discount margin that reflects
the credit spreads required by the market for instruments
with similar risk. These inputs are observable or can be
corroborated by observable or unobservable market data.

Asset backed securities

For this class of instruments, external prices are obtained
from independent third parties.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
Derivatives

Over-the-counter derivative contracts include forward, swap
and option contracts on foreign exchange, interest rate,
equity or commodity. The fair value of these contracts
are mainly measured using valuation techniques such as
discounted cash flow models and option pricing models.
The inputs can be observable or unobservable market data.
Observable inputs include interest rate, foreign exchange
rates, equity and stock prices, commodity prices and
volatilities.

Credit valuation adjustments (CVA) and debit valuation
adjustments (DVA) are applied to the Group’s over-the-
counter derivatives. These adjustments reflect interest rates,
expectations of counterparty creditworthiness and the
Group’s own credit spread respectively. They are determined
for each counterparty and are dependent on expected future
values of exposures, default probabilities and recovery rates.

(A) A=y ey (A)  Fair value hierarchy
The Group
2013
E—ER ERER BE=BR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT BYTT BETT BYTT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRMEE Financial assets
NEEZ(TABEZZ Financial assets at fair value through
SRMEE (FH:F21) profit or loss (Note 21)
—RHMEF — Trading securities
— EBES — Debt securities - 3,666,036 - 3,666,036
— REEUAFE — Financial assets designated
BT ABZZ at fair value through
CRMEE profit or loss
— BEBES — Debt securities - 498,657 - 498,657
PTHESR T A (MffzE22)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 345,027 163,426 - 508,453
At HEZEE (fizF25)  Available-for-sale securities (Note 25)
— BEBES — Debt securities - 32,261,787 - 32,261,787
— FRE — Certificates of deposit - 5,540,037 2,136,848 7,676,885
- RDEH — Equity securities - - 63,965 63,965
cREE Financial liabilities
AFERLEt AB2E 2 Financial liabilities at fair value through
SREE (FH:30) profit or loss (Note 30)
—-R54%aE — Trading liabilities - 4,433,736 - 4,433,736
PTHESE T A (MfzE22)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 94,553 248,603 - 343,156
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)
5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

(A) NTEEHZLR (42) (A) Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)
RNEE
The Group
2012
FER BB FoER MEr
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
AFES(LEt AB2E2  Financial assets at fair value through
SREE (F:F21) profit or loss (Note 21)
—RH5UESH — Trading securities
B &5 — Debt securities = 4,272,358 = 4,272,358
— REEBUAFEE — Financial assets designated
BLEFABRZ at fair value through
EREE profit or loss
B EA — Debt securities - 852,802 - 852,802
$TES T A (Mf3522)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 501,902 262,675 - 764,577
At EBE (Ki3X25)  Available-for-sale securities (Note 25)
— BERES — Debt securities 1,468,168 31,266,584 - 32,734,752
— EE - Certificates of deposit - 5,569,963 - 5,569,963
— RkhFEH - Equity securities - - 56,146 56,146
LREE Financial liabilities
AFEELEt AB2E 2 Financial liabilities at fair value through
tREE (F:E30) profit or loss (Note 30)
—RH5HEE — Trading liabilities = 4,975,073 - 4,975,073
PTHESR T A (MfzE22)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 205,008 254,599 - 459,607
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5. BEENEGENLAFE® 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (cont'd)
51 UATEHSEHLEIE (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
(A) R FEEHZR (E) (A)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)
R1T
The Bank
2013
E—ER EER F=BHR @Et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERMEE Financial assets
ANFEZ(CEE AR Finandial assets at fair value through
SREE (F:F21) profit or loss (Note 21)
—R5UEFEH — Trading securities
— BES - Debt securities - 3,666,036 - 3,666,036
— REEBUAFEE — Financial assets designated
BLEFABRZ at fair value through
SREE profit or loss
— BEES — Debt securities - 498,657 - 498,657
PTHESE T A (MfzE22)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 345,027 65,407 - 410,434
At EBE (Ki3X25)  Available-for-sale securities (Note 25)
— BEBES — Debt securities - 26,976,766 - 26,976,766
— EE — Certificates of deposit - 5,540,037 2,136,848 7,676,885
— BkpESH - Equity securities - - 63,965 63,965
LREE Financial liabilities
AFEELEt AB2E 2 Financial liabilities at fair value through
tREE (F:E30) profit or loss (Note 30)
— X PHEE — Trading liabilities = 4,433,736 - 4,433,736

$1ES BT A (Mf3522)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 94,553 153,761 - 248,314




152

#1175 A% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 4

B R AR Y AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

www.ncb.com.hk

5. BEENEENATE W 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (cont'd)
51 UATEHSEHLEIE (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
(A) R FEEHZR (E) (A)  Fair value hierarchy (Cont’d)
ANIRIT
The Bank
2012
FER F_ER FoER MEr
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SREE Financial assets
AFES(LEt AB2E2  Financial assets at fair value through
SREE (F:F21) profit or loss (Note 21)
—RH5UESH — Trading securities
B &5 — Debt securities = 4,272,358 = 4,272,358
— REEBUAFEE — Financial assets designated
BLEFABRZ at fair value through
EREE profit or loss
B EA — Debt securities - 852,802 - 852,802
$TES T A (Mf3522)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 501,902 147,801 - 649,703
At EBE (Ki3X25)  Available-for-sale securities (Note 25)
— BERES — Debt securities 1,468,168 25,061,119 - 26,529,287
— EE - Certificates of deposit - 5,569,963 - 5,569,963
— RkhFEH - Equity securities - - 56,146 56,146
LREE Financial liabilities
AFEELEt AB2E 2 Financial liabilities at fair value through
tREE (F:E30) profit or loss (Note 30)
—RH5HEE — Trading liabilities = 4,975,073 - 4,975,073
PTHESR T A (MfzE22)  Derivative financial instruments
(Note 22) 205,008 171,417 - 376,425

2013%20124F » AEBERARITHEMEERAEBEHERE

E—RBARE_ERZEHNES -

During the year 2013 and 2012, there were no financial
asset and liability transfers between level 1 and level 2 for
the Group and the Bank.
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5. BEENEENAFE @ 5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (cont'd)
51 LATEHNENLSRIA (8) 5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
(B) B ERNIEE S E (B) Reconciliation of level 3 items
REBRARRIT
The Group and the Bank
2013
SREE
Financial assets
A HERS

Available-for-sale securities

BRE B 2

Certificates Equity
of deposit securities
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
R2013F1 4818 At 1 January 2013 - 56,146
Wz Gains
— Hi2mEKE — Other comprehensive income - 7,819
A Purchases 1,976,386 -
BAB=ER Transfers into level 3 160,462 =
72013 12H31H At 31 December 2013 2,136,848 63,965
R2013F12 A3 B ENEREE Total unrealised gain for the year included
RERFTARRER A E R W B8 in income statement for financial assets held

as at 31 December 2013 - -
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5. EENEBNAYE @
51 UAFEFENERMIE (B

(B) FE=[ERAEEZE (&)

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.1 Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Cont'd)
(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)
REE RART
The Group and the Bank
2012
SREE

Financial assets

AR
SREE
Financial
assets AR
designated at B85
fair value Available-
through for-sale
profit or loss securities
BERES RnBESH
Debt Equity
securities securities
BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
201241 A1H At 1 January 2012 5,046 43,899
e Gains
— Hit 2K — Other comprehensive income = 12,384
1 Sales (5,046) (137)
R20124512A31H At 31 December 2012 - 56,146
R2012F 12 A3 BRENSREE Total unrealised gain for the year included
RERF AW RO AER K258 in income statement for financial assets held
as at 31 December 2012 - -
201312 A31B &2012F12 8318 » B AE=EHH As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, financial instruments

ERTATERTFRENIFLTEE -

categorised as level 3 are mainly comprised of certificates
of deposit and unlisted equity securities.

GREFAGEITERERER2013FEEAFE=ER - K Certificates of deposit were transferred into level 3 in the
SEEEVABASERREFEEERS AR T A year of 2013 due to change of valuation observability. The

o -

Group has established internal control procedures to control
the Group’s exposure to such financial instruments.

FELEmAEEERENAFENSEAHEEN EMARZ The fair values of unlisted available-for-sale equity securities

FHME/ BAIEE K568 ENEHLEEHNAR - 8l are determined with reference to multiples of comparable
REEEFEETE  ATEEESHEA 2 LRESL XL listed companies, such as average of the price/earning ratios

BEFEGEEARR BERERENCEEEFEER of comparables or net asset value, if appropriate comparables
(OBA) 5% ' AIASEBEEMEEEKE BN, CRD) B are not available. The fair value is positively correlated to the

3,198,0007T °

price/earning ratios of appropriate comparables or net asset
values. Had the net asset value of the underlying equity
investments increased/(decreased) by 5%, the Group’s other
comprehensive income would have increased/(decreased) by
HK$3,198,000.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time
based on relevant market information and information
about various financial instruments. The following methods
and assumptions have been used to estimate the fair value
of each class of financial instrument as far as practicable.

Balances with banks and other financial institutions
and trade bills

Substantially all the financial assets and liabilities mature
within one year from the balance sheet date and their
carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers

Substantially all the advances to customers are on floating
rate terms, bear interest at prevailing market interest rates
and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

The fair value of held-to-maturity securities is determined
by using the same approach as those debt securities and
certificates of deposit and asset backed securities measured
at fair value as described in Note 5.1.

Loans and receivables

The fair value for loans and receivables is determined by
obtaining quoted market price from dealer and independent
pricing service vendors or using discounted cash flow model
based on a current yield curve appropriate for the remaining
term to maturity.

Deposits from customers

Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within
one year from the balance sheet date and their carrying
value approximates fair value.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

The following tables set out the carrying values and fair
values of the financial instruments not measured at fair
value, except for the above with their carrying values being
approximation of fair values.

rEH
The Group
2013 2012
REE AFE BREE AR
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
BET T BT T BT BETT
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRMEE Financial assets
HBEZEIHARS Held-to-maturity securities
(PFF5E25) (Note 25)
— EBES — Debt securities 585,442 583,975 1,006,783 1,012,465
— FE — Certificates of deposit - - 464,743 465,004

B RN (KaE25)

Loans and receivables (Note 25)

1,684,064 1,679,326 1,157,262 1,155,860

ARERAT
The Bank
2013 2012
REE A¥E BRmEE ~NEE
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
value value value value
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERMEE Financial assets
RBEZIHARZS Held-to-maturity securities
(PF3E25) (Note 25)
— B E S — Debt securities 298 295 122,082 121,998
— FRE — Certificates of deposit - - 464,743 465,004

B RN (KEE25)

Loans and receivables (Note 25)

1,684,064 1,679,326 1,157,262 1,155,860
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.2 Financial instruments not measured at fair
value (Cont'd)

The following table shows the fair value hierarchy for
financial instruments with fair values disclosed.

REE
The Group
2013
F—B& FE_EB& E=BHR #at
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EWEE Financial assets
BEZRIBARBS Held-to-maturity securities
— B E S — Debt securities - 583,680 295 583,975
B3 e MR Loans and receivables - 1,679,326 = 1,679,326
RERAT
The Bank
2013
F—BR FE_EBR F=BHR et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
ERMEE Financial assets
BEZRIARBS Held-to-maturity securities
— BEEH — Debt securities - - 295 295
B e R Loans and receivables - 1,679,326 - 1,679,326

53 UATFEFEMNIESHMIA

AR — e B R E BT S R E KT S BT A
AT -

AEBZMERADBIEEMEREE - FIBEAEEZIREY
¥ REECN2013F12A31 B#ETEM - hERB ST
BEME—AFLHENGEEREXBEREGR AT - HE
EEBEBHEMBSEFTEXSTEREESTEEAKR ZA
B WHEMBVEMEHEREE EHELER - EHERE
FFEREFERETR  BEESRUIEMFARGEESE G
BBRELGEELER - 2013F12A31BHRENFER R

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value

The Group uses valuation techniques or quoted market prices
in active market to determine the fair value of non-financial
instruments.

Investment properties and premises

The Group’s properties can be divided into investment
properties and premises. All of the Group’s investment
properties and premises were revalued as at 31 December
2013. The valuations were carried out by an independent
firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited, who have among their staff Fellow and
Members of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors with recent
experience in the locations and categories of properties
being valued. The Management had discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation methods, valuation assumptions
and valuation results when the valuation is performed at
each interim and annual reporting date. There has been
no change in valuation methods during the year ended 31
December 2013.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)

Investment properties and premises (Cont’d)

Valuation methods and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of properties classified as Level 2 is determined
using either the market comparison approach by reference
to recent sales price of comparable properties or the income
capitalisation approach by reference to market rent and
capitalisation rate, with appropriate adjustments to reflect
the differences between the comparable properties and the
subject properties. These adjustments are considered as
insignificant to the entire measurement.

The Group’s properties are located in Hong Kong and
major cities in the PRC where the property markets are
considered active and transparent. Sales price, market rent
and capitalisation rate of comparable properties are generally
observable either directly or indirectly in these markets.

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements

The fair values of all of the Group’s properties classified as
Level 3 are determined using either the market comparison
approach or the income capitalisation approach, adjusted
for a premium or a discount specific to the features of the
Group's properties compared to the comparable properties.

The valuation methods and significant unobservable inputs
used in the fair value measurement of the Group’s properties
classified as Level 3 are as follows:

TABREERE
NP ENER
fEER*E BATABREER InfEFE Relationship of
Valuation Significant Weighted unobservable
method unobservable inputs average inputs to fair value
H % TS BUE MEARE LB EELE F2 -8.4% wESS  ATESES o
WABARE Wi (HrfE) TESS  AFEBIE -

Other properties Market comparison
approach or income
capitalisation approach

MERBALRYEEEE E2REGTE) D2 LR
HEMEFETRARENER  fIMRRRZTIHEE -
B RBERNBR KR BE HE HREMEE

Premium/(discount) on features
of the property compared to
comparable properties

The higher the premium,
the higher the fair value.

The higher the discount,
the lower the fair value

Premium/(discount) on features of the property are
determined after taken into account various factors, such
as time for market movement, location, accessibility, building
age/condition, floor level, size, layout etc, with reference
to their differences in features with comparable properties.
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND

LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)

(A) Fair value hierarchy

REE
The Group
2013
E—[B& E_BR E=BH et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
FERMEE Non-financial assets
HEMZE (M7E27) Investment properties (Note 27) - 27,000 1,147,938 1,174,938
YIZE - B3M NGRS Properties, plant and equipment
(Pf5E28) (Note 28)
-RBE — Premises - 1,931,868 4,677,510 6,609,378
RERAT
The Bank
2013
E—[BR E_EBR E=BR st
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
BT T BET T BET T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
FEREE Non-financial assets
"EWE (KI:E27) Investment properties (Note 27) = 27,000 1,099,510 1,126,510
Y - B3M MR G Properties, plant and equipment
(FfIzE28) (Note 28)
—RBE — Premises - 1,889,585 4,231,196 6,120,781

20135 A ARBERARITHEREEDRBE —BRR
F_ERZENER -

During the year 2013, there were no non-financial asset
transfers between level 1 and level 2 for the Group and

the Bank.
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53 LDIAFEIENEEEMTE (8)
(B) H#=FE#HKEELEH

5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items

S 3
The Group
2013
FEMEE
Non-financial assets
M3 BMR
4]
Properties,
plant and
equipment
REMHE
Investment EE
properties Premises
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
720131418 At 1 January 2013 1,001,279 4,094,219
Wiz Gains
— k&% - Income statement
—RBEMEATERARE 2 F — Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties 166,363 -
— BEME « B RERE 2 F W — Net gain from revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment - 8,085
— Hih 2 E K — Other comprehensive income
- RBEEH — Revaluation of premises - 582,352
e Depreciation - (57,416)
EE Additions - 16,560
E bk Reclassification (21,050) 21,050
M5 =% Exchange difference 1,346 12,660
7201312 A31H At 31 December 2013 1,147,938 4,677,510
R2013F12 A31 BB ESREE Total unrealised gain for the year included
RENFTAM R ROAESR WHLE in income statement for non-financial assets
held as at 31 December 2013
- REMFERLTEAR 2 FHE — Net gain from fair value adjustments
on investment properties 166,363 -
— BEWE - EMREE2FRE — Net gain from revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment - 8,085

166,363 8,085
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5. FAIR VALUES OF ASSETS AND
LIABILITIES (Cont'd)

5.3 Non-financial instruments measured at
fair value (Cont'd)

(B) Reconciliation of level 3 items (Cont’d)

ARERAT
The Bank
2013
FEemEE
Non-financial assets
M3 BMR
4]
Properties,
plant and
equipment
REMHE
Investment EE
properties Premises
BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
K2013F1H1H At 1 January 2013 955,670 3,665,303
& Gains
— Wmx — Income statement
—REMEATERAE 2 Fhm — Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 164,890 =
— Hiv 2 E — Other comprehensive income
—REE&R — Revaluation of premises - 568,212
e Depreciation - (39,691)
2E Additions - 16,322
EX i Reclassification (21,050) 21,050
2013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 1,099,510 4,231,196

MR2013FE12 A3 1 BEAWESRIEE
RERFAMBZROARER RSB

— REMERNFERE 2 F W

Total unrealised gain for the year included
in income statement for non-financial assets
held as at 31 December 2013
— Net gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties 164,890 -
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6. NET INTEREST INCOME

2013 2012
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
FIE WA Interest income

FHUARE R E M & iR I8 Due from banks and other financial institutions 2,256,247 2,329,108
2EEX Advances to customers 5,294,805 4,355,000
EWEHEE Listed investments 327,562 319,579
FLEMBHIRE Unlisted investments 881,056 680,723
Hih Others 17,126 26,046
8,776,796 7,710,456

FEFH Interest expense
B3 & H & B M T A FRIE Due to banks and other financial institutions (779,789) (601,733)
ZEEFER Deposits from customers (3,068,188) (3,014,699)
Hih Others (237,653) (161,211)
(4,085,630) (3,777,643)
FRE WA Net interest income 4,691,166 3,932,813

HE2013F12A31B EFE 2 M BWABIEHE R T B R
BEE XA RERF B U A 82, 594,0007T (20124 : B
8,079,0007T) °

FEURAFEE T A ERZcRIEELS R B BRELENT
BUWA KB 5 R A %E®S,732,588,0007T (20124 -
75 #7,653,870,0007T) K7 #4,080,742,0007T (20124
#513,763,585,0007T) ©

Included within interest income is HK$2,594,000 (2012:
HK$8,079,000) of interest with respect to income recognised
on advances classified as impaired for the year ended
31 December 2013.

Included within interest income and interest expense
are HK$8,732,588,000 (2012: HK$7,653,870,000) and
HK$4,080,742,000 (2012: HK$3,763,585,000), for financial
assets and financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair
value through profit or loss respectively.
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INCOME
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
REERAESWA Fee and commission income
ERAE Loan commissions 240,188 183,902
EEHE Bills commissions 218,959 150,725
HAEan Securities brokerage 194,970 164,207
HEniH Funds distribution 118,762 72,126
R Insurance 101,524 77,018
BSRARTS Payment services 72,189 74,734
IRER Safe deposit box 21,800 21,688
ERARER Credit card business 5,004 761
EERFEE R Trust and custody services 1,389 109
BEEEE Currency exchange 534 600
HAh, Others 99,807 76,907
1,075,126 822,777
REERMAEX Fee and commission expense
EAEAEan Securities brokerage (27,549) (26,224)
N BR T Payment services (6,539) (6,604)
ERRED Credit card business (914) (78)
EHih Others (31,499) (34,692)
(66,501) (67,598)
BERBERASWA Net fee and commission income 1,008,625 755,179
HERE Of which arise from
— SEARAFEEE(LET AR — financial assets or financial liabilities
ZEREESSRAE not at fair value through profit or loss
— IRIEE AU A — Fee and commission income 219,867 193,677
—REELRAESSH — Fee and commission expense (2,954) (1,584)
216,913 192,093
— EREREAMZ A — trust and other fiduciary activities
— RE & KA WA — Fee and commission income 13,071 12,262
—RBBERASSZH — Fee and commission expense (1,202) (1,183)
11,869 11,079
8. FXZttlzs 8. NET TRADING GAIN
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
RS Net gain/(loss) from:
—INER 5 — foreign exchange and foreign
RINER B E G exchange products (5,065) 131,080
—FERTH — interest rate instruments 102,286 16,136
97,221 147,216
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9. HttERMEEZFWHE
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9. NET GAIN ON OTHER FINANCIAL

ASSETS

2013 2012
BT BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000

AfHERES 2 Net gain from disposal of
s available-for-sale securities 31,292 11,839
HAth Others 21,204 4,762
52,496 16,601

10. HEKEWA

10. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000

BHIRE BN Dividend income from investment in securities
—JE MR ARE — unlisted investments 7,975 6,940
KEYZEZ MR BIA Gross rental income from investment properties 45,545 40,881
W B EYE ST Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties (2,906) (2,066)
=i} Others 24,856 11,354
75,470 57,109

[(BEEREMEZSIH | BEFARHAREMEZ BELE
A #163,0007T (20124 : 7#5#177,0007T) ©

Included in the “Outgoings in respect of investment
properties” is HK$163,000 (2012: HK$177,000) of direct

[REMEZHSRRA | BRFALRELE%346,0007T

(20124 : &%112,0007T) °

11. BEEESERE

operating expenses related to investment properties that
were not let during the year.

Contingent rent included in the “Gross rental income from
investment properties” amounted to HK$346,000 during the
year (2012: HK$112,000).

11. NET CHARGE OF IMPAIRMENT

ALLOWANCES
2013 2012
BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEFEX Advances to customers
&R FE & Individually assessed
— FTIRERE — new allowances (222,187) (155,261)
— #[O — releases 11,572 5,185
— Y BB M sEBR1E — recoveries 51,936 13,523
Z{E R E B R E 2 F Net charge of individually assessed loan
B (fisk24) impairment allowances (Note 24) (158,679) (136,553)
HEFE Collectively assessed
— iR — new allowances (211,288) (260,395)
AT EETORE Net charge of collectively assessed loan
TR (MT5E24) impairment allowances (Note 24) (211,288) (260,395)
REEERRE Net charge of impairment allowances (369,967) (396,948)
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12. OPERATING EXPENSES

2013 2012
BET T PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
AZER (BEES=HE) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
— S REMER — salaries and other costs 1,064,036 904,165
— RRE AR — pension cost 127,780 109,887
1,191,816 1,014,052
BERZES L Premises and equipment expenses
(T RIEFE) (excluding depreciation)
—RFEMS — rental of premises 242,896 211,026
— &R — information technology 156,632 111,466
— Eftb — others 53,375 47,921
452,903 370,413
& (MiEk28) Depreciation (Note 28) 206,956 166,939
ZER & Auditor’s remuneration
— BT AR — audit services 5,727 7,377
— ERE RIS - non-audit services 199 671
Hih & & Other operating expenses 494,897 386,845
2,352,498 1,946,297
13. REVEAFEREZEKRSE 13. NET GAIN FROM FAIR VALUE
ADJUSTMENTS ON INVESTMENT
PROPERTIES
2013 2012
BET T PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
KEMF AN FERHEF Net gain from fair value adjustments on
Wz (FIEE27) investment properties (Note 27) 169,414 178,766

14. &’?_E{Eftﬂl% C B R Z R
=,/ (EE8)

14. NET GAIN/(LOSS) FROM DISPOSAL/
REVALUATION OF PROPERTIES,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

2013 2012

BT T BT

HK$’'000 HK$'000

HEFEZFEE Net loss from disposal of premises - (995)

6 H A B FE & 2 2 5 5 E Net loss from disposal of other fixed assets (4,609) (3,894)
BHEEZFRE Net gain/(loss) from revaluation of

(E18) (MI5E28) premises (Note 28) 8,085 (1,738)

3,476 (6,627)
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15. BB 15. TAXATION
Wask Az BIBAK AT ¢ Taxation in the income statement represents:
2013 2012
BT T PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000
AR IR Current tax
BENEH Hong Kong profits tax
— FNEFTARIE — current year taxation 439,500 365,036
— EFE R — over-provision in prior years (6,254) (7,942)
433,246 357,094
BN IE Overseas taxation
— FAFTARIA — current year taxation 179,858 71,372
— EF (BBx), /T REE — (over)/under-provision in prior years (17,010) 2,863
596,094 431,329
RIAERIE Deferred tax
TR =R 2 EE KRR (F17E34) Origination and reversal of
temporary differences (Note 34) (65,541) (11,516)
530,553 419,813

7 1 19 4 T 42 B AN 4 5 St B 2R B 3 R AR B R 16.5%
(20124 © 16.5% ) 125 « SN FI 2 B IR AR A [ {3t
FERR R R R BT R TR R 2 (TR R A o

AEERVAENEENERTE - EREFBFEH R
HROHRBEZERMT :

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of
16.5% (2012: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas
profits has been calculated on the estimated assessable
profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the
countries in which the Group operates.

The taxation on the Group's profit before taxation that
differs from the theoretical amount that would arise using
the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

2013 2012

BT T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

R 350 Al g A Profit before taxation 3,359,210 2,759,771
1&F#16.5% (20124 : 16.5%) Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

HERFE (2012: 16.5%) 554,270 455,362
HERHEEEENTE Effect of different taxation rates in other countries 23,684 18,893
R 2 WA Income not subject to taxation (76,226) (70,295)
A% LA HR 2 B S Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes 20,050 13,482
RIERN TS EIE Tax losses not recognised 1 298
2 A FARERR IS E Utilisation of previously unrecognised tax losses (385) —
TR Over-provision in prior years (23,264) (5,079)
TFINEIETR Foreign withholding tax 32,423 7,152
FFABIEA Taxation charge 530,553 419,813
= Effective tax rate 15.79% 15.21%
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16. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE BANK

The consolidated profit attributable to the equity holders
of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2013 includes
a profit of HK$2,410,506,000 (2012: HK$2,072,764,000)
which has been dealt with in the financial statements of
the Bank.

17. BRE 17. DIVIDENDS
2013 2012
R B =il @
Per share Total Per share Total
it BET T ok BT T
HK$ HK$'000 HK$ HK$'000
B S Interim dividend paid 77 539,000 56 392,000

R2013F12H12H - EFEEHRZE2013FF R EFR
TR T77T - AR ABH539,000,0007T ©

18. ERBRIKAK
REEETHNEBEIGTEEE AR BB ENERE 2B
ERFEIRPRRBE D RESTE - BIEBERKTE
EEAMBEERNTEIZEAHRIBBEERELRTE 25%
MEEZFRAEREREERNAFHF Z5%E15%TE (R T
BEZRGFE) - BEEBEMOFEREHERE  EEFE
HAZR B U ER100% 2 (B £ (30 - sk R34 =94 RIS HAfE
% FERK - RATERIK  XREKRT e N REREXERE
BERIESER (HENEERERRIN) T WE30%ZE90% 2
EEHF -

BEZBRTE L IEHIN2000F12 81 BB - NEB IR EF R
RBESEEL TS - &8 2 ZFEA B R B ER
ERAERRAR  REEEABTREALERRAEESES
[RAR - WWRERARHYARNRITZHEBEAL °

#H £2013F12A318 (Lt F & - 7 & % 7 #358,0007T
(20124 : #)7% #318,0007T) Z 8 W 18 - B = E K
sHEl 2 M AT H) BB 37,267,0007T (20124 « L8
36,771,0007T) * MASERAE TS 2 HREERNA
75 #5,976,0007T (20124 : 4975%5,375,0007T) °

On 12 December 2013, the Board declared an interim
dividend of HK$77 per ordinary share for 2013 amounting
to HK$539,000,000.

18. RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

The principal defined contribution schemes for the Group’s
employees are ORSO schemes exempted under the MPF
Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice
MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make
monthly contributions to the ORSO schemes equal to 5%
of their basic salaries, while the employer makes monthly
contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’
monthly basic salaries, depending on years of service.
The employees are entitled to receive 100% of the
employer’s contributions upon termination of employment
after completing 10 years of service, or at a scale ranging
from 30% to 90% for employees who have completed
between 3 to 9 years of service, on conditions of retirement,
early retirement, permanent incapacity and ill-health or
termination of employment other than summary dismissal.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on
1 December 2000, the Group also participates in the BOC-
Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which the trustee
is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Manager, which are related parties of the
Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO
schemes for the year ended 31 December 2013 amounted
to approximately HK$37,267,000 (2012: approximately
HK$36,771,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions
of approximately HK$358,000 (2012: approximately
HK$318,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group contributed
approximately HK$5,976,000 (2012: approximately
HK$5,375,000) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

167



168

#17% %% 445 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 44§

B R AR Y AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

19. EE - SEEBEAEBRTIEAEMNE

(a) E=HE

RERFASBRARTEE/ARTREENBRRRMEZ
RGN RERUCRK 2 S FFITMT
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19. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S AND KEY
PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS

(a) Directors’ emoluments

Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the
directors of the Bank in respect of their services rendered for
the Bank and managing the subsidiaries within the Group
during the year are as follows:

2013 2012

BET T BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

ke Fees 6,045 6,515
Hin e Other emoluments 8,063 10,426
14,108 16,941

(b) CG-5TEAREEAERTEAENEM

BELERBHZCG-5 (REMNHMHIEED)  AFEARE
BrERERAERTIEASHHMABET

(i)  REARTHIFB

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management
and Key Personnel under CG-5

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration

System issued by the HKMA, details of the remuneration for

Senior Management and Key Personnel of the Group during

the year are as follows:

(i) Remuneration awarded during the year

2013
EREEAR TEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
E 37413 E 37413
Non- EE @gt Non- T @st
deferred  Deferred Total deferred  Deferred Total
B¥TT BTz B¥ETx #B¥Tr B¥%Trn  BYETxo
HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000
EhvaE | Fixed remuneration
Be Cash 10,005 - 10,005 5,552 - 5,552
I Variable remuneration
Re Cash 3,939 531 4,470 2,068 - 2,068
st Total 13,944 531 14,475 7,620 - 7,620
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19. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S AND KEY
PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management
and Key Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)

(i) RERXBEFHIFH (&) (i) Remuneration awarded during the year (Cont'd)
2012
BREEAR FEAE
Senior Management Key Personnel
FEEIE JEEIE
Non- BT FERy Non- BT st
deferred Deferred Total deferred Deferred Total
BETT B%Tr A¥Tr A¥%Tr BT E¥T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
& T Fixed remuneration
e Cash 9,530 - 9,530 5,215 - 5,215
FENE B Variable remuneration
Be Cash 3,740 500 4,240 1,961 - 1,961
sst Total 13,270 500 13,770 7,176 - 7.176

LA F 5 BN B 3E4AR (20124F 1 58) 24 & B A B k4%

(2012€F : 48) EBAB -

(i)  EFEFBY

The remuneration above includes 4 (2012: 5) members

of Senior Management and 4 (2012: 4) members of Key

Personnel.

(ii) Deferred remuneration

2013 2012
BREEASR TEAE EREBEAE TEAB
Senior Key Senior Key
Management Personnel Management Personnel
BETT BETT BB BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3R 5 2 Deferred remuneration

EHE Vested 253 - 90 -
bl Unvested 948 - 670 _
1,201 - 760 =
®1A1H At 1 January 670 - 260 =
BT Awarded 531 - 500 -
B3 Paid out (253) - (90) -

IR A A Reduced through performance
[EAVER= %) adjustments - _ _ B
M12A31H At 31 December 948 = 670 -
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19. EX - SEEEABRZEAE#HE

(%)
(b) CG-5TEREBAEREEAENHMH (B

(i)  BEEFH (&)
REBERE  ABOHRRNSREBAERTIEAEDRE
ER(RROFMGIERES) £

SREBAE EFESHETHNSREEAR  AEERKR
HBEXER - BRITBARKREIRLE -

IBAE  BARBEBSRERRRAE  SEBREESR
BEARE MEAABEHRREEFER BEAFE %Y
BANBERFZENAR  BEREFANRBREANEME
B EERTIENEBREEILEE o
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19. DIRECTORS’, SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S AND KEY
PERSONNEL’'S EMOLUMENTS (Contd)

(b) Remuneration for Senior Management
and Key Personnel under CG-5 (Cont'd)

(ii) Deferred remuneration (Cont’d)

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key
Personnel mentioned in this section are defined according
to the HKMA's Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System.

Senior Management: The senior executives designated by
the Board who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide
strategy or material business lines, including Chief Executive
and Deputy General Managers.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business
activities involve the assumption of material risk which may
have significant impact on risk exposure, or whose individual
responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the
profit, including heads of material business lines, Head of
Treasury, as well as Head of Risk Management Department.

200 EGHREREHREBETREMESHMEEN  20. CASH AND BALANCES WITH
EER BANKS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
INSTITUTIONS
rEE RERAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
BEfFRe Cash 883,699 651,229 591,385 383,218
TFR R REBITHIAS R Balances with central banks 17,068,323 13,139,030 853,838 35,306
FHERTT R EH A Balances with banks and
SR IE R AR other financial institutions 13,858,127 13,263,797 13,981,814 13,026,968
EIRIT R EM S Bl Placements with banks and
HE—EAA other financial institutions
BIH 7 EEATE R maturing within one month 12,929,170 13,734,264 3,413,297 8,313,216
44,739,319 40,788,320 18,840,334 21,758,708
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21. AFVESLFABRZERMEE 21. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS
AEERAHAT
The Group and the Bank
RERUDNFERE
TABEZEHERE
Financial assets
RE RS designated at fair value #st
Trading securities through profit or loss Total
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

BT BARTT  B®Fx BBt BETx BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 ~ HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000

BATEAR At fair value
EBES Debt securities
- REBLM — Listed in Hong Kong = - 260,730 264,125 260,730 264,125
— REBUI £ — Listed outside Hong Kong - - 237,927 508,696 237,927 508,696
- = 498,657 772,821 498,657 772,821
-3t - Unlisted 3,666,036 4,272,358 - 79,981 3,666,036 4,352,339
B Total 3,666,036 4,272,358 498,657 852,802 4,164,693 5,125,160
NP EZ T ABR eMEERBITHEZ DRNT ¢ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
analysed by type of issuer as follows:
AEBRARIT
The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ELERS Sovereigns 3,665,412 4,271,737
NIk Public sector entities* 624 621
NGRS Corporate entities 498,657 852,802
4,164,693 5,125,160
* BIEE (R17%E (BX) RAD ARABRLEMNH R FEELF AR * Included financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
=2 SR EEBR624,0007T (20124 : #%621,0007T) ° HK$624,000 (2012: HK$621,000) which are eligible to be classified
as public sector entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
NP EZ T ABRZ eRMEEDRWT ¢ Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
analysed as follows:
KEERARRLT
The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
BEET T BT TT
HK$'000 HK$'000
E% Treasury bills 3,665,412 4,271,737
Hih A FEZ T ABRZ Other financial assets at fair value through
TREE profit or loss 499,281 853,423

4,164,693 5,125,160
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22. PTEEWMIA

AREBETZTFIER - FX - Em MR DEEAENITES
BMTEANIFEERRAREE A :

EMINERWRIENAIRE — BB RFINERYAGE ©

BEERF R HRERBIRIRSIMA A - HHNERE
R|ARERE - FIE (AEE M EEFEHK) KA LA
BHEAE (MXXEEFERH) - RRLEEBIRMEOIN &

ERGERBRXBEAE °

SNE - BEeBRBENESHESHEMENES (LED) B
B (5870 REERRE —BEAHIRK—EKHA
BEHOENEREE (RBEHR) (E L REHE) —EHE
M BT A RN (i 3E&GE) 1 — i o B B2 SMNEM
MERER  PEOESEBESRR—ENHEE - AEE
HEAOREH T HEZIMIREERK

AEEZTESRTIARYD LR NBEREATEFD
RTR - BREEBMTANEGK BRANERERTNE
EEBERBRTHZRIE  METEMIAZEN &
BREBEARAT EREEARKAMERNRFEEE
S EENHE AR - B - X TREMTRERKRNHEE
MEREANAFE - B th T aERRAEE R EERNE SR
sk mis Ak - BEEETESR T AANRKIEBENER -
mEMNE EEBERIBOESERNKE  ITESRT
AEMAEATEELEHRITAN (BE) X TH (BE) O
£ FLPETRETRBEARKHINE -

AEBETSARGIMIEERR SN IEZBENRHARER
% - GREEZP MAETSRMOITEERR ST ES
BRASEZEARREERRERE
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The Group enters into the following exchange rate, interest
rate, commodity and equity related derivative financial
instrument contracts for trading and risk management
purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and
sell foreign currency on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to
exchange one set of cash flows for another. Swaps result
in an exchange of currencies, interest rates (for example,
fixed rate for floating rate), or a combination of all these
(for example, cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for
certain currency swap contracts, no exchange of principal
takes place.

Foreign currency, precious metal and equity options are
contractual agreements under which the seller (writer) grants
the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation,
either to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or
by a set date or during a set period, a specific amount
of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and
interest rate risk, the seller receives a premium from the
purchaser. Options are negotiated over-the-counter (“OTC")
between the Group and its counterparty.

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative
financial instruments held by the Group are set out in the
following tables. The contract/notional amounts of these
instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding
at the balance sheet dates and certain of them provide a
basis for comparison with fair value instruments recognised
on the balance sheet. However, they do not necessarily
indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not
indicate the Group’s exposure to credit or market risks. The
derivative financial instruments become favourable (assets) or
unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in foreign
exchange rates, market interest rates, metal prices or equity
prices relative to their terms. The aggregate fair values of
derivative financial instruments assets and liabilities can
fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-
traded or OTC) mainly for customer business. The Group
strictly follows risk management policies and requirement in
providing derivative products to our customers and in trading
of derivative products in the interbank market.
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of
the banking book. A derivative instrument must be included
in the approved product list before any transactions for
that instrument can be made. There are limits to control
the notional amount of exposure arising from derivative
transactions, and the maximum tenor of the deal is set.
Every derivative transaction must be input into the relevant
system for settlement, mark to market revaluation, reporting
and control.

The following tables summarise the contract/notional
amounts of each class of derivative financial instrument as
at 31 December:

rEE
The Group
2013
ARARA
P REE
Not qualified
EE  for hedge st
Trading accounting Total
BETT BETT BET T
HK$°000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
fERA %) Exchange rate contracts
B EA &% 3= HR Spot and forwards 13,620,622 - 13,620,622
15 1 Swaps 27,813,930 - 27,813,930
HINE 22 5 B A Foreign currency options
— B AHRRE — Options purchased 22,156 - 22,156
— B L HiE — Options written 22,156 - 22,156
41,478,864 - 41,478,864
FEEH Interest rate contracts
$= B Swaps 43,343,986 464,465 43,808,451
Ema 4 Commodity contracts 211,761 = 211,761
Hih&# Other contracts 3,837 - 3,837
4t Total 85,038,448 464,465 85,502,913

THERAEPEFHE: REBARITE (KRE) KA 2
Ko FBEUFRBETNTARBERGHEER - BEEEUR
FEAELSRERARNSHTA—ERNTETASL -

Not qualified for hedge accounting: derivative contracts
which do not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes but
are managed in conjunction with the financial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss are separately
disclosed in compliance with the requirements set out in the
Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

REE
The Group
2012
TR &
Mg
Not qualified
== for hedge HRET
Trading accounting Total
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE R A 4 Exchange rate contracts
B EA K 2= HA Spot and forwards 23,183,476 - 23,183,476
it Swaps 19,932,539 - 19,932,539
HNEE 32 5 B ke Foreign currency options
— B AR — Options purchased 29,589 - 29,589
— B — Options written 29,589 — 29,589
43,175,193 - 43,175,193
F=A 4 Interest rate contracts
= B Swaps 35,851,341 720,082 36,571,423
BERA 4 Commodity contracts 142,395 _ 142,395
B ES A 4 Equity contracts 47,104 = 47,104
H A 4 Other contracts 4,496 - 4,496
it Total 79,220,529 720,082 79,940,611
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

AR T
The Bank
2013
TREERA
HHEE
Not qualified
BEE for hedge st
Trading  accounting Total
BET T BEET T BET T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
fERA 4 Exchange rate contracts
BVER K2 3= 2R Spot and forwards 7,097,789 - 7,097,789
12 5 Swaps 19,584,063 - 19,584,063
HNEE 32 5 BAE Foreign currency option
— B A B — Options purchased 22,156 - 22,156
— & L EAfE — Options written 22,156 - 22,156
26,726,164 - 26,726,164
FEEH Interest rate contracts
= Hi Swaps 1,272,262 464,465 1,736,727
Emas Commodity contracts 188,037 - 188,037
HEMEK Other contracts 3,837 - 3,837
4B =t Total 28,190,300 464,465 28,654,765
AIRTT
The Bank
2012
TEEHA
HAHEEHA
Not qualified
= for hedge #ast
Trading accounting Total
PRI PRI PRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fERAH Exchange rate contracts
BIHA & 3= Hf Spot and forwards 16,092,063 - 16,092,063
= B Swaps 14,574,798 - 14,574,798
SN EREZ - Foreign currency option
— B AHiRE — Options purchased 29,589 - 29,589
— B HARE — Options written 29,589 = 29,589
30,726,039 - 30,726,039
FEEL Interest rate contracts
= B Swaps 2,133,652 720,082 2,853,734
Ema i Commodity contracts 92,496 = 92,496
D EmE L Equity contracts 9,636 = 9,636
HAth & %) Other contracts 4,496 = 4,496
FES Total 32,966,319 720,082 33,686,401
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22. PTEE®IA W) 22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class
of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:

TRERRSETESHMITANI2A3IBZATE

AEHE
The Group
2013
APEEE AFEERE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
THEHA THEHRA
HhEE EIbl-H
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE  for hedge #ct BE  for hedge @5t
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BETT BETT BETT BT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
[ERALH) Exchange rate contracts
ENHR iR 5 Spot and forwards 411,547 = 411,547 (110,301) - (110,301)
= Swaps 26,554 - 26,554  (112,844) - (112,849
IMNER 5 HifE Foreign currency option
- BB - Options purchased 71 = 71 = = =
- BB - Options written = = - (71) - )
438,172 - 438,172 (223,216) - (223,216)
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
e Swaps 56,854 - 56,854 (79,837) (38,748)  (118,585)
BERaEs Commodity contracts 13,425 - 13,425 (1,355) = (1,355)
HiaH Other contracts 2 - 2 - _ -
ot Total 508,453 - 508,453 (304,408) (38,748) (343,156)




www.ncb.com.hk

22. fTEE€mIE )

#1787 % 441 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 43§

B R P AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

piN L]
The Group
2012
AVEERE ATERE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
AHFEHRA THEHA
Hesi Hheshi
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE  for hedge Fobs BE  for hedge ety
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BT BT BT BT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEXEH Exchange rate contracts
BVER Jo i 5B Spot and forwards 565,560 - 565,560 (255,436) - (255,436)
= H Swaps 142,451 - 142,451 (22,390) - (22,390)
HNERT 5 ER e Foreign currency option
— B AHE - Options purchased 130 - 130 - - -
=il ~ Options written - - = (130) = (130)
708,141 - 708,141 (277,956) - (277,956)
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
=8 Swaps 53,255 - 53,255 (108,691) (72,348) (181,039)
Bma i Commodity contracts 2,967 = 2,967 (399) = (399)
RiEZELD Equity contracts 213 = 213 (213) = 213)
Hi g4 Other contracts 1 = 1 - = =
st Total 764,577 = 764,577 (387,259) (72,348) (459,607)
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

KRBT
The Bank
2013
AHEEE ATEAE
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
TRERA TRERA
HHEHE ek
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE  for hedge @5t BE  for hedge @t
Trading accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BETT BET T BET T BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
[ERAH Exchange rate contracts
BVER Jo i 5B Spot and forwards 380,320 - 380,320 (95,705) - (95,705)
=8 Swaps 16,672 - 16,672 (89,292) - (89,292)
INER 5 HiHE Foreign currency option
- B A - Options purchased 71 - 71 - - -
- M - Options written = = - (71) - 1)
397,063 - 397,063 (185,068) - (185,068)
FIEE4 Interest rate contracts
=8 Swaps - - - (23,187) (38,748) (61,935)
EmEs Commodity contracts 13,369 - 13,369 (1,311) = (1,311)
HiaH Other contracts 2 = 2 = = =
FCEy Total 410,434 - 410,434 (209,566) (38,748) (248,314)
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

ARIT
The Bank
2012
ATEEE ATEAR
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
THEEERA THEHRA
ek Hhass
Not Not
qualified qualified
BE  for hedge 5 BE  for hedge et
Trading  accounting Total Trading  accounting Total
BETT BT BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERAHK Exchange rate contracts
I RES Spot and forwards 530,800 - 530,800  (230,900) - (230,900
R Swaps 115,895 - 115,895 (17,301) = (17,301)
HNE RS 5 e Foreign currency option
- BE A - Options purchased 130 = 130 - = =
- E LA — Options written = = = (130) = (130)
646,825 - 646,825 (248,331) - (248,331)
FIEEH Interest rate contracts
= Swaps - - - (55,436) (72,348) (127,784)
Amad Commodity contracts 2,824 - 2,824 (257) - (257)
R ERELN Equity contracts 53 = 53 (53) - (53)
Hih g4 Other contracts 1 - 1 - - -
@t Total 649,703 - 649,703 (304,077) (72,348) (376,425)

179



180  #1i§# %4644 o NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT £

B R AR Y AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

22. fTEE€mIE )

TRIMEAEERE R FEE
FEBHDBER

s
=
=5r

AFRRULERZ ©ERBMRABRIETMRE -

FEERBRIMNESREIRE (RITE (BX) RADFHE - lh&
BEURR R ZHF 2 HREELR

Ny

BRIZ IR -

BEEZITETREALN
R INESE RN FE  T2REBE

www.ncb.com.hk

22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

The tables below give the contract/notional amounts, credit
risk-weighted amounts and fair values of derivatives after
taking into account the effect of valid bilateral netting
agreements and are prepared with reference to the
Completion Instructions for the HKMA return of capital
adequacy ratio.

The credit risk-weighted amounts are calculated in
accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amounts
are dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the
maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

REE
The Group
2013
FERE
N % InREEEE
EHEE Credit
Contract/ risk- A¥E
notional weighted Fair
amount amount value
BT T BT T BT T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
PE =54 Exchange rate contracts
BNHA & 3= Hf Spot and forwards 9,598,359 196,207 79,702
fe 5 Swaps 26,059,621 88,727 23,878
35,657,980 284,934 103,580
FEE4L Interest rate contracts
1= Bf Swaps 43,808,451 35,998 29,667
1Bt Total 79,466,431 320,932 133,247
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

REE
The Group
2012
=B ER
CEOVEE =t hntEsER

A= Credit
Contract/ risk- NEE
notional weighted Fair
amount amount value
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERA 4 Exchange rate contracts
BVER K 3= R Spot and forwards 17,422,349 174,157 66,483
¥ Hi Swaps 17,864,217 77,605 137,925
35,286,566 251,762 204,408
FEE4L Interest rate contracts
2 A Swaps 36,571,423 31,045 24,385
[EEREKS) Commodity contracts 49,899 2,809 69
& 10 #e e & 40 Equity contracts 37,467 1,173 127
FEE Total 71,945,355 286,789 228,989
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22. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Contd)

AR T
The Bank
2013
FERE
R E% ez
EHEE Credit
Contract/ risk- A¥E
notional weighted Fair
amount amount value
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
PE& S 4 Exchange rate contracts
BNHA & 3= B Spot and forwards 3,075,526 97,974 48,613
}= B Swaps 17,967,167 52,614 14,967
21,042,693 150,588 63,580
FIREL Interest rate contracts
o HA Swaps 1,736,727 2,334 -
4az Total 22,779,420 152,922 63,580
ARERTT
The Bank
2012
=ERE
B8 BE DN S EE
AHEE Credit
Contract/ risk- ~NEE
notional weighted Fair
amount amount value
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fERAH Exchange rate contracts
BIHA & 3= B Spot and forwards 10,330,935 80,560 31,722
o HA Swaps 13,011,854 54,064 115,804
23,342,789 134,624 147,526
FEEL Interest rate contracts
= Swaps 2,853,734 2,548 =
FEE Total 26,196,523 137,172 147,526

REBRARTHRFEBEAL EERNEEFREE R

MEE -

There is no effect of valid bilateral netting agreement for the
fair values in the Group and the Bank.
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23. ADVANCES AND OTHER

ACCOUNTS
AEE RERAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BAER Personal loans and advances 26,727,594 22,002,049 16,522,275 15,651,764
UNGIN= Corporate loans and advances 116,814,449 109,151,060 73,068,854 69,411,566
2EEH* Advances to customers* 143,542,043 131,153,109 89,591,129 85,063,330
ERREER Loan impairment allowances

— ARG — Individually assessed (280,913) (220,593) (79,556) (58,444)
— REAFTE — Collectively assessed (1,187,015) (969,449) (595,975) (591,183)
142,074,115 129,963,067 88,915,598 84,413,703
B2 5Z8 Trade bills 13,242,636 8,069,618 9,458,019 5,504,118
B =t Total 155,316,751 138,032,685 98,373,617 89,917,821

R2013F12A318 ' AEBRABRITZ2EFERBE
fE 5t F B D Bl A& 78 #326,587,0007T (20124 : & #&
522,723,0007C) N 76 #142,721,0007C (20124 : & ¥
303,115,0007%) °

M20135F12 8318 K2012512 8318 - REAEYUB S EHE
HERE X -

o BEAEERARITZETEFE BEXD B A %E%64,930,071,000
70 (20124 © & %65,256,992,0000T) K % #62,071,556,000
7t (20124 : % #562,941,947,000T) RETEFERT &A%
34,374,429,0007T (20124 : # #27,860,495,0007T) K & #
24,686,906,0007T (20124 : #%20,197,752,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2013, advances to customers of the Group
and the Bank included accrued interest of HK$326,587,000
(2012: HK$522,723,000) and HK$142,721,000 (2012:
HK$303,115,000) respectively.

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, no impairment allowance
was made in respect of trade bills.

* Included advances to customers of the Group and the Bank
denominated in HK dollars of HK$64,930,071,000 (2012:
HK$65,256,992,000) and HK$62,071,556,000 (2012:
HK$62,941,947,000) and US dollars equivalent to HK$34,374,429,000
(2012: HK$27,860,495,000) and HK$24,686,906,000 (2012:
HK$20,197,752,000) respectively.
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24. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES

FEE ARAT
The Group The Bank
2013
218 B3R
Individual assessment
BA N #ct A AH st
Personal Corporate Total  Personal Corporate Total
BT BETx B¥ETx ABE¥Tr #E¥Tr BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20131 H18 At 1 January 2013 8,305 212,288 220,593 788 57,656 58,444
NI EE ey Charged to income
statement 3,645 155,034 158,679 2,783 26,475 29,258
FRHMEE 2 Loans written off during
A EE R the year as uncollectible - (153,427) (153,427) - (15,736)  (15,736)
Y el B i 5K R IR Recoveries 1,493 50,443 51,936 106 8,321 8,427
FHRELEE Unwind of discount on
[o] £ impairment allowances (371) (2,223) (2,594) - (846) (846)
&N =% Exchange difference 127 5,599 5.726 - 9 9
R2013512A31H At 31 December 2013 13,199 267,714 280,913 3,677 75,879 79,556
FEE ARAT
The Group The Bank
2013
REAQTIE
Collective assessment
BA N st A AH st
Personal Corporate Total  Personal Corporate Total
BETT EBETx B¥Tr AB¥Tr E¥Tr BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201351 H18 At 1 January 2013 47,201 922,248 969,449 6,396 584,787 591,183
N EE ey Charged to income
statement 36,935 174,353 211,288 9,367 2,102 11,469
FRHEE 2 Loans written off during
KB E the year as uncollectible (6,747) = (6,747) (6,747) = (6,747)
M H = Exchange difference 456 12,569 13,025 - 70 70
R2013512 4318 At 31 December 2013 77,845 1,109,170 1,187,015 9,016 586,959 595,975
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24. LOAN IMPAIRMENT ALLOWANCES

(Cont'd)
REH ANERAT
The Group The Bank
2012
R ERIFHE
Individual assessment
A NG| et EA NG| Bt
Personal  Corporate Total Personal  Corporate Total
BETT AT AT ATz  BETr  BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201291818 At 1 January 2012 4,566 83,049 87,615 2,698 8,954 11,652
RIS RBHE Charged/(credited) to
(%E=) income statement 2,979 133,574 136,553 (2,377) 54,043 51,666
FAMEEZ Loans written off during
A EIE = the year as uncollectible (38) (9,796) (9,834) - (9,456) (9,456)
U [B] B 5 BR 18 Recoveries 1,071 12,452 13,523 471 5,728 6,199
PR EER Unwind of discount on
[o] 4B impairment allowances (377) (7,702) (8,079) - (1,606) (1,606)
PEH =% Exchange difference 104 711 815 (4) (7) (11)
2012412 A31H At 31 December 2012 8,305 212,288 220,593 788 57,656 58,444
AEE ARERAT
The Group The Bank
2012
REA T
Collective assessment
A NG| et fAA NG| Bt
Personal  Corporate Total Personal  Corporate Total
BETT AT AT AT BT  BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201291818 At 1 January 2012 42,177 662,955 705,132 6,901 421,550 428,451
RIS R BHE Charged/(credited) to
(#m) income statement 4,979 255,416 260,395 (505) 163,217 162,712
PEH =% Exchange difference 45 3,877 3,922 - 20 20
20124612 A31H At 31 December 2012 47,201 922,248 969,449 6,396 584,787 591,183
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25. BHRE 25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES
Py | AT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BETT BETT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
(a) A HEE S (a) Available-for-sale securities
BBES  BRATEAR Debt securities, at fair value
—REBLT — Listed in Hong Kong 3,479,005 3,125,220 3,479,005 3,125,220
—REBUSN LT ~ Listed outside Hong Kong 4,580,287 5,058,760 4,580,287 5,058,760
8,059,292 8,183,980 8,059,292 8,183,980
—JLEm - Unlisted 24,202,495 24,550,772 18,917,474 18,345,307
32,261,787 32,734,752 26,976,766 26,529,287
BFHE  BATFEAR Certificates of deposit, at fair value
— REBUI LT ~ Listed outside Hong Kong 260,416 304,946 260,416 304,946
— Lk - Unlisted 7,416,469 5,265,017 7,416,469 5,265,017
7,676,885 5,569,963 7,676,885 5,569,963
WS - RATFEAR  Equity securities, at fair value
—JEm — Unlisted 63,965 56,146 63,965 56,146
40,002,637 38,360,861 34,717,616 32,155,396
(b) BEZEHARESE (b Held-to-maturity securities
BFES - WEBEKAARE  Debt securities, at amortised cost
—JEm - Unlisted 585,442 1,006,783 298 122,082
TFEE  WEBEKAR AR Certificates of deposit, at amortised cost
— 3L — Unlisted = 464,743 - 464,743
585,442 1,471,526 298 586,825
(9] EXREB (€ Loans and receivables
JE BT o IR AR AR A BR Unlisted, at amortised cost 1,684,064 1,157,262 1,684,064 1,157,262
st Total 42,272,143 40,989,649 36,401,978 33,899,483
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25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as

follows:
rEE
The Group
2013
AHHE BEZE
ot ZHAH B BRR
Available- Held-to- R
for-sale maturity Loans and #st
securities securities receivables Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
ELHER Sovereigns 9,942,492 585,144 - 10,527,636
N VA Public sector entities* 604,814 = = 604,814
SRIT N E M S REE Banks and other financial institutions 20,094,280 298 850,686 20,945,264
NI Corporate entities 9,361,051 - 833,378 10,194,429
40,002,637 585,442 1,684,064 42,272,143
REH
The Group
2012
AHEE REZE
B I8 EH BER K
Available- Held-to- JE W R
for-sale maturity Loans and 5
securities securities receivables Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ELER Sovereigns 14,408,938 884,701 - 15,293,639
NSV Public sector entities* 506,992 — - 506,992
RIT R H M & B Banks and other financial institutions 16,454,503 465,639 - 16,920,142
NI Corporate entities 6,990,428 121,186 1,157,262 8,268,876
38,360,861 1,471,526 1,157,262 40,989,649
o BIEE (GRITE (BAX) 8A)) ARAI AR B AR H & E 581 * Included available-for-sale securities of HK$604,814,000 (2012:

604,814,0007T (20124 :

ﬁéﬁ%soe,%z,ooom o

HK$506,992,000) which are eligible to be classified as public sector

entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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25. BHEBE @®) 25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)
1T
The Bank
2013
AHHE BEZE
ot ZHHE S BRR
Available- Held-to- R
for-sale maturity Loans and #st
securities securities receivables Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BELERE Sovereigns 6,511,281 - - 6,511,281
N R VA Public sector entities* * 604,814 - - 604,814
RITRE M S RS Banks and other financial institutions 20,031,071 298 850,686 20,882,055
NCTRTSES Corporate entities 7,570,450 - 833,378 8,403,828
34,717,616 298 1,684,064 36,401,978
AERTT
The Bank
2012
AHEE BEE
B FHAES BHk
Available- Held-to- JE W SR
for-sale maturity Loans and HEt
securities securities receivables Total
BT T BET T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ELER Sovereigns 9,953,382 = = 9,953,382
INEEEf Public sector entities** 506,992 - - 506,992
SRITRE M RikE Banks and other financial institutions 16,454,503 465,639 - 16,920,142
UNCIRTES Corporate entities 5,240,519 121,186 1,157,262 6,518,967
32,155,396 586,825 1,157,262 33,899,483
oG BIEE CRITE (BX) RA)) AR AR E BRI & FHAL @i Included available-for-sale securities of HK$604,814,000 (2012:

604,814,0007T (20124 :

7##506,992,0007T) °

HK$506,992,000) which are eligible to be classified as public sector

entities under the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

The movements in investment in securities are summarised

as follows:
KEH
The Group
2013
AEHE BEE

BH BEAES BRK
Available- Held-to- FEWRR
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
20131818 At 1 January 2013 38,360,861 1,471,526 1,157,262
0 Additions 56,982,757 - 2,305,726
RE - HE[E &5 Disposals, redemptions and maturity (54,005,892) (908,005) (1,828,041)
e Amortisation (32,171) (5,142) 6,548
N EE(L Change in fair value (624,520) = =
E N =% Exchange difference (678,398) 27,063 42,569
72013412 A31H At 31 December 2013 40,002,637 585,442 1,684,064

AEE

The Group
2012
AEEE REZE

Eels FHBES =504
Available- Held-to- JFE UK
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201291 A18 At 1 January 2012 26,755,985 1,550,700 1,875,919
0 Additions 127,753,821 2,086,927 1,367,099
RE - BE &EIEH Disposals, redemptions and maturity (116,673,519) (2,200,797) (2,143,510)
B Amortisation 50,460 7,575 14,195
RNEBEZ L Change in fair value 328,116 - -
[ 5 =58 Exchange difference 145,998 27,121 43,559
20124912 A31H At 31 December 2012 38,360,861 1,471,526 1,157,262
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25. BEHERE @) 25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)
AERAT
The Bank
2013
AftHE BEZE
BH EHAES EXK
Available- Held-to- i e
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BET T BET T BET T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2013F1A1H At 1 January 2013 32,155,396 586,825 1,157,262
=0 Additions 55,415,150 - 2,305,726
RE - EE &I Disposals, redemptions and maturity (51,671,550) (587,798) (1,828,041)
b Amortisation (2,920) 74 6,548
NEBEE Change in fair value (494,573) - -
PE N =% Exchange difference (683,887) 1,197 42,569
M2013%12H31H At 31 December 2013 34,717,616 298 1,684,064
ARIRTT
The Bank
2012
A S HEE
&5 3 AES /04
Available- Held-to- JRE MR
for-sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201251818 At 1 January 2012 23,569,575 570,537 1,875,919
byl Additions 122,537,850 1,762,996 1,367,099
RE - EEREH Disposals, redemptions and maturity (114,406,071) (1,765,360) (2,143,510)
e Amortisation (2,221) (232) 14,195
NFERE Change in fair value 340,360 - -
&5 =5 Exchange difference 115,903 18,884 43,559
720129128318 At 31 December 2012 32,155,396 586,825 1,157,262
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25. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES (Cont'd)

Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are analysed

as follows:
AEH
The Group
AHHERS BFEZIHAES
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
securities securities
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BETT BETT BT T
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
JEE2 Treasury bills 8,447,909 13,385,213 585,144 884,701
TF Certificates of deposit 7,676,885 5,569,963 = 464,743
HAit Others 23,877,843 19,405,685 298 122,082
40,002,637 38,360,861 585,442 1,471,526
FIR1T
The Bank
AHEERS BREZIHERS
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
securities securities

2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BETT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
e Treasury bills 4,953,490 8,929,657 = -
175 Certificates of deposit 7,676,885 5,569,963 - 464,743
A Others 22,087,241 17,655,776 298 122,082
34,717,616 32,155,396 298 586,825
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] 26. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES
RER1T
The Bank
2013 2012
BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000
IEETRRD - AR E AR Unlisted shares, at cost 8,171,067 8,171,067

ANERTTH20135FE12 A3 BB AR 2 F# BT ¢

ot &%/
R 2R A
Place and date
of incorporation/

The particulars of subsidiaries of the Bank as at 31 December

2013 are as follows:

BRTEHERE
SMER BRTEM
Issued and fully paid up

AR BB operation/ share capital/registered BEER TEEK
Name of company registration capital/units in issue Interest held Principal activities
EERE
Directly held:
EABERT (PE) FRAR 200712 A 148 AR 100% ROTEH
i AK#6,500,000,0007T
Nanyang Commercial Bank The People’s Registered capital Banking business
(China), Limited Republic of China RMB6,500,000,000
14 December 2007
HABRRITEEERAA 1976F10A228 300,000 i 100% 57tk
RER SREEREI0T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong 300,000 Ordinary shares of Trustee services
Trustee Limited 22 October 1976 HK$10 each
ENEREERERAR 1984454250 30,500% &k 100% RAERE
&R SREESE100T
Kwong Li Nam Investment Hong Kong 30,500 Ordinary shares of Investment agency
Agency Limited 25 May 1984 HK$100 each
MARERRT (REA) BRAF] 1980484224 500% &k 100% RIBARS
&R SREESE100T
Nanyang Commercial Bank Hong Kong 500 Ordinary shares of Nominee services
(Nominees) Limited 22 August 1980 HK$100 each
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rEE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BT T BB
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M1A1E At 1 January 1,027,083 847,948 979,670 802,260
NSV Fair value gains 169,414 178,766 167,890 177,410
EfHREE Reclassification to properties,
W - BV RS plant and equipment
(PrizE28) (Note 28) (22,958) - (21,050) =
5 =5 Exchange difference 1,399 369 - -
MW12A31H At 31 December 1,174,938 1,027,083 1,126,510 979,670

BREWMFEZ REERBORBKBRIFTOT

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based

on the remaining terms of the leases as follows:

EH AERIT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BET T BT BET T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEERA Held in Hong Kong
REIFHA) (FBiB504F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 1,010,910 884,150 1,010,910 884,150
R ERFE A On medium-term lease
(105 &E50%) (10 - 50 years) 115,600 95,520 115,600 95,520
EBBLINEE Held outside Hong Kong
HHAFR AT On medium-term lease
(10FZ50%) (10 - 50 years) 48,428 47413 - _
1,174,938 1,027,083 1,126,510 979,670

MR2013F12H310 " JIREEBBRAZKRED S - THiK
BRI EME - ALBENHEREEERER AR
R2013F12A31BUAFEAEERETZEERE - A
TEEATEEAEEERFRINBR TRAMS2EAE T
E—EHEEYERIEHER -

As at 31 December 2013, investment properties are included
in the balance sheets at valuation carried out at 31 December
2013 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm
of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited. The fair value represents the price that
would be received to sell each investment property in
an orderly transaction with market participants at the
measurement date.
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28. I - BMRRME 28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
rEE
The Group
®iE > BE
Rtk ERE
Equipment,
EE fixtures and wst
Premises fittings Total
BETT BET T BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
201351 A18 2 EEFE Net book value at 1 January 2013 5,846,795 378,200 6,224,995
e Additions 21,258 88,697 109,955
HE Disposals - (5,329) (5,329)
EELr Revaluation 802,649 - 802,649
FEFE (FF12) Depreciation for the year (Note 12) (97,703) (109,253) (206,956)
NS FEBRENE Reclassification from investment properties
(KIz£27) (Note 27) 22,958 = 22,958
PEH =% Exchange difference 13,421 7,544 20,965
R2013F 12831 B ZREFE Net book value at 31 December 2013 6,609,378 359,859 6,969,237
72013%12A31H At 31 December 2013
KAESRGE Cost or valuation 6,609,378 835,072 7,444,450
ZEtiE Accumulated depreciation - (475,213) (475,213)
201312 A31 B 2 RERE Net book value at 31 December 2013 6,609,378 359,859 6,969,237
FBEZRKAESREEDHTMOT - The analysis of cost or valuation
of the above assets is as follows:
2013128318 At 31 December 2013
B AE At cost - 835,072 835,072
Z{EE At valuation 6,609,378 = 6,609,378
6,609,378 835,072 7,444,450
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28. W% - BSMERE @ 28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)
AEH
The Group
&M BT
R FE
Equipment,
BE fixtures and @t
Premises fittings Total
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2012F1 A1 B ZBREFEE Net book value at 1 January 2012 4,231,342 352,069 4,583,411
2E Additions 306,817 122,702 429,519
HeE Disposals (5,887) (4,504) (10,391)
EXRa Revaluation 1,386,559 = 1,386,559
FEE (KizE12) Depreciation for the year (Note 12) (73,522) (93,417) (166,939)
PEH =% Exchange difference 1,486 1,350 2,836
2012912 A31 B ZREFE Net book value at 31 December 2012 5,846,795 378,200 6,224,995
72012912 A31H At 31 December 2012
AR EE Cost or valuation 5,846,795 764,461 6,611,256
2 E Accumulated depreciation - (386,261) (386,261)
R2012% 128318 Z2REFE Net book value at 31 December 2012 5,846,795 378,200 6,224,995
B EZKANESGEEDITAT © The analysis of cost or valuation
of the above assets is as follows:
72012912 A31H At 31 December 2012
HRRAE At cost - 764,461 764,461
1Zi4E At valuation 5,846,795 = 5,846,795
5,846,795 764,461 6,611,256
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28. I - BEMREE ) 28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)
AER1T
The Bank
RE - BE
Rk ERE
Equipment,
EE fixtures and Mt
Premises fittings Total
B¥TT B¥TT B¥TT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2013F1 A 18 ZREFE Net book value at 1 January 2013 5,381,905 79,256 5,461,161
b Additions 21,019 15,824 36,843
e Disposals - (1,296) (1,296)
ELr Revaluation 775,889 - 775,889
FENE Depreciation for the year (79,082) (22,601) (101,683)
BN BERRENE Reclassification from investment properties
(MisE27) (Note 27) 21,050 - 21,050
&N =% Exchange difference - 3 3
R2013F 128318 Z2BREFE Net book value at 31 December 2013 6,120,781 71,186 6,191,967
20135124318 At 31 December 2013
BAERGE Cost or valuation 6,120,781 262,876 6,383,657
ZEtihE Accumulated depreciation = (191,690) (191,690)
MR2013F 128318 ZEREFEE Net book value at 31 December 2013 6,120,781 71,186 6,191,967

ElEEZKAERMEEITT

M2013F12A31H
A ANE
1ZhE

The analysis of cost or valuation
of the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2013
At cost - 262,876 262,876
At valuation 6,120,781 - 6,120,781

6,120,781 262,876 6,383,657
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28. W% - BSMERE @ 28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)
ARER1T
The Bank
&M BT
R
Equipment,
BE fixtures and @t
Premises fittings Total
BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
R2012F1 A1 B ZBREFEE Net book value at 1 January 2012 4,038,737 81,513 4,120,250
2E Additions 27,031 21,368 48,399
HeE Disposals - (483) (483)
EXRn Revaluation 1,379,172 = 1,379,172
FEFE Depreciation for the year (63,035) (23,140) (86,175)
By =5 Exchange difference - (2) (2)
2012912 A31 B ZREFE Net book value at 31 December 2012 5,381,905 79,256 5,461,161
72012912 A31H At 31 December 2012
AR EE Cost or valuation 5,381,905 266,767 5,648,672
Z:HrE Accumulated depreciation - (187,511) (187,511)
A2012512 A31 B 2 REFE Net book value at 31 December 2012 5,381,905 79,256 5,461,161
B EZKANESGEESITAT ¢ The analysis of cost or valuation
of the above assets is as follows:
72012912 A31H At 31 December 2012
BAE At cost = 266,767 266,767
1Zi4E At valuation 5,381,905 = 5,381,905
5,381,905 266,767 5,648,672
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28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the
remaining terms of the leases as follows:

rEE AERAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EEBRE Held in Hong Kong
REML (BiB50F) On long-term lease (over 50 years) 4,594,346 4,009,054 4,594,346 4,009,054
FREIFA) (108 2=504F) On medium-term lease (10 - 50 years) 1,524,730 1,371,270 1,524,730 1,371,270
EEBAIMEE Held outside Hong Kong
REAFEA (10FE50%) On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 472,697 446,070 1,705 1,581
RETEL (PR105F) On short-term lease (less than 10 years) 17,605 20,401 - _
6,609,378 5,846,795 6,120,781 5,381,905

M20135F12A318 " IIREBEEBBERAZEE '+ HKERE
VEHFNEME-—AFRAENTGHFEREEBERERARR
2013F 12 A3TMBUA AT EREEMET I EXMAE - A F
BEEAETEEAEEERFERRNBELTRAMS2EETE
F—EEERESHERS -

RELRZBHER  AEERARTZEEBEZSHER
REBRARITZEEEGHRBERKRGERERNAT

As at 31 December 2013, premises are included in the
balance sheets at valuation carried out at 31 December
2013 on the basis of their fair value by an independent firm
of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional
Services Limited. The fair value represents the price that
would be received to sell each premises in an orderly
transaction with market participants at the measurement
date.

As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes
in value of the Group’s and the Bank’s premises were
recognised in the Group’s and the Bank's premises
revaluation reserve and the income statement as follows:

REE AREBAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BEXREERFEELZ Increase in valuation credited to
HLEE premises revaluation reserve 794,564 1,388,296 775,889 1,379,172
B/ (fE) Wesk 2 Increase/(decrease) in valuation
EHEE /ChE) credited/(charged) to income statement 8,085 (1,738) = -
802,649 1,386,558 775,889 1,379,172
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28. ¥ > SBMKRERE 5

MR2013F12A318 - REEERKAEN R ZTITE &
MEBXIE AKERARTZEEABRBRAZEE
BR % B E & Bll &8 #557,532,0007T (20124 : 78 #&
528,943,0007T) K 78 #244,564,0007T (20124 : & #&
217,003,0007T) °

29. EM&EE
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28. PROPERTIES, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(Cont'd)

As at 31 December 2013, the net book value of premises
that would have been included in the Group’s and the
Bank’s balance sheets had the premises been carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation was HK$557,532,000
(2012: HK$528,943,000) and HK$244,564,000 (2012:
HK$217,003,000) respectively.

29. OTHER ASSETS

rEH ARERAT

The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BETT B¥TT BT
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wy e & &= Repossessed assets 32,234 17,792 27,990 16,842
FEWEEIE RTER & B Accounts receivable and prepayments 3,709,361 1,424,506 3,504,449 1,050,826
3,741,595 1,442,298 3,532,439 1,067,668

30. AEEZ{TTABEZEHERE

30. FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

AEERANRIT
The Group and the Bank
2013 2012
BT BEET T
HK$’000 HK$'000
RSMaE Trading liabilities
—NEESERRESFEE — Short positions in Exchange Fund Bills and Notes 4,433,736 4,975,073

MR2013F12A31BREARELANARFEZLFTABRZE®
mEE (20124128311 : &) -

At 31 December 2013, there is no financial liabilities
designated at fair value through profit or loss (2012: Nil).
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31. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS AND
HEDGE ACCOUNTING

(a) Deposits from customers

S 3 AERAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR BEREMER Current, savings and other deposit
(NBEBER) accounts (per balance sheets) 198,160,417 185,533,717 131,724,586 128,178,500
vyl Analysed by:
BIERTF SR R 2 SRFE K Demand deposits and current accounts
N — corporate 15,518,333 14,545,822 7,474,781 7,188,715
— @A — personal 2,377,882 2,433,335 1,950,687 2,111,554
17,896,215 16,979,157 9,425,468 9,300,269
BEEN Savings deposits
/NG — corporate 17,170,844 16,078,426 15,217,838 14,368,581
—@AA — personal 34,145,500 33,772,779 32,679,064 32,504,466
51,316,344 49,851,205 47,896,902 46,873,047
TH - BERBATR Time, call and notice deposits
— RA] — corporate 66,014,321 58,500,903 33,237,498 33,244,808
— @A — personal 62,933,537 60,202,452 41,164,718 38,760,376
128,947,858 118,703,355 74,402,216 72,005,184
198,160,417 185,533,717 131,724,586 128,178,500

(b) EHEE

JBINEIEFREEH W

M20135F12A31B A"EBEREHODARETED
B P 17 3 A 8 #1,431,965,0007T (20124 © & #
1,390,910,0007T) A¥ T E - AL HEINEEFERSE -

RERREBEBHN 2 WA BEN W ER AR (2012
FE)

32. HBREREH

(b) Hedge accounting

Hedges of net investments in foreign operations

As at 31 December 2013, a proportion of the Group’s RMB-
denominated deposits from customers of HK$1,431,965,000
(2012: HK$1,390,910,000) were designated as a hedging
instrument to hedge against the net investments in foreign
operations.

There were no gains or losses on ineffective portion
recognised in the income statement during the year (2012:
Nil).

32. OTHER ACCOUNTS AND

PROVISIONS
REE ARERAT

The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BET T BETT B¥T T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
H it fE T HRIE Other accounts payable 15,163,133 9,937,324 4,173,605 2,132,197
SE{H Provisions 66,368 61,661 48,840 52,710
15,229,501 9,998,985 4,222,445 2,184,907
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33. BEBEE

M2013F12A310 - AKE K ZMET?ZEEt’W%,%?ﬁ%
4,148,807,0007T (20124 : 7 #4,234,713,0007T) =& KA
BHRATREEZGUFEEE S BERER - 4N &
SBENEKESFEE 2 BEAEK1,268,641,0007T (2012
£ B 1#348,822,0007T) © ZKEI&ZMEW%%{%%%:%
BMEHEZ BESEE ABES,454,505,0007T (20124 : 7

#4,643,771,000) K& #4,155,616,0007T (20124 : i
4,239,175,00070) * WEBR [RHHEFH]  [AHEEE
| R H#HEREHBEES] RFIE -

34. EZEBIE

EEFIELSBRERTESERNEI125R [FAEHR] 8 SE

EET,\Z%Rﬂ‘x%WEEEEHﬁF#&%WEEETEFW%ZE*ET ez
BETEHR -
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33. ASSETS PLEDGED AS SECURITY

As at 31 December 2013, liabilities of the Group and
the Bank both amounting to HK$4,148,807,000 (2012:
HK$4,234,713,000) were secured by assets deposited with
central depositories to facilitate settlement operations.
In addition, the liabilities of the Group amounting to
HK$1,268,641,000 (2012: HK$348,822,000) were
secured by debt securities. The amount of assets pledged
by the Group and the Bank to secure these liabilities
was HK$5,454,505,000 (2012: HK$4,643,771,000) and
HK$4,155,616,000 (2012: HK$4,239,175,000) mainly
included in “Trading securities”, "Available-for-sale
securities” and “Held-to-maturity securities”.

34. DEFERRED TAXATION

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial
statements in accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

‘ﬁﬁﬁﬁi\:ﬂaﬂZLkﬁlﬁ (BE)/AETEHE URH The major components of deferred tax (assets)/liabilities
TEEERNZEFHWOR recorded in the balance sheet, and the movements during
the year are as follows:
r&E
The Group
2013
MEFE Hity e
%HE HEH
Accelerated MEELR HEEE Other
tax Property #  Impairment  temporary @t
depreciation  revaluation Losses  allowances  differences Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
7201 35 A1R At 1 January 2013 22,308 897,086 (297) (165,095) 24,651 778,653
fgie /(&) MR Charged/(credited) to income
( HE1 5) statement (Note 15) 4,113 2,864 (115) (50,716) (21,687) (65,541)
#5 /(&%) B2 Edkss  Charged/(credited) to other
comprehensive income - 119,553 - - (117,817) 1,736
BEHEHE Exchange difference (4) 1,313 - (2,468) (975) (2,134)
®2013%12A8318 At 31 December 2013 26,417 1,020,816 (412) (218,279) (115,828) 712,714
K&HE
The Group
2012
MRME H i EE
ik %2
Accelerated b E AEER Other
tax Property % Impairment  temporary st
depreciation revaluation Losses allowances differences Total
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
H/‘2012¢1 A 1 H At 1 January 2012 18,231 674,564 - (146,369) (21,747) 524,679
R/ (B32) Wk Charged/(credited) to income
(WEB) statement (Note 15) 4,079 3,912 (297) (18,532) (678) (11,516)
et 2 AN Charged to other comprehensive
income - 218,290 - - 47,000 265,290
EAESR Exchange difference 2) 320 - (194) 76 200
20126124318 At 31 December 2012 22,308 897,086 (297) (165,095) 24,651 778,653
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34. EEBIIE (&) 34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)
BT
The Bank
2013
MERE Hit B
SHE HER
Accelerated MESR AEERE Other
tax Property Impairment temporary @zt
depreciation  revaluation allowances differences Total
BT BETT BETT BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M2013F1A18 At 1 January 2013 22,509 843,724 (97,635) 50,231 818,829
i/ (B) WER Charged/(credited) to income
statement 3,908 2,671 (546) 191 6,224
i /(B) 22 mWs  Charged/(credited) to other
comprehensive income - 114,777 - (83,082) 31,695
B =% Exchange difference = - (11) - (11)
M2013F12A31H At 31 December 2013 26,417 961,172 (98,192) (32,660) 856,737
ARFAT
The Bank
2012
NEFE HAE 0
Eak =g
Accelerated MEER AEEE Other
tax Property Impairment temporary Fobr
depreciation revaluation allowances differences Total
BETT BT BETT BT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2012461 A18 At 1 January 2012 18,430 625,811 (70,503) (1,101) 572,637
it /(8id) MR Charged/(credited) to income
statement 4,079 - (27,126) 1,035 (22,012)
Rt E R Charged to other
comprehensive income - 217,913 - 50,297 268,210
EHESR Exchange difference - - (6) - (6)
20124128318 At 31 December 2012 22,509 843,724 (97,635) 50,231 818,829
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34, EZERHIE (&)
EEETENTERANESERRARBE EEY  ME
ERIES R A — B ERHEE - BIFS ERLE A RER HEE
HECHEABEERAER  TIEEEABENIES S
B OHAEEE
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION (Contd)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual
entity basis when there is a legal right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
taxation relates to the same authority. The following
amounts, determined after appropriate offsetting, are shown
in the balance sheet:

AEE RERAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BT T BT
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EETRIBEE Deferred tax assets (152,831) (49,727) - (662)
BEERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 865,545 828,380 856,737 819,491
712,714 778,653 856,737 818,829
REM KRBT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BET T BT T BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RETIAE = Deferred tax assets to be recovered
(BB 1218 A & U@ ) after more than twelve months (75,628) (73,889) - (662)
ELEFIEAE Deferred tax liabilities to be settled
(8381218 A &) after more than twelve months 898,205 778,149 889,397 769,260
822,577 704,260 889,397 768,598

R2013F12A318 » AEB K ARITHIRE 2 KM R
MRELEHBEE 2B EEAE 1,260,000 (2012
F : B¥4,617,0007T) &B#1,130,0007T (20124 : B
4,483,0007T) - AR AEE R ANRITEEFEHRO GBS
A 75 #130,0007T (20124 : /& #134,0007T) & £ (2012
F8E) AEEEABTRAEFREENEBSREABE
1,130,0007T (20124F : 7#¥4,483,0007T) °

As at 31 December 2013, the Group and the Bank has
not recognised deferred tax assets in respect of tax losses
amounting to HK$1,260,000 (2012: HK$4,617,000) and
HK$1,130,000 (2012: HK$4,483,000) which is considered
unlikely to be utilised. Of the amount, HK$130,000 (2012:
HK$134,000) for the Group and Nil (2012: Nil) for the
Bank have no expiry date and HK$1,130,000 (2012:
HK$4,483,000) for the Group and the Bank is scheduled to
expire within five years.

35. R& 35. SHARE CAPITAL
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$000 HK$'000
JETE ¢ Authorised:
7,000,000 F AR EESE 10070 2 E B 7,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 700,000 700,000
EETRAR Issued and fully paid:
7,000,000/8 SR EI (BB 10070 2 T A% 7,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$100 each 700,000 700,000
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36. f#f&

REBRARTZAFEREFHRFHBSBRESBERD R
REEPHRNESEEHEK -

HNEI6EI0B Zi7E

37. RERERERMTE

36. RESERVES

The Group’s and the Bank’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

www.ncb.com.hk

consolidated statement of changes in equity and statement
of changes in equity respectively on pages 36 to 39 of the

financial statements.

37. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH
FLOW STATEMENT

() KERIERBAKLEREZHRAGRH (a) Reconciliation of operating profit to
HER operating cash inflow/(outflow) before
taxation
2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
ARESE R Operating profit 3,186,320 2,587,632
e Depreciation 206,956 166,939
B Net charge of impairment allowances 369,967 396,948
IR R (B E (] Unwind of discount on impairment allowances (2,594) (8,079)
sz E3 (FrWE k) Advances written off net of recoveries (108,238) 3,689
[REHA BB @3ME A 2 FERTT & Change in balances with banks and
HEM e mlBa e 28 other financial institutions with
original maturity over three months (1,863,602) (482,176)
[REHA BB A3ME A 2 FER1T R Change in placements with banks and
Hith & g S 2 T HATF i 2 & other financial institutions with
original maturity over three months (1,728,068) 5,102,436
NEEECTAEBRZ Change in financial assets at
TREEE fair value through profit or loss 1,511,233 (2,410,450)
miirﬂiﬂz ) Change in derivative financial instruments 139,673 (161,185)
M&ﬁ@ﬁﬁlﬁzmiﬂ Change in advances and other accounts (17,561,952) (5,515,755)
Change in investment in securities (1,576,105) (14,544,859)
Change in other assets (2,299,297) (622,821)
%Eﬁ&,ﬁ\ﬁﬂﬁpgﬂ%%Zﬁﬁ& Change in deposits and balances from
iEah 7 EE) banks and other financial institutions 8,583,958 (7,804,217)
$@ Mest AfEs 2 Change in financial liabilities at
SRIBEZE fair value through profit or loss (541,337) 3,897,177
BETRZEH) Change in deposits from customers 12,626,700 11,064,249
{ﬁ;ﬁﬁlﬁ&ﬁ{%Z@ Change in other accounts and provisions 5,230,516 1,602,315
[EREEH) 7 & Effect of changes in exchange rates (247,044) 18,043
ﬁ%%ﬂﬁwjﬁgﬁﬁﬁzjﬁ)\/(}ﬁﬁ) Operating cash inflow/(outflow) before taxation 5,927,086 (6,710,114)
a2 B e RER B Cash flows from operating activities included:
— B UF B — Interest received 8,834,527 7,616,520
— BFE — Interest paid (3,811,186) (3,506,002)
— BRI E — Dividend received 7,975 6,940
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED CASH

37. mEBRERERMWTE &) 37.

(b) RERFEREBWELEFDIN

FLOW STATEMENT (Cont'd)

(b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash

equivalents

2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000
EFReRREIBEEIBMARNZ Cash and balances with banks and
FHUERTT R E M€ Bk R A5 eR other financial institutions with
original maturity within three months 30,354,603 28,267,206
FRRHABEIEARNZERTR Placements with banks and other financial
HAth & WS 2 E SN institutions with original maturity
within three months 4,928,974 2,621,986
REIBFEE3EA A ESH Treasury bills with original maturity
within three months 3,724,988 2,812,021
39,008,565 33,701,213

38. WABBRAE

IRBBERAEN2REBEARTRLERZ S ERBRAEA
RERMRS  EEBEERRH 26 W8 MREE AR
REBCGEBLRAT

38. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND
COMMITMENTS

The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of
each significant class of contingent liability and commitment
and the aggregate credit risk-weighted amount and is
prepared with reference to the Completion Instructions for
the HKMA return of capital adequacy ratio.

rEH AERAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT BT T BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BHEEEENRER Direct credit substitutes 15,907,292 12,758,884 269,382 306,569
BT SEMZABE Transaction-related contingencies 5,484,250 2,614,550 565,013 502,009
HESEMZABE Trade-related contingencies 11,870,541 8,488,076 3,477,038 3,408,974
TEELEBANEEGE  Commitments that are unconditionally
B 2 & cancellable without prior notice 71,071,494 57,032,568 20,945,416 22,160,355
H At 75 Other commitments with an original
REBB S maturity of
—1FEHUAT — up to one year 567,314 2,212,197 567,314 1,521,088
— 151 E — over one year 5,245,225 4,962,820 4,825,980 3,799,617
110,146,116 88,069,095 30,650,143 31,698,612
EERMR IR Credit risk-weighted amount 14,703,603 14,156,562 3,207,548 3,274,903

EERBRMERBRRE (RITE (BX) RAD FTHE - 1H
BEHOARRRZHTFZBERARSEAHN 2R -

The credit risk-weighted amount is calculated in accordance
with the Banking (Capital) Rules. The amount is dependent
upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
characteristics of each type of contract.
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39. EBXRKIE
AERRARTANMERETBE Y ERARESBNT -
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39. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

The Group and the Bank have the following outstanding
capital commitments not provided for in the financial
statements:

rEE ARERIT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BETT BT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000
EiERFLEREE Authorised and contracted for
but not provided for 2,879 8,688 2,169 3,777
BIOEEREL Authorised but not contracted for 725 212 - _
3,604 8,900 2,169 3,777

A EBERAEFERI D /B BAREE 2 I RAEE K
RIRITZEFTRIETIR AN -

40. LEMERE
@ fFEREEA

REFAREZKLHERLN  THRARERARITRE
FRMEEAEMAXNZRERS

The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments
to purchase the Group’s computer software and to renovate
the Group’s and the Bank's premises.

40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(a) As lessee

The Group and the Bank have commitments to make
the following future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases:

rEE ARERAT
The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
B¥TT BT BYTT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T MAEF Land and buildings
— NB@E1F - not later than one year 234,147 223,950 43,249 48,784
— 1R EESFR — later than one year but not
later than five years 704,338 653,918 50,272 59,874
— 5% 1% — later than five years 322,987 420,901 9,304 9,482
1,261,472 1,298,769 102,825 118,140
H e Other commitments
— NRE1F — not later than one year 420 184 = -
—1FAEESFR — later than one year but not
later than five years 323 22 - -
1,262,215 1,298,975 102,825 118,140
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40. REHEERE @)

(b) fFREAA
RIBTABEZREHEARLN - T AAEERARITEM
BRI ARHZAREAESE 2 EEWES ¢
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40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
(Cont'd)
(b) As lessor

The Group and the Bank have contracted with tenants for
the following future minimum lease receivables under non-
cancellable operating leases:

rEE ARERAT

The Group The Bank
2013 2012 2013 2012
BT T BT BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

T MAEF Land and buildings
— TEBB1E - not later than one year 48,571 33,100 43,904 26,488
—1FAEESFR — later than one year but

not later than five years 53,436 25,637 52,437 20,133
102,007 58,737 96,341 46,621

AREBRFARTAREHETLABLREME (H327)
HEFHATRIFE3F - BOGK - RERATRRFE

41. EFA
AEETEHZEEBTATEHNRERRRE - HER
ERREERAEBNESHLEHAER -

HREER/AKEAHBARAHE IR L ES
RATEROBEIA MY RHUFRERRREFELEX
B -

The Group and the Bank lease their investment properties
(Note 27) under operating lease arrangements, with leases
typically for a period from one to three years. The terms
of the leases generally require the tenants to pay security
deposits.

41. LITIGATION

The Group has been served a number of claims and
counterclaims by various independent parties. These claims
and counterclaims are in relation to the normal commercial
activities of the Group.

No material provision was made against these claims and
counterclaims because the directors believe that the Group
has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be
material.
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42. DEHRE

() REEHE
REBEBHFL ANEEEHLE -
1T HEEBRIEE -

DRI EARTT - BER

FERTEBNEERTEFASREZEORITRS - @
ABRITEBRERSEATS - MEFERITEBRERESIE
BEAEF -ZERMEXRKR KRTHEEEE  EARETEAN
SEMEXR  RBED  MEMIMNEMA - B EXBKHFIE
EASBENREZBNES  SEMAXBRERES - WK
WHE B A SRTT AN b R IR 1T RIS AR B0 MU T FUE B R T EUS Y
B  BURBR L ENEER ST EREENNESER
EBREHIEE - EAKF2INMEXHBRSER  Ea%
PiiEBRzEANEZRS  BEREERRER T RRRE
BRZENEE BT 2 - TAI M EXBRIESEH HE
HEERBBEMLED) -

REBRBEAKENFEMEMS IR ELMERNRE - HRME
AAKENYE  BEXBRTEERREFHROMISER
AREEBRNER BASENRBEAR —fmE (PE)
ZEAEMEENRERENaRRANERREZH 28
ERUEBEDERA -

[Efh ] SEEEMEER T EREAMASEREEREAR
P {E AR BB IRE o

—EEBROBARST L TR BRERRBRZEBRN
HE -EREEER  SRESEEEHRD -

www.ncb.com.hk

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING
(a) By operating segment
The Group divides its business into four major segments,

Personal Banking, Corporate Banking, Treasury and
Investment.

Both Personal Banking business and Corporate Banking
business provide general banking services. Personal Banking
serves individual customers while Corporate Banking deals
with non-individual customers. The Treasury segment is
responsible for managing the capital, liquidity, and the
interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group
in addition to proprietary trades. It provides funds to other
business segments and receives funds from deposit taking
activities of Personal Banking and Corporate Banking. These
inter-segment funding is charged according to the internal
funds transfer pricing mechanism of the Group. The assets
and liabilities of Treasury have not been adjusted to reflect
the effect of inter-segment borrowing and lending (i.e. the
profit and loss information in relation to Treasury is not
comparable to the assets and liabilities information about
Treasury).

Investment includes bank premises and equipment used by
supporting units. Charges are paid to this segment from
other business segments based on market rates per square
foot for their occupation of the Group’s premises. The
exchange difference arising from capital of our subsidiary,
NCB (China), which is recognised in its income statement, is
also included in this class.

“QOthers” refers to other group operations and mainly
comprises of items related to the Group as a whole and
totally independent of the other four business segments.

Revenues and expenses of any business segment mainly
include items directly attributable to the segment. For
management overheads, allocations are made on reasonable
bases.
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42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
158
The Group
213
fAAkfT  LEBA
Personal  Corporate  EI&£% RE Efh Nt ABHES &a
Banking Banking  Treasury Investment Others  Subtotal Eliminations  Consolidated

AN  EMTn  AWTn  EWTx  ERTn BRTn BRTn BMTR
HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

FHERA /() Net interest income/(expense)
— IR - external (597,519) 2,944,696 2,343,989 - - 4,691,166 - 4,691,166
—-BER - inter-segment 1,435,071 (374,646)  (1,060,425) - - - - -
837,552 2,570,050 1,283,564 - - 4,691,166 - 4,691,166
ERBERMEEMA /(X))  Net fee and commission incomel(expense) 418,917 565,333 25,641 173 (1,439) 1,008,625 - 1,008,625
FRathE /(B8 Net trading gain/(loss) 31,976 116,764 94,749 (152,218) 10 97,1 - 97,1
AT BINATER T ABZEZ  Net loss on financial instruments designated
SRIAFER at fair value through profit or loss = = (16,193) = = (16,193) - (16,193)
At BEAE B0 Net gain on other financial assets - 21,204 31,292 - - 52,496 - 52,496
Hi2IMA Other operating income 123 59 - 148438 674 173294 (97,824) 75470
EREEERRNZFEERA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 1294568 3273410 1,419,053 (3,667) 23,245 6,006,609 (97,824) 5,908,785
BEEESRE Net charge of impairment allowances (40,580)  (329,387) - - - (369,967) - (369,967)
FERHA Net operating income 1253968 29M033 141908  (366) 23245 56366 (9784) 5538818
Eanl Operating expenses (751,369)  (1,144769)  (387,541)  (97,468)  (69,175) (2.450,322) 97,824 (2,352,49)
TeRA /(FR) Operating profit/(loss) 502,619 1,799,254 1,031,512 (101,135) (45,930) 3,186,320 - 3,186,320
REMENTERE2BWA  Net gain from fair value
adjustments on investment properties - - - 169,414 - 169,414 - 169,414
e /EfENE S RREZ Net gain from disposalirevaluation
s of properties, plant and equipment 5 - - 3476 - 3,476 - 3476
BT/ (BR) Profit/(loss) before taxation 502,619 1,799,254 1,031,512 71,755 (45,930) 3,359,210 - 3359210
BE Assets
PEE Segment assets 28,853,019 128,704,708 114,367,231 8,238,515 220,487 280,383,960 - 280,383,960
B Liabilities
NBEE Segment liabilities 101,329,458 108,918,619 36,005,845 7225 1,822,824 248,083,971 - 248,083,971
R Other information
BRESH Capital expenditure - - - 109,955 - 109,955 - 109,955
e Depreciation 26,990 56,140 23,021 97,703 3,102 206,956 - 206,956
il 11 Amortisation of securities - - (30,765) - - (30,765) - (30,765)
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)
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42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)

() REESE(E) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
15E
The Group
2012
AT GEBO
Personal ~ Corporate  BTEEH & i NG AfHES )
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
AT AT ABTn  A%Tn  BEfr  BETrn #%Tn %t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEMA/(Xi) Net interest income/(expense)
— 4Nk - external (784,960) 2,336,718 2,381,051 4 - 3932813 - 3932813
-EER - inter-segment 1,589,823 (319,320)  (1,270,503) - - - - -
804,863 2,017,398 1,110,548 4 - 3932813 - 3932813
FRBERBSUA /(X))  Net fee and commission income/(expense) 310863 426,546 20,806 108 (3,144) 755179 SRS
ERallE /(BR) Net trading gain/(loss) 21,573 93,693 62,931 (37,646) 665 147,216 - 147,216
REBNATER(V:t ABEZ  Net gain on financial instruments designated
SRS at fair value through profit or loss - - 21,959 - - 21,959 - 21,959
Lt eREE FiE Net gain on other financial assets - 476 11,376 463 - 16,601 - 16,601
Hfrl@a A Other operating income 2 4 - 143487 11,311 154,841 (97,732) 57,109
REERER 2 FLEWA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 1143301 2542440 1,227,620 106,416 8,832 5,028,609 (97,732) 4,930,877
HEEETRE Net charge of impairment allowances (7,958 (388,990) - - - (396,948) - (396,948
FEEWA Net operating income 1135343 2153450 1,227,620 106,416 8,832 4,631,661 (97,732) 4,533,929
mEYH Operating expenses (637,703) (903,926) (392,859) (75,125) (34,416)  (2,044,029) 97,732 (1,946,297)
"EEF /(B8 Operating profit/(loss) 497640 1,249,524 834,761 31,291 (25,584) 2,587,632 - 1,587,632
RENEATESEZENE  Net gain from fair value
adjustments on investment properties - - - 178,766 - 178,766 - 178,766
HE /&% S RREZ Netloss from disposal/revaluation
FEE of properties, plant and equipment - - - (6,627) - (6,627) - (6,627)
REAER/ (F8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 497640 1249524 834761 203430 (25584) 2,759,771 - 27597
&E Assets
PHEE Segment assets 23,673,053 116,089,179 104,531,029 7,329,689 130,488 251,753,438 - 251,753,438
8f Liabilities
A&k Seqment liabilities 98868912 96,141,906 25,747,324 6813 1375262 222140217 - 222,140217
g Other information
N3 Capital expenditure - - - 49519 - 49519 - 49519
i Depreciation 25,037 40,495 24,059 13,522 3,826 166,939 - 166,939
Enliy Amortisation of securities - - 72,230 - - 72,230 - 72,230
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42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
AR
The Bank
2013

AR LERA
Personal ~ Corporate  ETE¥X k& A Nt ABHEH &a
Banking Banking  Treasury Investment Others  Subtotal Eliminations  Consolidated

B¥TR  BRTR EBTn ERTn EMTx ENTx AWTR BETR
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS$'000

FHEMA/(Xi) Net interest income/(expense)
— 4K - external (249,151) 1,696,893 1,428,370 - - 2,876,112 - 2,876,112
B - inter-segment 813473 (80,090)  (733.383) - - - - -
564,322 1,616,803 694,987 - - 2,876,112 - 2,876,112
FREERASMA /(ZHH)  Net fee and commission income/(expense) 41886 351673 (6,829) - (1439) 755291 - 755291
FR5ithE /(B8 et trading gain/(loss) 25,851 62,141 19,278 (142) 10 106,538 - 106,538
REBNATER(V:TAB%Z  Net loss on financial instruments designated
SHIEFGR at fair value through prolfit or loss - - (16,193) - - (16193) - (16193
EeREE TE Net gain on other financial assets - - 22,303 - - 22,303 - 22,303
EfEE WA Other operating income 121 7 - 146,700 559 147,407 (97,824) 49,583
EREEERAZFELERA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 1,002,180 2,030,644 713,546 145,958 (870) 3,891,458 (97,824) 3,793,634
HEERFRE Net charge of impairment allowances (12,151) (28,577) - - - (40,728) - (40,728)
FREWA Net operating income 990,029 2,002,067 713,546 145,958 (870) 3,850,730 (97,824) 3,752,906
BETH Operating expenses (510,799)  (391,915)  (54139)  (79,083)  (69,175) (1,105,111) 97,824 (1,007,287)
"EEF /(B8 Operating profit/(loss) 479,230 1,610,152 659,407 66,875 (70,045) 2,745,619 - 2,745,619
REMELTEREZFME  Net gain from fair value
adjustments on investment properties - - - 167,890 - 167,890 - 167,890
HE /&% S RREZ Netloss from disposal/revaluation
FEE of properties, plant and equipment - - - (1,265) - (1,265) - (1,265)
BRAER / (B8) Profit/(loss) before taxation 479,230 1,610,152 659,407 233,500 (70,045) 2,912,244 - 2912244
BE Assets
AHEE Segment assets 18,393,275 81,867,045 63,240,738 15,553,575 16,668 179,071,301 - 179,071,301
& Liabilities
PHaE Segment liabilities 77,300,761 56,094,120 14,488,430 6,726 1,247,059 149,137,096 - 149,137,096
HfrEH Other information
U3 Capital expenditure - - - 36,843 - 36,843 - 36,843
i Depreciation 11,598 6,976 924 79,083 3,102 101,683 - 101,683
ERE Amortisation of securities - - 3,702 - = 3,702 - 3,02
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42. DERE ) 42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
() REESE(E) (a) By operating segment (Cont'd)
b6
The Bank
2012
EABT  GEBO
Personal ~ Corporate ~ BTEEHE & i NG AfHEY )
Banking Banking Treasury  Investment Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
EeTr  AEfr AT BETr AT BgTn Bk fr ARt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEMA/(Xi) Net interest income/(expense)
— 4K - external (2082500 1,611,789 1228375 - - 2631914 - 2631914
-EER - inter-segment 728,065 (346,646) (381,419 - - - - -
519,815 1,265,143 846,956 - - 2631914 - 2631914
BREBERBEWA /(E)  Net fee and commission incomef(expense) 308506 324,958 (3,959) = (3,144) 626,361 - 626361
FReMkE/ (FR) Net trading gain/(oss) 2,403 64552 (17,980) 2 665 69,663 - 65603
REANATER(V:tABEZ  Net gain on financial instruments designated
SRS at fair value through profit or loss - - 21,959 - - 21,959 - 21,959
e mEAE TR Net gain on other financial assets - - 10431 463 - 10,894 - 10,894
e Other operating income 2 | = 142,204 668 142,935 (97,732) 45,203
EREEERAZFELERA  Net operating income before
impairment allowances 850,726 1,654,694 857,407 142,710 (1,811) 3,503,726 (97,732) 3,405,994
HEERZED /(BB Net reversal/(charge) of impairment allowances 2881 (217.259) = = - (214378 - (214378
FEEWA Net operating income 853,607 1437435 857,407 142,710 (1,811) 3,289,348 (97,732) 3,191,616
mEYH Operating expenses (464.281) (376,984) (66,388) (63,035) (34,417)  (1,005,105) 97,732 (907,373)
"EEF /(B8 Operating profit/(loss) 389,326 1,060,451 791,019 79,675 (36,228) 2,284,243 - 2,284243
FAMEATEREZENE Nt gain from fair value adjustments on
investment properties - - - 177,410 - 177410 = 177,410
HE /&% B RREZ Netloss from disposalirevaluation of
FEE properties, plant and equipment . g, . (78) i 78 i 79)
BoanER / (58) Profit/(loss) before taxation 389326 1060451 791,019 257,007  (36,228) 2461575 - 2461575
BE Assets
PHEE Segment assets 17,076,378 74273858 62,575,473 14,668,294 16,522 168,610,525 - 168,610,525
a8 Liabilities
AafE Segment liabilities 75,385,669 54988673 9,320,769 6,179 1,074259 140,775,549 - 140,775,549
&R Other information
BRERH Capital expenditure - - - 48399 - 48399 - 48,399
hE Depreciation 11,232 6,704 1378 63,035 3,826 86,175 = 86,175
EnliE Amortisation of securities - - 11,742 - - 11,742 - 11,742
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42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principal
places of operations of the subsidiaries, or in the case of
the Bank, on the locations of the branches responsible for
reporting the results or booking the assets:

REH
The Group
2013 2012
REURE REUR(E
EERIZ EERIZ
FREWA TFHEEIA
Net Net
operating operating
income B A5 A income B 75 BT 4
before Profit before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
BT T BETT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8 Hong Kong 3,754,292 2,899,990 3,367,514 2,445,061
B A it Mainland of China 2,111,161 443,766 1,525,417 300,124
Hih Others 43,332 15,454 37,946 14,586
&z Total 5,908,785 3,359,210 4,930,877 2,759,771
rEE
The Group
2013
HREME
MAEE
Contingent
HEE HeR FRBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8 Hong Kong 164,667,896 146,467,458 7,343,360 30,381,110
AR B A 3 Mainland of China 112,857,400 99,487,847 830,096 79,638,140
Hih Others 2,858,664 2,128,666 3,467 126,866
&t Total 280,383,960 248,083,971 8,176,923 110,146,116

213



214

#1175 A% 441  NANYANG COMMERCIAL BANK 2013 ANNUAL REPORT 4

B R AR Y AE

Notes to the Financial Statements

42. DEHE (@)
(b) BB EIFE S (8)

www.ncb.com.hk

42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area (Cont'd)

AEE
The Group
2012
SREE
A
Contingent
BEE BaE FnBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets  commitments
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8 Hong Kong 156,910,130 139,227,486 6,436,888 31,329,350
P B A Mainland of China 93,205,859 82,827,479 811,262 56,538,445
Hih Others 1,637,449 85,252 4,276 201,300
&t Total 251,753,438 222,140,217 7,252,426 88,069,095
RERAT
The Bank
2013 2012
REURE REURE
EHRIZ BRI
FREWA SFHEEIA
Net Net
operating operating
income BBt AT R income BREL A= A
before Profit before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
BETT BETT BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 3,747,959 2,893,422 3,367,411 2,446,562
AR B Mainland of China 2,343 3,368 637 428
Hith Others 43,332 15,454 37,946 14,585
aEr Total 3,793,634 2,912,244 3,405,994 2,461,575
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42. SEGMENTAL REPORTING (Cont'd)
(b) By geographical area (Cont'd)

BT
The Bank

2013
HREME
MAELE
Contingent
HEE FN=Ri FRBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets commitments
BETL  AMTR #TR EMTR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B8 Hong Kong 175,682,048 146,647,568 7,343,360 30,448,151
B i Mainland of China 530,589 360,862 - 75,126
Hih Others 2,858,664 2,128,666 3,467 126,866
B&t Total 179,071,301 149,137,096 7,346,827 30,650,143

AERIT

The Bank

2012
SREE
AR
Contingent
BEE BeE FRBEE liabilities
Total Total Non-current and
assets liabilities assets  commitments
BT BT BT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BB Hong Kong 165,444,466 139,328,070 6,436,888 31,422,083
B A Mainland of China 1,528,610 1,362,227 - 75,229
HAth Others 1,637,449 85,252 4,276 201,300
&r Total 168,610,525 140,775,549 6,441,164 31,698,612
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43. R T E K
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43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

TRIREERE  IHTMEFELEELHENELUBZOR The following tables present details of financial instruments
HEm T A : subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting
arrangements and similar agreements.
r5E
The Group
2013
REEGE
RRHHE2
EERSH  REEEaf  AAREESRRVEHZ
BEAE  RWIITH HEeH
ERASR Gross SREEFHE Related amounts not set off in
BEAE amounts Net the balance sheet
Gross  recognised  amounts of BB
L financial o
amounts financial assets BefAm
recognised liabilities set presented in SRMIA Cash =4
financial offinthe the balance Financial collateral Net
assets balance sheet sheet instruments received amount
BETT BETRT BETT BET T BRI BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
fTEERTIA Derivative financial instruments 82,212 - 82,212 (27,605) - 54,607
At EE Other assets 1,193,321 (883,177) 310,144 - - 310,144
st Total 1,275,533 (883,177) 392,356 (27,605) - 364,751
r5E
The Group
2013
REERE
RPHE2
BREIER  NEEEE  AAREESERTEHC
EEBE  RHIITH HE4E
aEIew Gross SRMBMEFHE Related amounts not set off in
BEEE amounts Net the balance sheet
Gross  recognised ~ amounts of BEAZ
L financial -
amounts financial liabilities BeHm
recognised assets set presented in $RIE Cash =5
financial offinthe the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
BETT BETT BET T BET T BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
af Liabilities
TEERTIA Derivative financial instruments 239,495 - 239,495 (27,605) - 211,890
HiBE Other liabilities 946,711 (883,177) 63,534 - - 63,534
st Total 1,186,206 (883,177) 303,029 (27,605) - 275,424
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43. TRTIARZES @ 43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
KEE
The Group
2012
REERE
ki
ERASH REERE AERBERRRTHEHZ
AELE RABIRE HEeE
BREZ4T Gross ®RAEFHE Related amounts not set off in the
BESE amounts Net balance sheet
Gross recognised  amounts of BKELZ
amounts financial fm:?scelfsl Refim
recognised liabllties set  precented in ¢RTIA Cash =
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral Net
assets  balance sheet sheet instruments received amount
BETTT BT BETT AR BETTT BETTT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BE Assets
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments 173,442 - 173,442 (60,919) - 112,523
HtEE Other assets 1,382,570 (1,166,909) 215,661 - - 215,661
st Total 1,556,012 (1,166,909) 389,103 (60,919) = 328,184
A5E
The Group
2012
REERE
RPHH2
BEZER  NEESRE  AENEERRRTHHZ
EEET KA HELE
DRETLE Gross TRBEHE Related amounts not set off in the
BEES amounts Net balance sheet
Gross recognised am?unts .Ofl BHEAZ
amounts financial IiIanbailri];Es Refim
recognised assets et proconted in SRIE Cash et
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
BETT BETT BRI BETT BETT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=1 Liabilities
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 248,893 - 248,893 (60,919) - 187,974
HitBfE Other liabilities 1,200,803 (1,166,909) 33,894 - - 33,894

st Total 1,449,696 (1,166,909) 282,787 (60,919) = 221,868
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43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
KEIT
The Bank
2013
REESE
FPEHEZ
ERASH REESE RENEEEBRRTHEH
BEAE EG | HELE
ERZSH Gross SMEEFE Related amounts not set off in
EELE amounts Net the balance sheet
Gross  recognised ~ amounts of B
L financial -
amounts financial assefs Befm
recognised liabilities set  pacented in $RIE Cash S
financial offinthe the balance Financial collateral Net
assets balance sheet sheet  instruments received amount
BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI BRI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8E Assets
TESBMIE Derivative financial instruments 65,336 = 65,336 (13,306) - 52,030
A& Other assets 1,193,321 (883,177) 310,144 - - 310,144
et Total 1,258,657 (883,177) 375,480 (13,306) - 362,174
KRBT
The Bank
2013
REESRE
ELE A
BRIEM  REEEf  ARREESERDE#C
EELE FHFIRMN HELE
BRILR Gross SRMEMEFHE Related amounts not set off in
BEAE amounts Net the balance sheet
Gross  recognised  amounts of BHEH
. financial -
amounts financial liabilities ReHm
recognised assets set  precented in EMIA Cash =5
financial offinthe  the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities balance sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
BT BRI BRI BRI BB BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
8% Liabilities
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 150,999 - 150,999 (13,306) - 137,693
AR Other liabilities 946,711 (883,177) 63,534 - - 63,534
et Total 1,097,710 (883,177) 214,533 (13,306) - 201,227
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43. @I B ZIEE @) 43. OFFSETTING FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (Cont'd)
RBAT
The Bank
2012
REEBR
RPEHZ
BRALH  NEEAR  AAREEARRTHEEZ
BELE  ZHHTEM HEeE
BREZ4T Gross ®RAEFE Related amounts not set off in the
EELS amounts Net balance sheet
Gross recognised  amounts of BIELZ
amounts financial fln:;c;fsl Refim
recognised liabllties set  precented in ¢RIA Cash =
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral Net
assets  balance sheet sheet instruments received amount
BT BT BETT BRI BETTT BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EE Assets
TESBIA Derivative financial instruments 147,617 - 147,617 (36,346) - 11,271
HtEE Other assets 1,382,570 (1,166,909) 215,661 - - 215,661
st Total 1,530,187 (1,166,909) 363,278 (36,346) - 326,932
KR
The Bank
2012
REESR
RPHH2
BEZEH  NEESRE  AENEERRRTHHZ
BEER  RTIRH il fea
SRETLE Gross TRBEHE  Related amounts not set off in the
BEES amounts Net balance sheet
Gross recognised am?unts .Ofl BHEAZ
amounts financial IiIanbailri];Es Befm
recognised assets et proconted in SRIE Cash et
financial off in the the balance Financial collateral Net
liabilities  balance sheet sheet instruments pledged amount
BETT BT BETT BETTL BETT BETT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
=1 Liabilities
fTESRIA Derivative financial instruments 166,685 - 166,685 (36,346) - 130,339
HitBfE Other liabilities 1,200,803 (1,166,909) 33,894 - - 33,894
st Total 1,367,488 (1,166,909) 200,579 (36,346) - 164,233
BRAKBEZENISIMIET AR S FREE BT Z - WEHE For master netting agreements of OTC derivative transactions
FENSEMEBEBENEN AR —XXZEF2HEBESHE entered into by the Group, related amounts with the same
AR RRAES - counterparty can be offset if an event of default or other

predetermined events occur.
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44, TRIEEER
MR20135E K20124E12A318 » WESHEEER -

45. EERERBEERN

REBEFBRRIEHIE161BIRMRE - AARITES RSEB
BRUEZEFFHBNT :
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44. TRANSFERS OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

As at 31 December 2013 and 2012, there were no transfers
of financial assets.

45. LOANS TO DIRECTORS AND
OFFICERS

Particulars of advances made to directors and officers of the
Bank pursuant to section 161B of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance are as follows:

2013 2012
BET T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
RERHAREEZEBR 5458 Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding at year end - -
REANREBEBRX S 2 R85 Maximum aggregate amount of relevant
transactions outstanding during the year - 30

46. FECHHEALRS

FEARKMBEEGRABTEREEREEAR ([F
B -HE2EMNBARTRESREFGREMERR ([HE
&) ESBEENRRZPERTRTRESE  HAKE
BT -

TBRZEMEALRSDIREBTLGA L F24REE °
(a) HEBQAARBAFREFZHMATDETHNRS

LSEAY=T): V=287

AEEZEERERERARRTREL  MHPREFEZXS
BRTTIES| - ESRPERITZERIF] - TRPRHOEE
MERR > MARREBIEESREEEEBNRERE

NS
FE 5 35 s P B 839 A 420 2

AEEELFEBPRLEERS
%

BREER ERRAEREENS

ETRITREMEBERS

o

46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of
the PRC Government through China Investment Corporation
(“CIC"), its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin
Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), BOC and BOCHK in which
Central Huijin has controlling equity interests.

The significant related party transactions are defined
according to HKAS 24.

(@) Transactions with the parent companies
and the other companies controlled by
the parent companies

General information of the parent companies:

The Group’s immediate holding company is BOCHK, which
is in turn controlled by BOC. Central Huijin is the controlling
entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CIC
which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign
currency investment management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other
entities in the PRC.

The Group enters into banking and other transactions with
these entities in the normal course of business which include
loans, investment securities and money market transactions.
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46. FEZEBREALTRS (9

(a) f?:?‘ﬂﬂ&ﬂ’&ﬁﬁ%ﬂz,ﬁ\f&’aﬁﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂﬁ%

BREHELEHR (&)

A EAPBRFITETARSFEEEEME/ES - 12013
F12A318 ' AEEHEBREK RESFBRRITHRIBEED
Rl & 7 #6,796,023,0007T (20124 : 7 ¥5,503,655,000
J0) K& #2,702,999,0007T (20124 : & #2,396,034,000
JC) ° i E2013F12A318 I FE - B EIREIT ML
¥BEBEPEENBART LTS B AE1240,822,000
7T (20124 : # #252,609,0007T) & 7 #39,549,0007T
(20124 : ##28,013,0007T) °

AEBHERFEBETHOR S REEE TS ES - B2013F
128318 ' AEEEBEREK R EMFIREBHIELEED R
7575 #2,139,709,0007T (20124 : i #4,594,543,0007T)
K 7 #21,270,585,0007C (20124 : 7 #16,336,165,000
JC) ° HE2013F 128318 ILFE » BhREEBMMILE
EBBEPEENRART LB R AE%10,252,000
JC (20124 : 7 #17,298,0007t) N /& #708,001,0007C
(20124 : #¥613,384,0007T) ° EAREFBHLG 2 HEA
AT EEARS °

(b) EEBUFHE KEKE HNEBERBREGESR
BEHERBNRS

PEARAMBEBEBETRIESHASBEHEES
AR EE AR MBI BB BB TS - (RHE - 8
BEMECEEZFHEBERNHREHIASEMLER - X
SEZ-RAXGREBFHERE - KE#E  HEBRERE
EBEHERETERBITEERS -

B3 5 BIEETRRN TFIEE

— fEE  RERERERMERZFR

— RITRIZE 2 F RN AE s

- HE  BE  BHENMELOREMEEEGEEMET
ZIE%

- TRHtINE - SRR AERRIRE ARTE

- REGETEERS &
- BEAKEE BTA  BREIIBBURE -
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46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(@) Transactions with the parent companies
and the other companies controlled by
the parent companies (Cont'd)

General information of the parent companies: (Cont’d)

The majority of transactions with BOC arise from money
market activities. As at 31 December 2013, the related
aggregate amounts due from and to BOC of the Group
were HK$6,796,023,000 (2012: HK$5,503,655,000) and
HK$2,702,999,000 (2012: HK$2,396,034,000) respectively.
The aggregate amounts of income and expenses of the
Group arising from these transactions with BOC for the
year ended 31 December 2013 were HK$240,822,000
(2012: HK$252,609,000) and HK$39,549,000 (2012:
HK$28,013,000) respectively.

The majority of transactions with BOCHK arise from money
market activities. As at 31 December 2013, the related
aggregate amounts due from and to BOCHK of the Group
were HK$2,139,709,000 (2012: HK$4,594,543,000)
and HK$21,270,585,000 (2012: HK$16,336,165,000)
respectively. The aggregate amounts of income and expenses
of the Group arising from these transactions with BOCHK
for the year ended 31 December 2013 were HK$10,252,000
(2012: HK$17,298,000) and HK$708,001,000 (2012:
HK$613,384,000) respectively. Transactions with other
companies controlled by BOCHK are not considered material.

(b) Transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other
state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council
of the PRC Government through CIC and Central Huijin,
which also directly and indirectly controls a significant
number of entities through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities. The
Group enters into banking transactions with government
authorities, agencies, affiliates and other state controlled
entities in the normal course of business at commercial
terms.

These transactions include, but are not limited to, the
following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and
deposit taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchase, underwriting and redemption of
bonds issued by other state controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and
investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and

- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication
and postage services.
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46. FECEBEALIRS (B 46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

() HEMEBEATIEEEERIEERETZR () Summary of transactions entered into
during the ordinary course of business
with other related parties

ZHE

EASECHMABEATERNZAEBEALRSMESLZ

BN S RAESRBUR T

The aggregate income/expenses and balances arising from

related party transactions with other related parties of the
Group are summarised as follows:

2013 2012
Hth H b
BEEAL HFHEEAL
Other Other
related related
parties parties
BET T PRI IT
HK$'000 HK$'000
WK IEE ¢ Income statement items:
A2 YA Interest income 10,829 9,672
e H Interest expense (97,774) (85,450)
ENRBRER BUIRERES Insurance premium paid/insurance commission
(F%8) received (net) 2,980 6,083
2 EATHRREE A Administrative services fees paid/payable (17,068) (16,641)
Bl KIS Rental fees received/receivable 21,999 19,842
Bt/ ENEEELAS CFE) Securities brokerage commission paid/payable (net) (16,615) (14,321)
B EAES Rental paid/payable (295) (295)
ERESHERS Funds selling commission received 12,828 7,215
Hihs H Other expense (6,140) (11,747)
Hitn A Other commission income 11,571 3,782
HEmEARAESTH Other fees and commission expense (5,529) (4,628)
AR B M Dividend income 6,113 5,215
FR SRS Net trading gains (227) (171)
BEAMERER Balance sheet items:
EFRE RERITR Cash and balances with banks and
H fih & BUHIE B A5 R other financial institutions 202,412 1,717
TESMTEEE Derivative financial instruments assets 84 -
B R EMERIR Advances and other accounts 1,347,157 =
BHEE Investment in securities 60,530 53,472
Hih & & Other assets 17,258 112,349
HRIT R E M & RS 2 7k R A A Deposits and balances of banks and
other financial institutions (202,468) (10,715)
ZEER Deposits from customers (7,121,533) (8,218,014)
Hth BRTE K XE Other accounts and provisions (16,509) (800)
PTESFITAAR Derivative financial instruments liabilities - (53)
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(d ZEEBAS

ITEREAERERLRERARREAE N REERE
2 HELREEEEXB AL BREERSEEEA

B AEBETEEBIEESIREEARGHRALE
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46. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(d) Key management personnel

Key management personnel are those persons having
authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of the Group, directly or indirectly,
including directors and Senior Management. The Group
accepts deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities
to key management personnel in the ordinary course of
business. During both the current and prior years, no
material transaction was conducted with key management
personnel of the Bank and its holding companies, as well as
parties related to them.

The compensation of key management personnel for the
year ended 31 December is detailed as follows:

2013 2012
BT T BT T
HK$’'000 HK$'000
M AR EAE T2 F Salaries and other short-term employee benefits 28,882 31,079
RIRAEF Post-employment benefits 1,635 1,597
30,517 32,676

47. B¥E 47. CURRENCY CONCENTRATIONS

TRINMEBERS  FEERHEERBUERRMEL 2
ZHNERREE IQE”%E)%%%%fu«u—H%Tﬁ%ﬁﬁl\El sl
HIERIE T MRS -

The following is a summary of the major foreign currency
exposures arising from trading, non-trading and structural
positions and is prepared with reference to the Completion
Instructions for the prudential return “Foreign Currency
Position of an Authorised Institution” issued by the HKMA.

2013
BETTEE
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

Hith o SN

Other Total

Ern ARY foreign foreign

US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

BEEE Spot assets 51,589,784 121,853,558 9,384,830 182,828,172
BEAE Spot liabilities (44,518,523) (111,464,523) (9,925,494) (165,908,540)
RHEIEA Forward purchases 24,399,649 10,648,881 4,468,976 39,517,506
RHEH Forward sales (29,771,697)  (21,621,410) (3,875,909)  (55,269,016)
/() 858 Net long/(short) position 1,699,213 (583,494) 52,403 1,168,122
EEMEERTR Net structural position 333,141 8,263,668 - 8,596,809

2012
BT ITER
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

H e opi HNE fB T

Other Total

ETT ARE foreign foreign

US Dollars Renminbi currencies currencies

REAE Spot assets 44,970,705 92,007,219 11,863,812 148,841,736
BEBR Spot liabilities (40,978,415)  (86,860,201)  (10,193,513) (138,032,129)
RHEA Forward purchases 19,309,220 13,322,971 5,522,921 38,155,112
REE Forward sales (21,527,013)  (18,970,467) (7,093,398)  (47,590,878)
/() 858 Net long/(short) position 1,774,497 (500,478) 99,822 1,373,841
BERMERRFE Net structural position 321,028 7,885,528 = 8,206,556
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48. EEIERE

IR h2RBERERERZSERRENERIERMRE
2 . BEEEEASINR SHF 2 RERABRAENE DM -
W ERBRHEFAEMARRER - SEEZERAR
FEHERZHFHAEMTR @ HEREEBEERAZE
o BEEBIRITTZEINDTT  ERRGSEBREZIETZ
BITHTE o R R Rk EIGEEF RRABRER R EERE
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48. CROSS-BORDER CLAIMS

The below analysis is prepared with reference to the
Completion Instructions for the HKMA return of cross-
border claims. Cross-border claims are exposures to foreign
counterparties on which the ultimate risk lies, and are
derived according to the location of the counterparties
after taking into account the transfer of risk. For a claim
guaranteed by a party situated in a country different from
the counterparty, the risk will be transferred to the country
of the guarantor. For a claim on an overseas branch of a
bank whose head office is located in another country, the
risk will be transferred to the country where its head office
is located. Claims on individual countries or areas, after risk
transfer, amounting to 10% or more of the aggregate cross-
border claims are shown as follows:

2013
DNEEN*
8817  Public sector Hit st
Banks entities* Others Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TN - TBRERS Asia, other than Hong Kong
— REIAH — Mainland of China 35,085,897 647,145 34,557,836 70,290,878
— HAfh — Others 6,522,598 851 1,259,319 7,782,768
41,608,495 647,996 35,817,155 78,073,646
2012
AEB
$R47  Public sector Hith FeE
Banks entities* Others Total
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TN - TBRERE Asia, other than Hong Kong
— REA — Mainland of China 26,367,246 559,646 29,262,032 56,188,924
— Hfty — Others 11,466,066 1,468,168 1,307,642 14,241,876
37,833,312 2,027,814 30,569,674 70,430,800
= M- TEEBELBE(RITE (BX) A1) ARAIARE B * None of cross-border claims on Asia, other than Hong Kong is eligible
(20124 : f&) - to be classified as public sector entities under the Banking (Capital)

Rules (2012: Nil).
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49. NON-BANK MAINLAND EXPOSURES

The analysis of non-bank Mainland exposures is based on the
categories of non-bank counterparties and the type of direct
exposures with reference to the Completion Instructions for
the HKMA return of non-bank Mainland exposures, which
includes the Mainland exposures extended by the Bank and
its subsidiary in Mainland.

2013
185 54 2
BEEERA EEESERH HEERE
Y L B AR A Y L B AR I Individually
On-balance  Off-balance B E A assessed
sheet sheet Total impairment
exposure exposure exposure allowances
BET T BET T BET T BET T
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
R Mainland entities 33,157,420 2,321,948 35,479,368 -
AHIEINA T G Companies and individuals outside
BABAREANEES Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 4,967,844 1,553,941 6,521,785 -
HiIER1THY Other non-bank Mainland exposures
A [ B 5,655,388 439,024 6,094,412 9,277
43,780,652 4,314,913 48,095,565 9,277
RITAHH B AR Z Exposures incurred by the
R A Bank’s Mainland subsidiary 59,757,870 29,690,114 89,447,984 201,357
2012
ARG 2
BEEBBERA EEEERI B
o)ENbreEse o) reEse Individually
On-balance Off-balance MR R assessed
sheet sheet Total impairment
exposure exposure exposure allowances
BT T BT T BT T BT T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
A R Mainland entities 28,859,693 1,393,186 30,252,879 =
RHEEINA B K2 Companies and individuals outside
BARRERNEE Mainland where the credit is
granted for use in Mainland 4,022,501 2,238,762 6,261,263 486
H A IERITHY Other non-bank Mainland exposures
A [ B 7,054,825 153,127 7,207,952 22,108
39,937,019 3,785,075 43,722,094 22,594
RITAHIE AT 2 Exposures incurred by the
[ Bank's Mainland subsidiary 52,903,227 21,938,024 74,841,251 162,149
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50. RARERDT
FREARENBRSRBEFRIEEGREEEAR H2E
WEBARFRRESKREEREEA AR ([Ex]) RESHES
TR RREITRFRES HAEEBEITIES

51. MBHERLE

REAFSHRAZN2014F3 20 B R EZ & BB RZEEM -

www.ncb.com.hk

50. ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council
of the PRC Government through CIC, its wholly-owned
subsidiary Central Huijin, BOC and BOCHK in which Central
Huijin has controlling equity interests.

51. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2014.



